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Intensifying The Development In Shenzhen
ARG

In recent years, we have proposed the strategy of “‘intensifying the development in
Shenzhen”, strived to focus the core business in Shenzhen and

a few other first-tier and key second-tier cities.
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Corporate Profile
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Corporate Profile

Shenzhen Investment Limited has been listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 1997, which is the largest listed
real estate company under Shenzhen State Owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission. Its core business includes property development
(mainly residential real estate, also including industrial real estate and
commercial complex), property investment and management. With a clear
focus on Shenzhen, and plan for other core cities in China, the Company is

committed to be a first-class real estate developer and real estate operator.

Now the Group has a land reserve with a total gross floor area of over 10
million square meters in various cities of China, of which the quality land
reserve with a gross floor area of over 2 million square meters is located in
Shenzhen. The Company is committed to further optimize its land reserves
structure, and further concentrate its assets and business in first-tier cities

including Shenzhen and key second-tier cities.

It has all along been the Company’s core strategy objective to promote the
long term sustainable development of its business, with an aim to bring a

stable return and create value appreciation for its shareholders.
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The diagram above provides an overview of the Group’s major land reserves in Shenzhen.
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Results
%m

Revenue & 13,827.11 9,778.81 +41.4%
Cost of sales S A 9,754.16 6,177.19 +57.9%
Gross profits EA 4,072.95 3,601.62 +13.1%
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures {4 2 7 i Al K k58 46.48 219.17 -78.8%
Share of profits and losses of associates JREAG B A ) i A e s 48 650.12 831.93 -21.9%
Profit before tax i AT g 1| 5,852.97 5,077.16 +15.3%
Profit for the year attributable to owners of £/ R #EA NFEA

the parent JRE A ¥ ) 3,131.32 2,738.43 +14.3%
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) R IEARZ A (AL 53.62 58.97 -9.1%
Interim and proposed final dividend per b R R R R

share (HK cents) (A 16.00 19.00 -15.8%

Financial Position

S IR DL

Net assets excluding non-controlling B FE (NS

interests W4t ) 30,495.86 25,337.81 +20.4%
Cash and deposits (including pledged P& LR (BIFECEH

deposits and restricted cash) FEak B BRI B ) 9,657.38 7,478.30 +29.1%
Net loans R 19,741.44 16,811.07 +17.4%
Net assets per share excluding non- BRCE R FE (A I R

controlling interests (HK$) HEfR) () 4.58 4.71 -2.8%
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Highlights of 2014 Results
RS R

Key Ratios
B

Gross profit margin EH =% 29.5 36.8
Net loan to net assets excluding TR K L P VR (LG IR 4

non-controlling interests JReHERR) 2t 64.7 66.3
Dividend payout ratio TR E 3R 29.8 32.2

Results (by operating segment)
S (BB

Turnover B
Property development LI EE R 10,938.15 7,204.92
Property investment YERE 681.15 547.86
Property management LYE =i 1,211.04 1,110.64
Manufacturing e 432.90 354.93
Others FoAty 563.87 560.46
Total A 13,827.11 9,778.81

o BUEAT — WA O HR)

Segment Results — Profits/(Loss)

Property development LIE kg 2,460.31 3,259.02
Property investment (Note) YERCE (K5 2,118.53 1,206.46
Property management Wi 55.92 30.24
Manufacturing Rk 1.26 11.64
Others Hofth (9.25) 265.94
Total skl 4,626.77 4,773.30

Note: Segment results included the increase in fair value of investment properties of Misk © M EAERmBEWES REB NG

approximately HK$764.09 million (2013: HK$624.05 million) and the recognition of 764.09H EH 0 (ZF — =4 1 624.05H H
W) MHERREME G2 e B E
MR EREWEZ N AT X846.821
EETE (ZF— =4 0 ) o

change in fair value of completed properties held for sale upon transfer to investment

properties of approximately HK$846.82 million (2013: Nil).
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RESULTS E S
REVENUE FROM CONTINUING %4 %% %%

OPERATIONS bl & 13,827,105 9,778,807 8,312,726 7,320,584 6,502,460
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 5 I 345 1

(Including profit before tax from a (4 I FpAfiEH 2

discontinued operation) WA T 1) 5,855,454 5,093,193 3,701,801 2,892,293 2,440,527
Income tax expense AR BH 32

(Including income tax expense (ELIE T FR AT

from a discontinued operation) Z TR RLEI L) (2,349,413)  (1,982,204)  (1,141,561)  (1,076,534) (863,660)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 4 35 3,506,041 3,110,989 2,560,240 1,815,759 1,576,867
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: T RESY

Owners of the parent EEVANGIE: 2N 3,131,316 2,738,432 2,156,069 1,522,078 1,324,780

Non-controlling interests P I i 374,725 372,557 404,171 293,681 252,087

3,506,041 3,110,989 2,560,240 1,815,759 1,576,867

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- %7 ~ B K%

CONTROLLING INTERESTS EEa3g £
Current assets T G 59,685,807 49,718,511 34,882,126 27,321,662 21,758,252
Non-current assets JERE G 34,819,100 27,173,014 19,509,881 14,218,962 12,059,265
Total assets HEE 94,504,907 76,891,525 54,392,007 41,540,624 33,817,517
Total liabilities A (61,731,272)  (49,312,179)  (34,882,164)  (24,527,687)  (19,117,720)
Net assets EE HE 32,773,635 27,579,346 19,509,843 17,012,937 14,699,797
Non-controlling interests JE 2 O 25 (2,277,775) (2,241,535) (1,961,947) (1,469,558) (1,224,894)
Net assets excluding non-controlling & F{H (A

interests FEREHERS) 30,495,860 25,337,811 17,547,896  15543,379 13,474,903
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Chairman’s Statement

£ O

2014 RESULTS

In 2014, the real estate market in China was cooling as a whole. Overall, the
market was weak, with real estate transactions dropping markedly and price
falling in most cities. With the improvement in financing and policy in the
end of the year, the market picked up to some extend but different regional
markets diverged more distinctly. Despite the challenging environment, the
Group firmly implemented its established strategies, expedited the sales,
promoted transformation and made plans for the future, which resulted in

its steady development.

During the year, the Group achieved a turnover of HK$13,827.1 million,
representing an increase of 41.4% over the same period of last year. Profit
for the year attributable to the shareholders was HK$3,131.3 million,
representing an increase of 14.3% over the same period of last year. Basic
earnings per share were HK53.62 cents, representing a decrease of 9.1%
over the same period of last year. The Board proposed to distribute a final
dividend of HK13.00 cents per share for year 2014 in cash, and with a scrip
dividend alternative.

Completion of Acquisition of Nongke Group

During the year, the Group further implemented the strategy of “intensifying
the development in Shenzhen”, and had Shenzhen Nongke Holdings
Company Limited (“Nongke Group”) under its control by acquiring from
its parent company a 100% stake in Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture Company
Limited, which was another major capital injection after its acquisition of
Kezhigu project from its parent company. Nongke Group owns valuable
lands and property assets in Honey Lake area, a core area of Shenzhen.
Nongke Group’s core asset is a piece of land with planned gross floor area of
260,000 square meters in the central of Honey Lake area. This project will

generate a profitable return for the Group in the future.
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Chairman’s Statement
Bl

UpperHills Project (Kezhigu) Moving Smoothly

The apartments of UpperHills Project started to sell during the year as
scheduled, which attracted widespread market attention as a representative
of top luxury residence in Shenzhen. Due to a depressed market sentiment,
together with a large size and high price which the luxury residence has
itself, the apartment did not sell as fast as expected. Given its extremely
superior location and product, the Group is fully confident about the

subsequent sales of Kezhigu project.

Deepening Strategic
Cooperation

During the year, the Group
continued deepening its strategic
cooperation with companies
including Shenzhen Metro
and Shenzhen International
Holdings. The cooperation was
very effective, and the Group’s
expertise and team spirit were

highly appreciated by its partners,
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— UpperHills Project 3 FHH —

which laid a solid foundation for

expanding cooperation next.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, China’s economy under the new norm will shift from rapid
growth to a moderate one, with structure optimization and upgrading,
and factor and investment drives replaced by consumption and innovation
drives. In the next years, China’s economy will still feature steady growth
and restructuring. Facing both the challenge and the opportunity, the Group
is confident about China’s future economic transformation and upgrade.

As to real estate industry in particular, the past strategy of achieve extensive
economic growth with scale has failed, the regional and product differences
will become increasingly apparent. The third and fourth-tier cities with
limited housing demand will face low sell-through rate in the short run
and weak growth in the long run, while the first-tier and key second-
tier cities with great population aggregation ability will have sustainable
development. As the innovation city of China, Shenzhen has been at the
forefront of transformation and upgrade across the country, is home to a
large number of leading companies in many industries including internet,
finance, innovative technology, biomedicine and logistics, and enjoys an
enhanced entrepreneurial climate, excellent natural environment, and
increasing appeal for immigrant population. The Group is firmly confident

in Shenzhen’s real estate market.
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Chairman’s Statement
B

The Group fully understands the necessity of transformation. In recent
years, we have proposed the strategy of “intensifying the development in
Shenzhen”, strived to focus the core business in Shenzhen and a few other
first-tier and key second-tier cities, and strengthened the effort in the sale
and disposal of projects in the third and fourth-tier cities. In the past two
years, we have continuously increased the land reserve in Shenzhen by asset
injection from the parent company, urban redevelopment and cooperation
with companies including Shenzhen Metro. Now the Group has quality land
reserves with gross floor area of over 2 million square meters in Shenzhen,
and has successfully disposed of several projects in the third and fourth-tier
cities. This year, the Group will work harder to implement this strategy, to
accelerate the optimization of asset structure and thus to increase return on
asset.

We also increasingly realize that the past development model of pursuing
expansion through high turnover will become unsustainable when
encountering the scale bottleneck, and that the real estate market has
entered into a phase of stable development in which asset quality, operating
capacity and capital strength are more important. The Group will transform
its development model from “focusing on development and sale” to “focusing
on development, sale, holding, and development equally”. The Group will
maintain the solid growth of development and sale scale on one hand,
and achieve property appreciation and steadily increase the contribution
from rental income by improving the operating capacity in real estate and
conducting an intensive cultivation in the high quality property on the other
hand.

The Group attaches great importance to the operation of investment
properties. In the next three years, it is expected that the Group will
add more than 600,000 square meters of commercial properties, most of
them will be located in the premium locations of Shenzhen. The Group
has established an experienced team, to carefully plan and design the
aspects, such as project positioning at the early stage, design planning
and investment attracting, to strive to stand out from the fierce market
competition with superior location and differentiated operation. As
to industrial real estate operation, the Group has a proud history. Its
subsidiaries, such as Pengji, Terra, Nongke, and Taifu Logistics, all have over
20 years of experience in business parks operation, and Tianan Cyber Park,
an associate of the Group, enjoys a good reputation in the development
and operation of innovative technology parks. The parent company of the
Group owns hospital business, which provides an opportunity for the Group
to explore aged care and rehabilitation service with its holding properties.
The Group will further tap into its potential, integrate its resources and seek
extensive collaboration, to further improve its capacity and ability to operate

real estate.
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Chairman’s Statement
B

In 2015, the Group anticipates a fast-growing sales revenue and an annual
sales target of approximately RMBI1 billion, of which over 60% will be
from Shenzhen. During the year, we will take effective measures to further
optimize its land reserves structure, and further concentrate its assets and
business in first-tier cities including Shenzhen and key second-tier cities.
During the year, we will also expand the cooperation with other companies
in terms of capital and operation to achieve mutual benefit and win-win
situation by continuously exploring opportunities for cooperation. The
Group will pursue a steady, sustainable and healthy development by further
improving its asset and liability management and cash flow management,

minimizing gearing ratio, while increasing net asset return.

I believe that, through a great range of effort on transformation and
upgrade, the Group will make a leap from its current level, and continue to
create value for its shareholders. I hereby express our heartfelt gratitude to

investors for their trust and support.

LU Hua

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Overall Results

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group achieved a turnover from
continued operation of HK13,827.1 million, representing an increase of
41.4% over the same period of last year. Gross profit margin was 29.5%,
representing a decrease of 7.3 percentage points. Profit attributable to
shareholders was HK$3,131.3 million, representing an increase of 14.3%
over the same period of last year. If excluding the net effect of the changes
in fair value of investment properties attributable to the Group, gain on
a bargain purchase, provision for impairment of investment in Coastal
Greenland Limited (“Coastal Greenland”) and provision for impairment of
projects in the third and fourth-tier cities, profit attributable to shareholders
was HK$1,624.4 million, representing a decrease of 9.1% over the same
period of last year. Basic earnings per share was HK53.62 cents, representing

a decrease of 9.1% over the same period of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B Rg W B o AT

Property Development

Sales Revenue Booked: During the year, the Group recorded 757,306 square
meters in property sales (excluding the interests attributable to the Group
in its three principal associates), representing an increase of 41% over the
same period of last year, and achieved a net revenue in property sales of
RMBS8,690.7 million (equivalent to HK$10,938.1 million) (net of business
tax), representing an increase of 55.4% over the same period of last year.
Gross profit margin of property sales was 30.9%, representing a decrease of

10 percentage points over the same period of last year.

During the year, the gross profit margin of property development and sales
decreased, mainly due to: first of all, during the year, Shenzhen projects with
higher gross profit margin contributed 46% to the sales revenue booked,
which was less than that of last year (Shenzhen contributed 55% to the sales
revenue booked of 2013), mainly due to the low sell-through rate of luxury
homes in Shenzhen market affecting the sales of UpperHills, and the impact
of the “Management Measures for Industrial Building Transfer in Shenzhen”
(the Measure was revised in August 2014) implemented in the first half of
the year on the Group’s industrial building projects in Shenzhen; secondly,
the Group actively conducted promotion activities for the projects in the
third and fourth-tier cities, with the price of certain projects decreasing by

5% to 15%, which also had effect on the level of gross profit margin.
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RA > B IHE AR B > A LB R
THE M B RUE A S MASH B B
R 5 P

In the future, with the optimization of project structure, the Group’s projects
in Shenzhen will begin to enter sales and settlement stage, which will

continuously improve its gross profit margin.

20144F- L5 SE B B

Property Sales Booked in 2014

Wanlin Lake Phase 2-8 Residential/Shops 109,814 675 6,511
H b 2-84) /s

Wanlin Lake Car Park Car Park 21,940 38 1,841
H AR Hfir

Rui Cheng Phase 1.1&1.2a Residential 82,914 374 4,780
AL - 1.2a =z

Splendid City Residential 34,028 134 4,189
15 Al =22 R =

Garden Hill Phase 1.1-1.3 Residential 27,507 206 7,934
F 1l 45561.1-1.38 £

European-view Garden Residential 91,472 627 7,273
k5 RESE =

Terra Building Industrial/Commercial 19,205 695 38,349
£ IN-] X T

Nanhu Rose Bay Phase 1&2&3I-IV Residential/Shops 20,325 185 9,624
FEIBCL I L - 2 - SMILIVIE VR F

Nanhu Rose Bay Car Park Car Park 228 3 15,785
T B A B fir

Yihu Rose Bay Residential/Shops 20,382 78 4,082
TR B SE B8/ msh

Tianyuxiangshan Garden Residential 622 30 51,263
K ek EE

Purple Kylin Phase 1&3 Residential 6,841 131 20,339
LWL - 3 £

Royal Garden Residential 14,465 117 8,588
i EE

Noble Times Phase 1&2 Residential/Shops 17,819 249 14,780
AL - 28 58/ ms

Royal Spring Garden Car Park Car Park 73 1 16,930
TR LD HEE A B fr

Shumyip City Phase 1.2&2 Residential/Shops 38,258 279 7,740
TESEW 2 ~ 23 8/ Hsh

Shumyip City Car Park Car Park 5,001 15 3,273
TR B fr
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20144 A5 S B ()

Yundonghai Phase 1.2 Residential 12,964 133 10,870
ERMEL.28 =z
Saina Bay Phase 1 Residential 19,726 163 8,774
FE AN 110) £
Jiangyue Bay Phase 1 Residential 84,278 1,291 16,219
JARIA: B £
Boxing Building Warehouse/Commercial 1,136 24 22,196
L SN LV
Bolong Building Warehouse/Commercial 6,731 169 26,653
[L159N iV
UpperHills Complex 42,312 2,606 65,215
TR Lk e
Maanshan Shumyip Huafu Phase 1.1 Residential 22,711 159 7,459
5 85 L) TR SE HE R 1300 1 4L £
Changzhou Shumyip Huafu Phase 1 Residential 3,716 34 9,677
NG SEZE N 1 i
Meibo Building Residential 52,838 275 5,513
EQLVN i
Total &t 757,306 8,691
30%
Complex
S e
Distribution of Property Sales Booked
in 2014 by Product Type 10%
e o . :
20 144 45 W) 36 B 85 78 i SRR 3 Af Ié‘%“ﬁ%

4,760%

Residential

L

Contracted Sales: During the year, due to a weak market, although the
Group actively promoted the sales, some key projects failed to reach their
sales targets and the contracted sales was not satisfactory. During the year,
the Group achieved 635,000 square meters in contracted sales area and
contracted sales income of RMB7.4 billion, representing a decrease of 12.9%

and 17.9% over the same period of last year respectively.

IR B BB AR R TR s AR
A% B2 [ R N 9FE B 6 B LA > {H 0 B IA
ENEOEER R b = i S IR AN R D R N
R o AN AR AR BB A T B 4 TR A 63.5 4
Tk AR BB A N R 740 > [/
Al FE12.9% %% 17.9% ©
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20144E BB B

UpperHills Shenzhen Complex 24,893 1,650 66,266

et I Haw

Tianyuxiangshan Garden Shenzhen Residential 4,138 160 38,575

KA LAE R I =z

Noble Times Shenzhen Residential 5,491 79 14,392

R I g

Purple Kylin Garden Shenzhen Residential 2,433 61 25,027

ERLTERE wN =z

Bolong Building Shenzhen Warehouse/ 8,754 223 25,525
Commercial

PRER I -1 VB

Terra Building Shenzhen Industrial/ 25,010 900 35,998
Commercial

ES(ON] #I o VA ES

Royal Garden Shenzhen Residential 1,212 10 8,444

il wN =z

Jinshazhou Guangzhou Residential 84,502 1,389 16,431

EUWEH JEM g

Nanhu Rose Bay Wuhan Residential 20,729 189 9,125

P 0 B RE e

Yihu Rose Bay Chengdu Residential 14,662 58 3,986

(ERCEE2 X JAD £z

Rui Cheng Changsha Residential 67,693 317 4,678

B 304 =z

European Garden Dongguan Residential 62,338 489 7,843

BRI W5 £z

Shumyip Boyuan Taizhou Residential 16,593 74 4,457

KR eS| =z

Splendid City Jiangyan Residential 59,930 230 3,842

AR E3 £z

Yundonghai Sanshui Residential 5,405 51 9,431

Y =K g

Shumyip City Shunde Residential 51,464 359 6,971

TR e £z

Garden Hill Huizhou Residential 20,276 181 8,914

Fil45E M g

Wanlin Lake Huizhou Residential 85,844 453 5,278

A Ll fE

Changzhou Shumyip Huafu Changzhou Residential 2,197 18 8,302

RN E =5 M e
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Contracted Sales in 2014 (continued) 201445 W E ()

Maanshan Shumyip Huafu Maanshan Residential 36,387 214 5,788
BRI BRI g

Saina Bay Heyuan Residential 26,245 155 5,922
FE A TR e

Others Residential 7,861 112 14,225
oAt fEE

Total 3t 634,557 7,372

Project Development: During the year, the Group had a new construction JHH S - RN > ABEEHT LmEL
area of approximately 800,000 square meters, and a completed area of SOHT- 7K » 5 LTI A)83 M5 5K o

approximately 830,000 square meters.
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New Construction Projects in 2014 20144EHT B T H

Maanshan Shumyip Huafu Phase 3.1 Maanshan Residential 126,654 94,122
LSE AN S = /5 ShFEhET LSE Al i
Saina Bay Belle Riviere Phase 1 Heyuan Residential 100,927 84,379
FEIN A R 1) LIRS i
Garden Hill Phase 3.1(a) Huizhou Residential 126,456 87,512
il 4456310 — 1 2 i
Garden Hill Phase 3.1(b) Huizhou Residential 131,493 93,290
SHUEZZTORE it M FE
Shanglin Garden Phase 1.1 Taizhou Residential 153,802 91,693
EARFEL1H =M fEE
Guanlan Rose Garden Shenzhen Complex 154,830 107,648
BB I ey
Chaohu Royal Spring North Phase 1.1 Chaohu Residential 9,397 7,397
S L R 1 1w 1 i €
Total At 803,559 566,041
Completed Construction Projects in 2014 20144F58 TJHH

Changzhou Shumyip Huafu Phase 1 Changzhou Residential 37,099 28,445
MR T 1 N 5
Jinshazhou Phase 1 Guangzhou Residential 185,627 136,595
EVUNIE H 13 JE M i
Wanlin Lake Phase 8.2 Huizhou Residential 80,577 79,505
BRI 8. 258 M 5
Rui Cheng Phase 1.2a Changsha Residential 86,715 85,471
hh1.2Ma =307 i
European Garden Phase 3 Dongguan Residential 54,723 49,146
Bk 55 393 41 H5E 5
Splendid City Phase 2.1 Jiangyan Residential 105,272 66,259
B L1 E 3 i
Qingshuihe Auto Park Phase 2 Shenzhen Industrial 105,300 39,386
it 7K T IR R L 2 2 40 2]l P
Upperhills North Apartment Shenzhen Complex 170,720 168,582
7 St & /NCHER: ]l Ba

Total A5l 826,033 653,389
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Saleable Projects in 2015 20154 P B H

Maanshan Shumyip Huafu Phase 1 Maanshan Residential 281,300

G ¥ L TREEE T 130 LS AN (s

Changzhou Shumyip Huafu Phase 1&2 Changzhou Residential 116,210

MR ST 130 24 N =

Noble Times Phase 1&2 Shenzhen Residential/ Commercial 2,200

R RF A1 B 2 el EP

Shumyip City Phase 1-3 Shunde Residential/ Commercial 108,215

BEEIR1-3 4 N7 (GRS

Saina Bay Belle Riviere Heyuan Residential/ Commercial 67,731

FE I IR T (=P ES

Jinshazhou Phase 1&2 Guangzhou Residential 105,526

SV M1 K2 JEE M =z

Wanlin Lake Huizhou Residential/ Commercial 73,887

B AR N (ER=P @ ES

Garden Hill Phase 1&3 Huizhou Residential/Commercial 73,675

SHUEZREINE i N (GRS

Ruicheng Phase 1&2 Changsha Residential/ Commercial 131,382

A K2 =W (ER=P@ES

European Garden Shops Dongguan Commercial (including 6,803
hotel and office)

i 55 Y 1 S HoE PE (IS - ML)

Spendid City Phase 1&2 Jiangyan Residential 64,830

Sl 230 K2 % EE

Shanglin Garden Phase 1.1 Taizhou Residential 49,504

W o EAsH1.13 =M =

Qingshuihe Auto Park (Boxing & Bolong Building)  Shenzhen Industrial 23,191

7K [ PR R S T (L R ) el 73

Chengdu Jinxiu North Industrial Land Plot Chengdu Industrial 2,659

T 85 4 R o B AR ¥

Terra Building Shenzhen Industrial/Commercial 13,824

IEE S (YN} G [V E S

Nanhu Rose Bay Phase 2&3 Wuhan Residential/ Commercial 28,900

I B 2 ) K 3 ) & (ER=P @ ES

Yihu Rose Bay Chengdu Complex 58,285

(ERUEE K AR e

Guanlan Rose Garden Shenzhen Complex 105,264

1BLiA E 35t B ey

Chaohu Royal Spring South & North Chaohu Residential 17,734

S I R [ i EE
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Saleable Projects in 2015 (continued)

20154 TE H (4)

Yundonghai Phase 1&2 Sanshui Residential 73,007
RS EAG 1 S2 =K £
UpperHills North & South Shenzhen Complex 299,436
RS B3t 1 % v [ el oy
Tanglang City Shenzhen Complex 56,000
Yl Bk G kR
Total fiit 1,759,563
Optimizing Structure of Land Reserves - il 5 A e

Major Acquisition — Asset Injection: During the year, the Group had Nongke
Group under its control by acquiring from its parent company a 100% stake
in Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture Company Limited at a price of RMB5.589
billion. The transaction was completed on 22 August 2014. Nongke Group
owns valuable lands and property assets in Shenzhen downtown, and the
property business has become its largest asset and business segment. A
total gross floor area attributable to Nongk Group was around 384,775
square meters (including undeveloped land, investment properties and self-

occupied properties).

Nongke Group’s core asset, Shumyip Zhongcheng project (also known as
Mingren project) is located in Honey Lake area of Futian District, with a
land area of 39,158 square meters and a gross floor area of 259,332 square
meters. It is planned to be a complex project with residential and serviced
apartments of 141,185 square meters, offices of 80,547 square meters, hotel
of 7,200 square meters, commercial spaces of 20,000 square meters and other
facilities. The land premium of RMB3.633 billion should be repaid in respect
of this project, of which, RMB1.189 billion had been paid during the year,
and the balance of approximately RMB2.445 billion should be paid before
June 2015. The construction of Shumyip Zhongcheng project commenced at
the end of 2014 and its presale will be launched in 2016.

The transaction was a major and connected transaction, which had been
approved at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 29
May 2014, and was completed on 22 August 2014. The transaction generated
a gain on bargain purchase of HK$1,069.7 million, which was recorded as
profit for the year.

In addition, during the year, the Group had a project which is recently
included in Shenzhen’s urban redevelopment program. The project is located
in Liantang Industrial Area in Luohu District, with an expected gross floor
area of approximately 380,000 square meters, and is under planning and

resettlement negotiation.

AW — EEEA - N> AEFAR
W55 89 LA AS » 4 208 ) B 20 A ORE R YIAE
W) R 2E A PR F1100% X HE » A% B BHEEA A
BET o B —F— W AE N e
FEML o RERHAE FAE VR I O st BEHE A (R
IR RE o b TR RBHE MR KR
AR EBAR IR o SRR R Y B £
TWRE (& RBHas - BB R A %
45) JL#9384,775F K o

REEHEMZ O EREEEPHIEE (84 AH
B (oA B 2 W A6 T AE39,158°F-J7
Ko EERMIAE259,332°7 )5 K o B K — 1R
A 57141,185F 77 K AE B KB AE - 80,547
T KA~ 7,200 KT G~ 20,0007
TR S — e E R A A A - THE
N R 36,33 T A 3 > Hoh AR
11.89f5 70 LA AF INEIAN - IR 49 N R H24.45
BOIGZEAE T — AN H B AT - I
HHER - —WFKREL > fHEn =% —
NI E -

Z g E RN CIRAA R %
— AR T A U R B A O

o MR S E AR AH A T H R
Sy o 5% 58 5y A R AE W B R £51,069.7 F S i
It BEFAARLEF]E o

BEAN - SRR ARG EA — R IE H B A G
T3 SRR s R I (R A I [ A S
T > FHAEE S ATA38E K > IETE
AT BRI S
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Disposal of Inefficient Lands: In recent years, the Group has been
implementing its strategy of intensifying the development in Shenzhen,
and endeavouring to dispose of inefficient lands and to reduce the share
of projects in the third and fourth-tier cities. During the year, the Group
disposed two projects, located in New North Zone of Chengdu, Sichuan and

Sanshui District, Foshan respectively.

Chengdu project is located in New North Zone of Chengdu, with a
land area of 118,700 square meters and a planned gross floor area of
approximately 530,000 square meters. The equity interest held originally
by the Group in this project was 70%. During the year, the Group disposed
of its 70% of equity interest and creditor’s rights in the project for a total
price of approximately RMB198.4 million, including the consideration of
RMB77.5 million for the disposal of equity interest and the consideration
of approximately RMB120.9 million for the creditor’s rights. The Group
recorded a profit before tax of approximately HK$98.3 million for the
transaction, which had been recorded as profit for the year.

The Group signed an agreement with relevant authority of Sanshui
government, pursuant to which, in respect of the land for Yundonghai hotel
with a land area of approximately 90,016 square meters, the Group doesn’t
need to pay the outstanding land premium of approximately RMB120
million, while the government doesn’t need to deliver the land to the Group.
The relevant procedures were completed. The termination of payment of
outstanding land premium incurred no gains or losses, but it will reduce the

Company’s capital expenditure on the project.

In 2015, the Group plans to devote greater effort to implement the disposal
of inefficient projects in the third and fourth-tier cities. The projects planned
to be disposed of are located in Maanshan, Changzhou, Taizhou, Jiangyan,
Sanshui and Heyuan respectively, with a total site area of approximately 2.7
million square meters and a gross floor area of approximately 4.3 million
square meters. As the market values of certain projects in the third and
fourth-tier cities may be lower than their book values, for the sake of the
prudence of the accounting, the Group made a provision, with reference to
its fair value less costs to sell, for impairment of certain projects in the third
and fourth-tier cities amounting to HK$457.4 million during the year.

As of the end of December 2014, the Group had a total gross land reserve
of approximately 10.49 million square meters (in gross floor area) with an
attributable gross floor area of approximately 9.75 million square meters
(excluding the interests attributable to the Group in its three principal
associated companies). Of which, the total gross floor area of projects
under construction was approximately 3.30 million square meters and the
attributable gross floor area was 3.04 million square meters.

JE BRI H SO ATAEE - AR E
B RTINS 3655 B AR
HH > WA =R HE R B - £
A AR B T A T DL S AL A L A 3 1L
=R MEER -

AR TE B A S A R > Al b T R 11.87
HRETT K s BB SR R 453 S oK - AR
AR JE R T H70%HE o N AL
JITRE A T H 709 15 HE RO EERE R > 32 5 KA
AN RH198.47 0 - Horh BORE & RUE
S NR¥E77. 58 BT - R A AR 1209
H BT o 5458 5 SRS BLAT B R 498,30 & ik
JG > BERFAAREFE

A A2 (9] B = 7K IR A R S 1D 2 I e o A
A 1L = 7K A b T R £990,016°F- 5 K (19 E 3R
TR G R b o A B ST SAS AR R SR AT b A
HANREE 1200 8T > BUT RIRTE A bR 2 1)
MR > MBI TFAE SE AL o Kbk R AT Hh R
1) Hb AR S AN S B A L R A ]
TERZIE H g AR 3 -

ASE B EHIAE AR NRVEE = - U
Ik T AR KE F g B wHEE B IEE >
PIAETA Bl ~ I~ WM~ IR =K
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S A 430 85707 K - AR I = 0 ARk
7 IE A9 T AT () R AR HLAR TR - Hh R
AR RIS > ARAERN2E L
SO I 2 0 B B A > SR = DU AR IA
Htbe i (R - G ata57.40 BT -

WER—IE+ T HIE » B fE A
SETH BE 491,049 85 1 7 K > BESS FE 0 #1975 8
TR (NS AL =R EER A A
Pl HE 4 ) o PR R E A SR T RS 49330
BT K o ME 2R HE AR AR 304 8T K
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- bt £ 38 T A A
(12014412531 H)

Distribution of Land Reserves by City
(As at 31 December 2014)

Shenzhen Y 2,058,258 1,830,061 20%
Heyuan AT R 933,768 933,768 9%
Huizhou H 1,666,637 1,666,637 16%
Foshan i 1L 1,039,549 1,039,549 10%
Guangzhou JE& 164,712 164,712 2%
Changzhou H M 125,939 125,939 1%
Taizhou e 1,305,097 1,305,097 12%
Chaohu i 103,878 103,878 1%
Maanshan JE L 1,209,842 1,209,842 11%
Wuhan W 954,037 667,826 9%
Changsha B 435,874 348,700 4%
Chengdu AR 432,521 307,055 4%
Others BRI 59,889 48,509 1%
10,490,001 9,751,573 100%
73%
Residential
1E
Distribution of Land Reserves by
Product Type T 15%
(As at 31 December 2014) Industrial
oy JE b
- bt 4 o S A
¢ L
(7420144%F12 31 H) 12%
Complex
EGHE

— Jiangyue Bay VLi# —
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Property Investment

As of 31 December 2014, the total area of the Group’s investment properties
was approximately 1 million square meters, mainly located in Shenzhen.
At the end of December 2014, the occupancy rate of its rental property was
approximately 95%. During the year, as the Group continued to promote
the optimization of its property portfolio and improved the management,
the Group’s property investment business continued to maintain a steady
growth. During the year, the Group achieved a rental income of HK$681.2
million, representing an increase of approximately 24.3% over the same
period of last year, while the gross profit margin of its property investment
was 88.6%, representing an increase of 6 percentage points over the same
period of last year. As a result of the increase in rental income, the Group
recorded a revaluation gain of HK$764.1 million in its investment property
portfolio, and a revaluation gain of HK$846.8 million arising from the
properties completed held for sales purpose being transferred to investment
properties had already been accounted for as profit for the year. With
the completion of projects including UpperHills and Taifu Square, the
Group’s income from, and the scale of, investment properties will increase

significantly.

Property Management

The Group holds three property management companies with first class
property management qualifications at the national level. The property
management team is committed to improve services, support the
development of real estate business, and help to enhance the corporate
brand. As of the end of the year, the total area of properties under the
Group’s management is approximately 40 million square meters, including
a variety of property types such as government offices, office buildings,
residential estates, villas, and science and technology parks mainly located in
Pear] River and Yangtze River deltas as well as the central region. During the
year, the property management business contributed an income of HK$1,211
million to the Group, representing an increase of 9.0% over the same period

of last year.

VIR E

RO —PEF A= —H o AEEIRE
W) 3 HHT AR K100 85 °F 5 oK > o KRR 47
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Th o AR AL F T 1 B SE AL S AL
764.1H BT MRS E k2 CEBY
SRR 2 4 2 B A 2 A (E846.8
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SEM A TR K BTt o
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Hotel Operation

The Group has three hotels
in operation and three
under construction. Those
in operation are Suzhou
Marriott Hotel (with 293
guestrooms), Chaohu
Shumyip-Bantang Hot
Spring Hotel (with 20 spring
villas), and Holiday Inn
Resort Chaohu Hot Spring

-~ Holiday Inn Resort Chaohu Hot Spring i 1 SE1L % & H EERI S — ‘

e

AR AT = A P
TR = RS
R T A VY I 43 A R
ZWE (A2 % E)
VR 2R R R R
J5 (B A7 20[H] LR B 5F) F
U ORI R R s
(FA203M & E) o @k
8T8 T 5 N SCHE TR P S5
(BERA190H % F) ~ FE

(with 203 guestrooms). Those under construction are Mandarin Oriental
Shenzhen (with 190 guestrooms planned), Shumyip UpperHills Boutique
Hotel (with 90 guestrooms planned), and the hotel, which is co-developed
with Shenzhen Metro Group with a 50% stake attributable to the Group, in
Tanglang City project (with 200 guestrooms planned).

During the year, the three hotels in operation overcame challenges from
increased competition, and achieved a turnover (under other operating
segment) of HK$176.9 million, representing an increase of 8.6% over the
same period of last year. During the year, Chaohu Shumyip-Bantang Hot
Spring Hotel achieved an occupancy rate of 39%, representing an increase
of 9.6% over last year; Holiday Inn Resort Chaohu Hot Spring achieved an
occupancy rate of 42%, representing an increase of 9% over last year; and
Suzhou Marriott Hotel achieved an occupancy rate of 68.9%, representing an

increase of 3.4% over last year.

Jointly-Controlled Entities

During the year, Taizhou Shum Yip Investment Development Limited (a 51%
owned company of the Group) made a net profit contribution of HK$52.8
million to the Group, representing a decrease of 75.9% over the same period
of last year. The principal activity of this company is to provide relevant

services to local governments in primary land development arrangement.

Performance of Associates

During the year, the performance of associates invested by the Group was
within expectation. Of which, Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park (Group) Co.
Ltd., made a net profit contribution of HK$393.5 million to the Group,
representing a decrease of 27.7% over the same period of last year. Road
King Infrastructure Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong, made a
net profit contribution of HK$275.2 million to the Group, representing
a decrease of 4.8% over the same period of last year. Coastal Greenland,
another listed company in Hong Kong, made a loss contribution of
HK$26.7 million to the Group, representing an increase of 166.1% over
the same period of last year. The Group made a provision for impairment
of investment in Coastal Greenland of approximately HK$149.0 million

according to the relevant accounting standard.
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Financing and Financial Position

During the year, the Group actively explored financial resources, and
endeavored to reduce financing costs through the optimization of liability
structure. The Group attached great importance to cash flow management to

provide funding for its business development.

On 25 August 2014, the Company entered into an agreement for a
syndicated loan of US$435 million and HK$2,510 million for a term of 5
years with certain banks in Hong Kong. On 4 December 2014, the Company
entered into a facility agreement for an amount of HK$400 million for a

term of 3 years with a bank in Hong Kong.

These two funding projects fully reflected the continuous trust and support
from the banks, and at the same time, allowed the Group to successfully
complete the refinancing for the previous syndicated loan, and supplemented

liquidity required by its operational activities.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s total bank loans and other borrowings
amounted to HK$29,398.8 million (31 December 2013: HK$24,289.4
million), of which HK$23,794.7 million were floating-rate loans, and the
rest were fixed rate loans. Long-term loans amounted to HK$17,341.5
million, representing approximately 59% of total borrowings, and short-
term loans were HK$12,057.3 million, representing approximately 41% of
total borrowings. Borrowings from Hong Kong and overseas amounted to
HK$12,442.7 million, representing approximately 42.3% of total borrowings,
and the rest were borrowings from China mainland, representing
approximately 57.7% of total borrowings. Through the optimization of
financing structure, the Group achieved an annual average consolidated
interest rate of approximately 5.5% for bank loans and other borrowings,

basically flat with the same period of last year.

As of 31 December 2014, the Group’s cash balance (including pledged
deposits and restricted cash) was HK$9,657.4 million (31 December
2013: HK$7,478.3 million), of which approximately 83% and 17% were
denominated in Renminbi and other currencies (mainly in US$ and HK$)
respectively. During the year, the project of Terra Company, a 75.05%-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wuhan Terra
Company in Wuhan is implicated in the corruption case(s) involving
the local government officials and thus it is being involved in criminal
investigation. The People’s Procuratorate of Jianli County of Hubei Province
has seized certain bank accounts of Wuhan Terra Company and those of
Terra Company, which involved an total amount of approximately RMB275.6
million as of 31 December 2014. The Company had made an announcement
about this matter on 18 September 2014. As at the date of this report, the
investigation is still in progress. The Company believes that the matter is an
individual incident and will not have material effect on the assets, financials

and operations of the Group as a whole.

i 15 L B B AR 0

AR o A G PR Bk 98 R BB R > B
AL B A R R ROA BB & A A
MR E SR -

AR —AENH TR E > AR E A
T ERAT AT — TH4.3508 00 K25 1B o
SR SRk - WIS o R FE— ARt
HAUWH > AN A BE&E—RKBITH L — 00 F
B — TE A T A o AR AE -

T T T R T TR RO RAT AR
RS RARAT > 7] IRy BOE A 4R 0 2 52 IR
TR RO T AL 0 AR B T
THEES -

W F—VAE A = —H o AREERT
T HoAh £ 3K 48 829,398 8 F s o (—F—=
T HZF—H 24,2804 #ikon) o H
H123,794.7H o0 £ 17 B HERE A
FERME  RIHM17,341.5 8 BT K15
HAAE KA 59% » AR 0312,057.3 F 5 i
IC o KNG AR B A% o T ST AME K B
12,4427 7 8 #7065 4 B A A 1Y 42.3% >
At 2% A HP B K B R A AR R AR A
57.7% o M VA SR AL > ARSE B A AR
11 B A T ¥ 555 FI S 405.5% » BLR AR
7] ) B A5

AR —WAET A= H s AEENE
SR AE £59,657.4 1 B s T (ELFE HK AT A7 3R &%
ZRHHEE) (ZF—=4FE+_A=+—H:
7,478.3 11 H s 7T) o H i #1839%F117%743 Fll DA
N R MER Ho Al B (R R &
B o RN > | A AR 28 ) 5 1175.05% 19 [ JE 2
R AR SRS T B H A G W B A AR AR IR A ]
T R B Y T B R A2 A BB A 1 &
JE R A A RO S A > WAL BRI
bt s TRERRAFARBRAFALT
BATIRF > R-F—WE+—H=1—H:
B KA A N R 2756 F 8ot > AN
it S N K S W E [ VAN 1 = R o
AN o WEARERE I - A B A AT
o AR R R A 2 S TR AR A S > S A4
] 0 B R AR AR R i L E

B
2%



Shenzhen Investment Limited

PERCA R T

Annual Report 2014 43

29

Management Discussion and Analysis

B Jg w5 o AT

The Group’s cash inflow from operating activities is denominated in
Renminbi, while the assets held and debts assumed by the Group are mainly
denominated in Renminbi and US$, the exchange rate movements will have

positive financial impact to the Group in short-run.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had net assets (excluding minority
interests) of HK$30,496 million (31 December 2013: HK$25,337.8 million),
the net gearing ratio with the liabilities including bank loans only was 64.7%
and the net gearing ratio with the liabilities including shareholders’ loan
from the parent company and all other interest-bearing debts was 79.9%.
The gross gearing ratio (the ratio of total liabilities over total assets) was
65.3%.

Financial Position (As at 31 December)

FA AR B B T 508 3605 2 BB A DL
W T T A5 5 A F) S S TR AR 1Y
B E RIS AN RN 3o oe i BB - A
IR W 11 2 25 39 38 7 L 0 A0 36 A S [ B 5 1) 52
BRIETERY ©

MoE—EF A=t —H > AEEKBD
OB R 52 45 T A /530,496 E T (2
T+ ZH=1+—H :25337.88 M
Jo) o WARER (AERGERITER 5
64.7% > £33 B A B B OB HA T A A B
ABMENTFEERE79.9% - BEMER (B
BG4 E L 2) J565.3 % o

WMBOL (A =1—H)

Bank loans SRAT B
Long-term debts R f
Short-term debts JE I B

Floating-rate debts TFE K

Cash (including pledged deposits and
HaE)

restricted cash)

B (B4 ORI 3 2 BR A

The net gearing ratio with the liabilities including ¥ £ 53 (£ fif N 65847 K& HAL

bank loans and other borrowings only B30

The net gearing ratio with the liabilities including i# £ T3 (AEEMHEIEHE

£ 1)

all the other liabilities carrying interest

Pledge of Assets and Contingent Liabilities Position
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had total loans of HK$4,359.9 million
(31 December 2013: HK$3,764.2 million) that were pledged with assets (For

details, see note 31 to the financial information).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had provided guarantees to a maximum
of HK$2,359.5 million (31 December 2013: HK$3,193.0 million) to banks
for housing loans extended by the banks to the purchasers on the Group’s

properties (For details, see note 43(ii) to the financial information).
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Share Capital
As at 31 December 2014, Shum Yip Holdings, the controlling shareholder of
the Company was interested in approximately 67.31% of the Company.

During the year, a total of 123,134,000 share options and 1,810,400 share
options were issued and excised respectively, and a total of 5,743,200 share
options and 1,999,909 share options were lapsed and cancelled. During the

year, the Company did not repurchase any share.

During the year, the Group issued a total of 211,650,649 shares to the
shareholders who have elected to receive their 2013 final dividend by way of
scrip dividends, of which, Shum Yip Holdings, received its dividends in full
in the form of scrip dividends, totaling 158,774,266 Shares for its 2013 final
dividends.

In addition, the Company also issued 1,061,538,935 shares to Shum Yip
Holdings, which was used to satisfy part of the consideration for the

acquisition of Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture Company Limited.

As at 31 December 2014, the number of issued shares of the Company was
6,656,055,289 shares (31 December 2013: 5,381,055,305 shares).

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed a total of 17,129 employees
(2013: 17,264) of which 50 were stationed in Hong Kong (mainly managerial
and finance related personnel), and the rest in Mainland China. The related
employees’ costs for the year (excluding remuneration of the Directors) were
approximately HK$972.9 million (2013: HK$835.6 million).

Employee benefits and bonuses are based on their individual performance,
the Group’s profit condition, benefit level of the industry and the current
market condition. The remuneration packages are reviewed on an annual
basis to ensure internal equity and its competitiveness in the market. In
driving performance, we also grant share options, under the share option
scheme of the Group, to employees based on individual performance and the

results of the Group.
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Mr. LU Hua, aged 51, an Executive Director since 21 June 2011 and the
Chairman of the Board since 31 January 2013. Mr. LU was the President
of the Company during the period from 21 June 2011 to 30 January
2013 and the Acting Chairman of the Board during the period from 24
April 2012 to 30 January 2013. He is also the chairman of the board of
directors of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company
Limited. Mr. LU is also a director of various members of the Group. Mr.
LU holds a doctorate degree in Political Economics from The Nankai
University and a master’s degree in Finance from The University of
Reading in UK. Mr. LU held various positions including the chairman
of Shenzhen Shahe Industrial (Group) Co., Ltd. (VYT Vbl B 2 (4
) A B F), the president of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip
Holdings Company Limited from April 2009 to December 2012. Prior
to this, Mr. LU had served as the chairman of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd.,

Mr. LU Hua the chairman of Shenzhen Shahe Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. and the
3 general manager of Shenzhen Property Development Company Ltd. At
2] %%l—t present, he is also a non-executive director of Road King Infrastructure
Limited (1098.HK) and Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China,
Ltd. (2318.HK), both being listed companies in Hong Kong. He has vast
experience of over twenty years in property development, corporate
governance and administrative management.
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Mr. GAO Shengyuan
[ vy e

Mr. GAO Shengyuan, aged 47, the President of the Company since
31 January 2013 and an Executive Director since 13 June 2013. He
is also the director and president of Shum Yip Group Limited and
Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited currently. Mr. GAO is also a
director of various members of the Group. He holds a master’s degree
in Economics from The Zhongnan University of Economics. He had
served as a member of district committee and standing committee
of Futian District, Shenzhen Municipal, the deputy district chief and
deputy secretary of Party Committee of the People’s Government of
Futian District, the deputy district chief of the People’s Government
of Nanshan District and department chief of Bureau of Finance of
Nanshan District, Shenzhen Municipal, the deputy director of Bureau
of Finance Budget of Shenzhen Municipal. At present, he is also a non-
executive director of Road King Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK). He
has extensive experience in corporate finance management and capital
operation.
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Mr. MOU Yong
L

Mr. MOU Yong, aged 52, an Executive Director since 1 December
2009. At present, he is also a director of Shum Yip Group Limited and
Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited and its various subsidiaries. He
graduated from The Shaanxi University of Technology with major in
Chinese Language and Literature and obtained an advanced MBA from
The Peking University. He is a lawyer of The People’s Republic of China
and an arbitrator of The Shenzhen Arbitration Commission. Prior
to joining Shum Yip in November 2009, he held the positions of the
head of Enterprise Leadership Personnel Management and the chief of
General Office at The Shenzhen Municipal People’s Government State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission. Mr. MOU
has extensive experience in corporate governance and administrative

management.
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Mr. LIU Chong, aged 55, an Executive Director since 30 December 2010
and a Vice President of the Company since April 2010. Mr LIU is also
a vice president of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited and a director of Shum Yip Shahe (Group) Company
Limited. He holds a bachelor’s degree and postgraduate qualification
from The Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics with major in
Accounting and he is a senior accountant. Mr. LIU is also a director of
various members of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, he used to
serve successively as a deputy general manager and financial controller
of Shenzhen SDG Company Limited (ZEIITRE#E5E B A R A A, a

director and financial controller of Shenzhen Petrochemical Group Co.,

Ltd., a director and financial controller of Shenzhen Health Mineral
Mr. LIU Chong Water Co., Ltd., a director of Shenzhen Tellus (Group) Company
@J%f’aﬁg Limited (200025.SZ), and was an independent director of Shenzhen
Shenxin Taifeng Group Co., Ltd. (000034.SZ) during the period from
May 2009 to February 2014. Mr. LIU has over 30 years of experience in

finance and accounting management.
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Dr. WU Jiesi, aged 63, a Non-executive Director since 11 May 2006.
Dr. WU holds a doctorate degree in Economics and conducted post-
doctorate research work in theoretical economics at The Nankai
University in the PRC and was conferred a professorship qualification
by The Nankai University in 2001. Dr. WU served in various positions
in Industrial and Commercial Bank of China from 1984 to 1995 and
served as the president of the Shenzhen Branch. From 1995 to 1998, he
served as the deputy mayor of the Shenzhen Municipal Government.
From 1998 to 2000, he served as the assistant to the Governor of
Guangdong Province.

Dr. WU served as the chairman and honorary president of Guangdong
Investment Limited (270.HK), the director and honorary president
! of Guangdong Tannery Limited (1058.HK), the executive director of
rod Hopson Development Holdings Limited (754.HK), and the independent

z Dr. WU IieSi non-executive director of Yingli Green Energy Holding Company
TV SN L A Limited (NYSE:YGE) and China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd (3968.HK),

respectively. In addition, Dr. WU had also been serving as an non-
executive director of China Water Affairs Group Limited (855.HK)
from 2006 to 2013, an executive director, a non-executive director
and vice chairman of China Aoyuan Property Group Limited (3883.
HK) respectively from 2008 to 2013, and an independent director of
China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd. (600999.SH) from 2013 to 2014.
At present, Dr. WU is a non-executive director of Silver Base Group
Holdings Limited (886.HK), an independent director of China Life
Franklin Asset Mgt., Co., Ltd, and an independent non-executive
director of China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited (966.
HK), Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (392.HK), Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited and China CITIC Bank
International Limited respectively. Dr. WU has rich experience in
finance and corporate management.
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Mr. HUANG Yige, aged 46, a Non-executive Director since 27 March
2012. He is a director and financial controller of Shum Yip Group
Limited and a director of Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. Mr.
HUANG is also a director of various members of the Group. He holds a
master degree in business administration from The Hong Kong Baptist
University and an executive master degree in business administration
from The Xiamen University and has the title as senior accountant
and is a certified public accountant in the PRC. Mr. HUANG served
as a director and financial controller of Shenzhen Metro Group Co.,
Ltd, a financial controller of Shenzhen Agricultural Group Co., Ltd,

an administrative controller and a deputy financial controller and

investment general manager of A. Best Department Store Supermarket
+ Mr. HUANG Ylge Co., Ltd, and an assistant to president of Sichuan Dikang Industrial
e v Holding Group Securities Limited Group (U I|7 5 2 3 ¥ i 4 19 i
A FRAF]). At present, he is a director of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd
and supervisor of Shenzhen Tagen Group Co., Ltd., both of them are

listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. In addition, he is also a director
of China Resources SZITIC Investment Co., Ltd. He has extensive
experience in corporate management, finance management and treasury

operation.
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Mr. WU Wai Chung,
Michael
SRR

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, aged 65, an Independent Non-executive
Director since 9 October 2002. He was formerly the deputy chairman
of the Shanghai Stock Exchange and a commissioner in the Strategy
& Development Committee of the China Securities Regulatory
Commission. Prior to that, he was the deputy chairman, chief operating
officer and executive director and responsible for the Intermediaries
Division, comprising the Licensing and Intermediaries Supervision
Departments until his departure from the Securities and Futures
Commission on 31 December 1997. Mr. WU was an independent non-
executive director of Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited (188.
HK) and was an independent non-executive director and chairman
of Cypress Jade Agricultural Holdings Limited (875.HK) until 2
January 2015. At present, Mr. WU is an executive director of Tradelink
Electronic Commerce Ltd (536.HK).
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Mr. LI Wai Keung, aged 58, an Independent Non-executive Director
since 27 September 2004. Mr. LI graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic and holds a master’s degree in Business Administration
from The University of East Asia. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. LI had worked for
Henderson Land Development Company Limited (12.HK). He was
also an independent non-executive director of Sun Century Group
Limited (1383.HK). Mr. LI is currently a non-executive director of
Guangdong Investment Limited (270.HK) and an executive director and

financial controller of GDH Limited. He is also an executive director

of Guangdong Land Holdings Limited (formerly known as Kingway

Mr. LI Wai Keung Brewery Holdings Limited) (124.HK), an independent non-executive

; 2= [ S director of Hans Energy Company Limited (554.HK) and China South
City Holdings Limited (1668.HK), and a director of Shenzhen City
Airport (Group) Company Limited (000089.SZ). In addition, he was
appointed as a management accounting advisor of the Ministry of

Finance, PRC since 21 July 2014, he is also a member on the Council
of the Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited, the vice chairman of
the Financial and Accounting Affairs Steering Committee of the Hong
Kong Chinese Enterprises Association, and the executive vice president
of Hong Kong Business Accountants Association Limited.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

WL ERATE S

Dr. WONG Yau Kar David BBS, JP, aged 57, an Independent Non-
executive Director since 13 June 2013. Dr. WONG received a doctorate
in Economics from the University of Chicago in 1987. Dr. WONG
has extensive experience in manufacturing, direct investment and
international trade. Dr. WONG is active in public service. He is a
Hong Kong deputy of the 12th National People’s Congress of the
People’s Republic of China (5 —JH 2B ARACEKE). He is also
the chairman of the Land and Development Advisory Committee, the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority and the Protection of
Wages on Insolvency Fund Board. Dr. WONG was appointed a Justice
of Peace (JP) in 2010 and was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) in

2012 for his valuable contribution to the society.

Dr. WONG Yau Kar

- David Dr. WONG is currently an independent non-executive director of
J ﬁ‘ﬁ%ﬁi China Jiuhao Health Industry Corporation Limited (419.HK), China
- Windpower Group Limited (182.HK), Redco Properties Group Limited
(1622.HK), Reorient Group Limited (376.HK), and Sinopec Kantons
Holdings Limited (934.HK), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Senior Management

Mr. WANG Minyuan, aged 55, engineer, is currently a Vice President of
the Company and Shum Yip Group Limited. Mr. WANG joined the Group
in August 2012. Prior to this, Mr. WANG had served successively as a
deputy general manager of Shenzhen Metro Group Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen
Expressway Co., Ltd. He holds a bachelor's degree in Civil Engineering from
The Zhejiang University. He has over thirty years of extensive experience in

engineering design and construction and corporate management.
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Mr. LIANG Kaiping, aged 56, is currently a Vice President of the Company,
Shum Yip Group Ltd. and Shum Yip Holdings Co., Ltd.. At present, he is
also the chairman of Shum Yip Pengji Holdings Company Limited and Shum
Yip Southern Land (Holdings) Co., Ltd.. He graduated from The Wuhan
University, holding a master’s degree in history. He joined the Group since
2000. Prior to this, he was the director and president of Shenzhen Futian
Investment and Development Co., a general manager of Shenzhen Futian
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., and an associate supervisor of Office of
Futian District Committee of Shenzhen. Mr. LIANG has over thirty years of

experience in corporate management.
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Mr. DONG Fang, aged 42, is currently a Vice President of the Company,
Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited.
He graduated from The Hunan University with a master’s degree and a
senior engineer qualification. He joined the Group since 2006 and served
successively as a general manager of the real estate department and
investment department in the Company, and a deputy general manager
of Huizhou Canton River Expressway Co., Ltd.. Prior to this, Mr. DONG
worked in the Transport Commission of Shenzhen Municipality. He has
extensive experience in corporate management, property investment and

operation management.
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Mr. LU Jigiang, aged 44, is currently the Secretary of the Board and Chief
Legal Officer of the Company. He holds a master’s degree of Civil and
Commercial Law from Law School of The Peking University. Presently,
he is a PRC Lawyer and arbitrator of China International Economic and
Trade Arbitration Commission (CIETAC), Shenzhen Court of International
Arbitration, and Shanghai International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission. He joined the Group since 2003. Prior to this, he worked
in China Merchants Group. Mr. LU has extensive experience in corporate

PEdisn el > g BT A /] # 4 g
B Bk R S AR o A db KBRS
e [ 73 2 R B 7 o 2% vl B AR il A% vl (2R [
W% 58 975 52 5 it # %5 B € (CIETAC) ~ I
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operation management, law affairs, compliance and risk management R KR -
control.
Dr. DAI Jingming, aged 50, is currently the General Manager of Planning SOOI R BAEAL R MRS

and Finance Department of the Company and Shum Yip Group Ltd.. Dr.
DAI graduated from The Faculty of Agricultural Mechanical Engineering
of China Huazhong Agricultural University with a bachelor of engineering
degree in 1986 and from The Zhongnan University of Economics and Law
with a master degree in economics in 1992. He also obtained his Ph.D.
degree in economics from The China Ministry of Finance Institute of
Fiscal Science in 1998. He is currently an accountant. Dr. DAI joined the
Group since 1998 and held a position of general manager in administrative
office department, audit department and risk management department
respectively. Prior to this, He used to work in Hubei Province Agricultural
Engineering Head Limited and Wuhan City Branch of the Agricultural
Bank of China. Dr. DAI possesses extensive professional knowledge and
experience in corporate investment, corporate finance and financial

management.
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Mr. ZHU Guogqiang, aged 42, is currently the General Manager of Strategic
Management Department of the Company. He obtained a master’s degree
in Business Administration from The Hong Kong University of Science &
Technology. He joined the Group since 2004, and held positions as general
manager of assets management department and investment department in
the Company. Prior to this, he worked in Shenzhen Construction Investment
Holdings Ltd.. Mr. ZHU is familiar with the real estate market and property
development process and has maintained good communication with

investors and capital markets.
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The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance. The directors of the Company strongly believe that good
corporate governance is essential for effective management, a healthy
corporate culture, successful business growth and enhancing shareholders’
value. The Company has applied the principles and complied with all code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) throughout the
year 2014, except for code provisions E.1.2 and A.6.7 of the CG Code. Our
Chairman, Mr. LU Hua was not able to attend the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 19 June 2014 due to other business commitment. Our
President, Mr. GAO Shengyuan chaired the meeting and, together with the
chairman of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee and other directors, were present to answer the shareholders’
questions. Dr. WU Jiesi, our non-executive director and Mr. WU Wai Chung
Michael, our independent non-executive director were not able to attend the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 29 May 2014 as both
of them have other engagements.

Looking ahead, we will keep our corporate governance practices under
continual review to ensure their consistent application and to improve
our practices having regard to the latest developments including any new
amendment to the CG Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities and Delegation

Under the leadership of the Chairman, the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) is responsible for formulating overall strategies
and policies of the Company, supervising and evaluating business and
financial performance of the Company, determining the appropriate
corporate governance practices applicable to the Company’s circumstances
and ensuring operational efficiency and effectiveness by establishing a
comprehensive corporate governance framework with appropriate risk

control measures and aiming to enhance long-term shareholders’ value.

The Board has delegated certain functions to the respective committees,
including Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, the details of the responsibilities, membership and activities
during the year of each of them are set out in the section headed “Board
Committees” below. These Board committees assist the Board to discharge
its duties while the responsibilities of the day-to-day operations and
business management are delegated to the executive directors and senior
management. Matters specifically reserved to the Board include approval
of financial statements, dividend policy, significant changes in corporate
structure, mergers and acquisitions, major investments, material acquisition
and disposal of assets, selection of directors, changes to remuneration
policy for directors and senior management, terms of reference of board
committees, as well as major corporate policies such as whistle-blowing

policy.

All Board members have separate and independent access to the
management, and are provided with full and timely information about
the conduct of the business and development of the Company, including
reports on significant matters. Besides, all Board members are provided
with monthly management updates which contain periodic financials with
summaries of key events, outlook and business related matters of the Group.
Should independent professional advice be considered necessary by the
directors, such kind of services would be made available to the directors

upon request.

The Company has arranged Directors & Officers Liability and Company
Reimbursement Insurance for its directors and officers in respect of legal
proceedings and other claims against then arising from their office and

execution of their powers, duties and responsibilities.
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Composition

The Board currently comprises four executive directors and five non-
executive directors of whom three are independent non-executive directors.
Our independent non-executive directors constitute not less than one-third

and non-executive directors constitute more than half of the Board.

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael and Mr. LT Wai Keung, our independent
non-executive directors, had served the Board of the Company for more
than nine years. The Board considers that they have continued to exercise
independent judgment on the matters of the Group and there is no evidence
that length of tenure is having an adverse impact on their independence.
The Board therefore considers that Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael and Mr. LI

Wai Keung remain independent, notwithstanding the length of their tenure.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive director
the confirmation confirming his independence pursuant to the criterion set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all independent non-

executive directors are independent.

None of the directors of the Company has any relationship between other

Board members, chairman nor president of the Company.

All directors, including the non-executive directors, have a specific term of
appointment which is not more than three years. Each director has entered
into an appointment letter with the Company and pursuant to the Articles
of Association of the Company, every director, including the non-executive
directors, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. One-third of the directors (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to one-third) shall retire from office at each
annual general meeting and eligible for re-election by shareholders. Also,
any director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall retire at the next general
meeting of the Company and be eligible for re-election by shareholders.

Separate resolutions are proposed for the election of each director.

Brief biographical particulars of the directors are set out from pages 31 to 40

of this annual report.

Chairman of the Board and President

The roles of Chairman of the Board and the President are currently
performed by Mr. LU Hua and Mr. GAO Shengyuan respectively. The
Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the Board to formulate
good corporate governance practices and procedures together with the
directors, determine the strategic directions, business plans and investment
proposals of the Company, assess its performance and supervise the business
affairs of the management in ensuring the effectiveness of the Board,
whereas the President is responsible for overseeing overall operations of the

Company and ensuring the implementation of plans efficiently.
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Board Meeting

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company and to discuss future strategy. Four regular
Board meetings and one special Board meeting were held in 2014. At the
Board meetings, the Board reviewed significant matters including the
Company’s business development, proposals for final and interim dividends,
annual report and half-year report, and major and connected transaction. At
least fourteen days’ notice of a regular Board meeting is given to all directors
who are provided with an opportunity to include matters for discussion in
the agenda. The agenda and the accompanying Board papers are sent to
Directors at least three days before the intended date of a Board meeting.
Draft and final versions of minutes of each Board meeting are circulated
to directors for their comment and record respectively. In addition to the
Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board also holds a separate meeting
with the non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors

without the executive directors present on an annual basis.

Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings
and General Meetings

The attendance record of each director at Board meetings, Board committee

meetings and general meetings in 2014 is set out below:
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No. of meetings held AT E R 5 2
Executive Directors HiTE S

LU Hua (Chairman) B () 4/5 -
GAO Shengyuan (President) =5t (47 5/5 -
MOU Yong H 4/5 -
LIU Chong B 5/5 -
Non-executive Directors FEHTER

WU Jiesi HHER 515 -
HUANG Yige w1 5/5 -
Independent Non-executive . JEHi4T

Directors #E

WU Wai Chung Michael R 4/5 2/2
LI Wai Keung AR 3/5 2/2
WONG Yau Kar David R E 5/5 2/2
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Shenzhen Investment Limited

YR A B A

Annual Report 2014 4

46

Corporate Governance Report

1 3 6 o

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”) as the code of conduct of the Company for dealing in
securities of the Company by the directors. Having made specific enquiry to
all the directors, all directors confirmed that throughout the year, they had
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code. In addition,
the Board has also adopted the principles and rules of the Model Code as
written guidelines for relevant employees in respect of their dealings in the

securities of the Company.

DIRECTORS CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Each newly appointed director will be provided with necessary induction
information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities under relevant
statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is an on-going process, all directors are encouraged
to participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company also updated directors
on any latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time that to ensure compliance and

enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

In 2014, the Company had arranged at the cost of the Company a directors
seminar session conducted by qualified professionals on rules relating to
reverse takeover under the Listing Rules. The Company had also arranged a
site visit to the Company’s investment properties and development projects
in the PRC for the directors.

A summary of the training records reported by the directors for the year of
2014 and participation in site visit is set out as follow:
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Notes:

1. Participation in briefings/training seminars/conferences/courses/workshops on
subjects relating to directors’ duties, corporate governance, legal and regulatory,

finance and accounting, economic and industry specify matters etc.

2. Reading materials/regulatory updates/management monthly updates

3. Site visit

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has appointed a number of committees to discharge its functions.
The respective roles, responsibilities and activities of each Board committee

are set out below:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors,
who are all equipped with commercial and financial skills and experiences
required for understanding of accounting information. It is chaired by Mr.
LI Wai Keung and other members are Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael and Dr.
WONG Yau Kar, David.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee including (but not limited
to) the recommendation of the appointment of external auditors, supervision
of internal audit and oversight of the integrity of financial information and
its disclosure, monitor internal control system of the Company and ensure
internal audit functions and external auditors are adequately resourced.
The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

During the year 2014, the Audit Committee had reviewed 2013 annual
financial statements, annual report and results announcement, and 2014
half-year financial statements, interim report and results announcement and
recommended the same to the Board for approval. The Audit Committee
oversees matters concerning the Company’s external auditors including
reviewing the scope and quality of audit, the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity as well as their fees, and making recommendations to the
Board regarding the appointment of the external auditors, the nature and
scope of their audit and their fees. The Audit Committee received the
evaluation report on internal control and risk management system prepared
by risk management department and further reviewed the internal control
system of the Group including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staffs of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting

function and their training programmes and budget.
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The meeting attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set
out in the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board

Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors. It is chaired by Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David and other members are
Mr. LI Wai Keung and Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael.

The Company adopted the model whereby the Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive director and senior management according
to its terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for making recommendation to the Board on the remuneration matters
of non-executive directors, the setting up of adequate and transparent
procedures for setting such remuneration. The full terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the Company’s website and the

Stock Exchange’s website.

No member or any of his associates is allowed to determine their
own remuneration. In making recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration of directors and senior management, the Remuneration
Committee shall consider factors such as time commitment and
responsibilities of directors, employment conditions of other positions

within the Group and whether their remuneration are performance-related.

During the year 2014, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed the
director fees of non-executive directors and the remuneration of executive
directors and other incentive rewards such as grant of share options to

directors and senior management.

The remuneration of senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2014 is set out below:
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ and Chief Executive’s remuneration
and the five highest paid employees are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the

financial statements.
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The meeting attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee
is set out in the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board Meetings,

Board Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members of which two of them
are independent non-executive directors. It is chaired by Dr. WONG Yau
Kar, David and other members are Mr. LU Hua and Mr. LI Wai Keung.

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to determine the
policy for the nomination of directors, to set out the nomination procedures
and criteria to select and recommend candidates for directorship. The
Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board and assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive directors. The full terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website.

During the year 2014, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board and opined that it was adequate for
independent and effective decision making. The Nomination Committee

also reviewed the policy concerning the board diversity.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee
is set out in the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board Meetings,

Board Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy on 31 March 2014 which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board, a copy of which is
available on the Company’s website. The Board recognizes the benefits of a
diverse Board with members possessing a balance of skills, experience and
expertise which complement to the business success of the Group, and seeks
increasing diversity at Board level to enhance the effectiveness of the Board

and to achieve a sustainable and balanced development.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of
a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will continue to be made on
a merit basis and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,

having due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for, and has performed during the year, the

following corporate governance functions:

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of directors and senior management;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual applicable to employees and directors;

- to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure

in the corporate governance report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board as a whole shall be responsible for supervising the operations
of all business units within the Group. Suitable candidates will be
appointed by the Board to sit at the boards in respective subsidiaries and
associated companies in order to oversee their operation performance. The
management is accountable for the operations and performance of their

business units.

The Board had reviewed, through the Audit Committee, the effectiveness
of internal control system of the Group, including the consideration on
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting functions. An evaluation report on internal control and risk
management system for the year has been prepared by the risk management
department and reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Board considers that
all the material aspects of internal control of the Group including financial,
operational and compliance control as well as risk management functions

were adequately and effectively monitored during the year.

Internal audit function is carried out by the risk management department
and its function had been reviewed by the Audit Committee to ensure it is

adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the Group.
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WHISTLEBLOWING

The Board had on 19 June 2014 established a whistleblowing policy which
provides employees with reporting channels and guidance to raise concerns
about possible improprieties related to the Company, a copy of which is
available on the Company’s website. In 2014, The Board had not received

any whistleblowing enquiry or complaint since the adoption of this policy.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company had appointed a representative from an external secretarial
services provider as the company secretary of the Company, who has
confirmed that he has complied with the relevant training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Our primary corporate contact person

is Ms. Edith Wong, our General Counsel.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the Company
during the year. However, in order to be in line with the substantial
amendments under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) which came into force on 3 March 2014, the Board proposes to
amend the existing memorandum and articles of association of the Company
and adopt a new articles of association of the Company (“New Articles”),
which is subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. The New Articles will be posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website once adopted.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES ON FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities of supervising the
preparation of financial statements of each financial period which shall
consistently adopt suitable accounting policies and to comply with the
accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and to reflect the financial position, the results during the

period and cash flow of the Company in a true and fair manner.

The responsibility statement issued by the auditors of the Company is set
out from pages 74 to 75 of this annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the financial year of 2014, the remuneration paid/payable to
the Company’s external auditors, Ernst & Young comprises audit fees of
HK$5,250,000 (including HK$4,250,000 for annual audit and HK$1,000,000
for interim review services) and non-audit services of RMB880,000
for professional services rendered as the reporting accountants for the

acquisition of Nongke project.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication channel setting
out the dialogues that the Company are in place to promote effective
communication with shareholders, with the aim of ensuring shareholders
are provided with timely information about the Company and encouraging
them to engage actively in communication with the Company and to

exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about the
Group to public in a timely manner. The Company maintains a corporate
website (www.shenzheninvestment.com) where important information
about the Group’s activities and corporate matters such as annual and
interim reports to shareholders, announcements, business development
and operations, corporate governance practices and other information are

available for public’s access.

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful platform for face-
to-face communication between the Board and shareholders. Separate

resolutions are proposed on each issue at the general meetings.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company recognizes its responsibility to update its business activities
to whom with legitimate interests and respond to their questions. We meet
with investors on a regular basis to update them on our business progress
and strategy. In addition, we endeavor to share both financial and non-
financial information that is relevant and material, for instance, we make
voluntary announcement on our monthly unaudited contracted sales
performance, and respond promptly to enquiries arising from general public
and individual shareholders. In all cases, great care is taken to ensure that

no inside information is disclosed to selected parties.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including but not limited to
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“CO?”), the Listing Rules, and the articles of association of the Company as
amended from time to time, shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”)
may call general meeting, put forward proposals at annual general meetings
(“AGM”) and direct enquiries to the Board in accordance with the following

procedures:

-Convening of General Meeting on Request

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-twentieth of the paid up capital of the Company may request the
directors to convene an extraordinary general meeting pursuant to Sections
566 to 568 of the CO.
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In accordance with Section 566 of the CO, the directors are required to
call a general meeting if the Company has received requests to do so from
Shareholders representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders having a right to vote at general meeting. Such requests must
state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting;
and may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at the meeting. Such requests may be sent to the
Company and attention to the Company Secretary in hard copy form (by
depositing at the registered office of the Company at 8th Floor, New East
Ocean Centre, No. 9 Science Museum Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong
Kong for the attention of the Board) or in electronic form (by fax: 852-
2311-2539); and must be authenticated by the person or persons making
it. In accordance with Section 567 of the CO, the directors must call a
meeting within 21 days after the date on which they become subject to the
requirement under Section 566 of the CO and such meeting must be held
on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening the

meeting.

-Putting Forward Proposals at AGM
To put forward a resolution at AGM, Shareholders are requested to follow

the requirements and procedures set out in Sections 615 and 616 of the CO.

Section 615 of the CO provides that the Company must give notice of a
resolution if it has received requests to do so from (a) the Shareholders
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders
who have a right to vote on the resolution at the AGM of the Company to
which the requests relate; or (b) at least 50 Shareholders who have the rights

to vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate.

Such requests (a) may be sent to the Company and attention to the
Company Secretary in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered
office of the Company at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, No. 9 Science
Museum Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the
Board) or in electronic form (by fax: 852-2311-2539); (b) must identify the
resolution of which notice is to be given; (c) must be authenticated by the
person or persons making it; and (d) must be received by the Company not
later than (i) 6 weeks before the AGM to which the requests relate; or (ii) if
later, the time at which notice is given of that meeting. Section 616 of the
CO provides that the Company that is required under Section 615 of the CO
to give notice of a resolution must send a copy of it at the Company’s own
expense to each Shareholder entitled to receive notice of the AGM (a) in the
same manner as the notice of the meeting; and (b) at the same time as, or as

soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the meeting.
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The detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director can be found on the website of the Company headed “Investor

Relations” under the “Corporate Information” section.

Procedures for directing enquiries to the Company
Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board in writing through the

Board Secretariat at the below contact details:

Address: 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, No. 9 Science Museum Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Email:  ir@shumyip.com.hk

Tel: (852) 2723 8113

Fax: (852) 2311 2539

Share registration related matters

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and registration,
change of name or address, loss of share certificates or dividend warrants,
the Shareholders can contact the Share Registrar, Tricor Standard Limited, at

the below contact details:

Address: Level 22 Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2861 1465
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The directors have pleasure in presenting to shareholders their annual report
and audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in
note 20 and note 22 to the financial statements, respectively. Except for the
discontinued operation of provision of transportation services as detailed in
note 40 to the financial statements, there were no significant changes in the

nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the financial
position of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 76 to 240.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK13.00 cents
per share for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: HK12.00 cents per
share), which subject to the approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, is payable on or about Friday,
21 August 2015 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Friday, 26 June 2015. Together with the
interim dividend of HK3.00 cents per share which was paid on 13 October
2014, the total dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 will amount
to HK16.00 cents per share (2013: HK19.00 cents per share).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interest of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited financial statements as appropriate, is set out on page 7.

This summary is not part of the audited financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in note
14 and note 19 to the financial statements.

PROPERTIES
Particulars of major properties held by the Group are set out on pages 241 to
252.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to
the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES
Particulars of the Company’s and the Group’s interests in its principal
associates are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Details of the bank and other borrowings of the Company and the Group are
set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share options
during the year, together with the reasons thereof, are set out in note 36 and

note 37 to the financial statements.

RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during

the year are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
amounted to HK$901,932,000 of which HK$865,287,000 has been proposed

as final dividend for the year.

INTEREST CAPITALISATION
Interest of approximately HK$1,106,821,000 was capitalised during the year

in respect of the Group’s property development and investment projects.

PENSION SCHEMES
Details of the pension schemes are set out in note 2.4 to the financial

statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, both the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers and the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s sales and purchases

respectively.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest of the

Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. LU Hua (Chairman)

Mr. GAO Shengyuan (President)
Mr. MOU Yong

Mr. LIU Chong

Non-executive directors:
Dr. WU Jiesi
Mr. HUANG Yige

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael

Mr. LI Wai Keung

Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David

In accordance with Article 101 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. LIU Chong, Dr. WU Jiesi and Mr. LI Wai Keung will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and considers that all independent non-
executive directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the

guidelines.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 31 to 40 of this annual

report.

The change in information of the directors of the Company since the date of

the Company’s Interim Report 2014 is set out below:

Mr. HUANG Yige was appointed as a director of China Resources SZITIC
Investment Co., Ltd on 3 November 2014.

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael resigned as chairman and an independent
non-executive director of Cypress Jade Agricultural Holdings Limited (875.
HK) on 2 January 2015.

Mr. LI Wai Keung was appointed as a management accounting advisor of the
Ministry of Finance, PRC on 21 July 2014.

Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David resigned as a non-executive director of CIAM
Group Limited (378.HK) on 9 March 2015 and was appointed as the
chairman of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority on 17 March
2015.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT MEMBERS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the directors’ and senior management members’ emoluments and
of the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9

to the financial statements respectively.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
None of the directors of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
No directors had a material interest in any contracts of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of

its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES
Save as disclosed below, none of the directors of the Company has any direct
or indirect interest in a business which competes or may compete with the

business of the Group as required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

Mr. LU Hua, Mr. GAO Shengyuan and Mr. MOU Yong, executive directors
of the Company, and Mr. HUANG Yige, a non-executive director of the
Company, are currently directors of Shum Yip Group Limited (“SYG”),
the ultimate holding company of the Company. Through its subsidiaries
and associates, SYG has interests in property investment and development

businesses in the PRC.

Mr. LU Hua and Mr. GAO Shengyuan currently are also non-executive
directors of Road King Infrastructure Limited (“Road King”), an associated
company of the Company, whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (1098.HK) and engages in property investment and
development businesses. Further details of the business of Road King can be

found in the latest annual report of Road King.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 5 June 2002 (the “Old
Scheme”), which expired on 5 June 2012. Upon expiry of the Old Scheme,
no further options may be granted but in all other respects the provisions
of the Old Scheme shall remain in full force and effect and all outstanding
options granted under the Old Scheme are continue to be exercisable in

accordance with their terms of issue.

After the expiry of the Old Scheme, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme on 22 June 2012 (the “New Scheme”). The major terms of the

New Scheme are as follows:

1. The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide incentive and reward
to the participants to encourage them to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefits of the Company

and its shareholders as a whole.
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The eligible participants of the New Scheme are the employee or
director (including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive director) of any member of the group comprising the
Company, Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, Shum Yip Group Limited, the holding
company of Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited, and their
subsidiaries and associated companies from time to time (the
“SY Group”) or any employee, partner or director of any business
consultant, joint venture partner, financial adviser and legal adviser of
and to any member of the SY Group, as the Board may at it absolute

discretion determine.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of Shares in issue as at the date of adopting the New
Scheme. The 10% limit was refreshed at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 19 June 2014 whereby the Company was
authorised to grant further options carrying rights to subscribe for
up to 538,252,770 shares, representing 10% of the total number of the
Company’s shares in issue as at the date of the said meeting, under
the New Scheme. As at 26 March 2015, the total number of shares
available for issue under the New Scheme is 538,252,770, representing
approximately 8.09% of the shares in issue of the Company as at that
date.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted pursuant to the New Scheme to each
participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue, unless otherwise separately approved
by the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting. Further, any
grant of option to a participant who is a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, which would result in the shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
under the New Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
to him in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant (i) representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue; and (ii) having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the shares of the Company at the date of
each grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000, is subject to the approval of the

shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

The exercise period of any option granted under the New Scheme is to
be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, and shall expire
no later than the 10th anniversary of date upon which the option is

granted and accepted in accordance with the New Scheme.
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6. There is neither any minimum period for which an option must be
held, nor any performance target which is needed to be achieved before
the option can be exercised unless otherwise determined by the Board

and specified at the time of the offer.

7.  The period open for acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option
shall be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion provided
that it shall not be opened for acceptance after the 10th anniversary of
the date upon which the option is granted and accepted in accordance
with the New Scheme or after the New Scheme has been terminated
in accordance with the provisions of the New Scheme, whichever is
earlier. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option shall be
made with a non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee.

8.  The exercise price shall be a price determined solely by the Board and
shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant; and (ii)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

9. The New Scheme shall be valid and effective until 22 June 2022 unless
otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms stipulated therein.

Please refer to note 37 to the financial statements for further information of
the Old Scheme and New Scheme.

During the year, 123,134,000 options were granted under the New Scheme
and 1,810,400 options were exercised under the Old Scheme, 1,999,909
options were cancelled and 3,675,200 options were lapsed under the Old
Scheme, and 2,068,000 options were lapsed under the New Scheme. As at 26
March 2015, 49,809,600 options and 132,118,000 options granted under the

Old Scheme and New Scheme were still outstanding respectively.
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The particulars of, and movements in, the share options outstanding under

the Old Scheme and the New Scheme during the year are set out below:

Directors
i
LU Hua 4,016,000 - - - - 4,016,000 19/7/2010 19/7/2012-18/7/2015* 239
EE ZEZ-FELATAE ZF-ZFLATARE
“EF-REEA AR
1,558,000 - - - - 1,558,000 10/4/2013 19/7/2014-18/7/2015 3.16
ZZ-=FRATE ZEF-WELATARE
“EF-RELATAR
- 7,830,000 - - - 7,830,000 28/1/2014 28/1/2016-27/1/2019* 2.85
ZE-WE—-AZHAR ZF-AFE—AZHARZE
“F AL
GAO Shengyuan 1,120,000 - - - - 1,120,000 10/4/2013 19/7/2014-18/7/2015 3.16
HET ZZ-ZFNATE ZEF-EELATARE
“F—REELA AR
- 7,440,000 - - - 7,440,000 28/1/2014 28/1/2016-27/1/2019* 2.85
ZE-NE-AZFAH ZE-AE-AZTAHZE
AL
MOU Yong 4,016,000 - - = = 4,016,000 19/7/2010 19/7/2012-18/7/2015* 2.39
5 SE-BELATAR ZE-CHELATAEE
ZZ-RFELA AR
- 5,246,000 - - - 5,246,000 28/1/2014 28/1/2016-27/1/2019* 2.85
ZE-PNE-AZFAH ZE-AE-AZTAHZE
“F-E-RA-
LIU Chong 4,016,000 - - - = 4,016,000 19/7/2010 19/7/2012-18/7/2015* 2.39
Bl “E-BELATAE ZE-CHELATAEE
ZE-RFELA AR
- 5,246,000 - - = 5,246,000 28/1/2014 28/1/2016-27/1/2019* 2.85
ZE-NE-AZFAH ZE-AE-AZTAHZE
“E-NE-RA R
14,726,000 25,762,000 - - - 40,488,000
Other employees
JuER
In aggregate 45,247,109 - (1,810,400) (3,675,200) (1,999,909) 37,761,600 19/7/2010 19/7/2012-18/7/2015* 239
a3t “E-ZEELATAR CER-CHELATARE
“EZ-REEA AR
8,374,000 - - - - 8,374,000 10/4/2013 19/7/2014-18/7/2015 3.16
“Z-=FEA+E ZZ-WELATARE
“Z-RELA+AHR
- 97,372,000 - (2,068,000) - 95,304,000 28/1/2014 28/1/2016-27/1/2019* 2.85
ZE-NWE—-AZHAR ZEF-AFE—AZHARE
“F-NE-RA-tEA
53,621,109 97,372,000 (1,810,400) (5,743,200) (1,999,909) 141,439,600
68,347,109 123,134,000 (1,810,400) (5,743,200) (1,999,909) 181,927,600

ZIEIHE 2 R K s )




Shenzhen Investment Limited

I RA PRA A

Annual Report 2014 43

63

Report of the Directors

Sk

* Options shall be exercisable in the following manner and subject to performance

review:—

IR 1% T 81y SXAT B S A2 3R B A
fR

40% at any time after the expiry of 2 years from the date of grant up to 3 years from

the date of grant

2 I A T 1 2 AR AR R = A A AT R ]

70% at any time after the expiry of 3 years from the date of grant up to 4 years from

the date of grant

2 I = A T 1 2 R AR I 5 g 2 A AT R ]

100% at any time after the expiry of 4 years from the date of grant up to 5 years from

the date of grant

IR I A T 1 2 AR AR A A 2 A AT R ]

Note: The closing share price on 27 January 2014, being the date immediately before

the date on such options were granted, was HK$2.70.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and any associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests in short positions which
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) adopted by the Company were as

follows:
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Long positions in the shares (“Shares”) and underlying shares of the

Company:

AT (T 1) FAH B R0y 2 S

LU Hua Beneficial owner 1,122,383
& 3 j-EE/ ZEDN
GAO Shengyuan Beneficial owner -
[SESD HadEA A
MOU Yong Beneficial owner -
25 J X 2PN
LIU Chong Beneficial owner -
5 J=EE XS DN
WU Jiesi Beneficial owner 3,400,000
RAER j-EE/ ZEDN
LI Wai Keung Beneficial owner 1,131,866

it A A

Note: The percentage was calculated based on 6,656,055,289 Shares in issue as at 31
December 2014.

Interests of the directors in the share options of the Company are stated in

detail in the preceding section “Share Option Scheme”.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors and chief executive of the
Company had, as at 31 December 2014, any interests or short positions in
any Shares and underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (which is the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests in
short positions which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

13,404,000 14,526,383 0.22
8,560,000 8,560,000 0.13
9,262,000 9,262,000 0.14
9,262,000 9,262,000 0.14

= 3,400,000 0.05
- 1,131,866 0.02
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Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debts securities (including debentures) of, the Company or its associated
corporations and none of the directors, or their spouse or children under
the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for equity or debt securities of the

Company or its associated corporations, or had exercised any such rights.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any director or chief executive of the Company, as at
31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the shareholders
(other than directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the

SFO, were as follows:

Interest in Shares of the Company:

B b SCHT e # Ah - AR AT TR ) A
) AT ] B S 2 ) A 2 BT 2 B > 4
2R ) L o ] R S A 2 ) CEL AR g I
Py BB b O (BUARRTR) TR > TR AT
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E:Y 3

R AR A0 3 58U S AT BN B TR AN
RoFE—PEF A= —H > B (R
A R S AT BN BBRAN) AR ] B
TN B T 03 v AT B AR 5 3% 5 T 0 S W 4610 56
XV 552 J 565 343 T 22 A6 ST m) A 2 ) % % 2
it MORSE > BRRC B AR 2 R AR PE R IR I R
A9 565 336 M JEAT 1 2 Bk e b 22 A 2 I ik e
T

FEA A By Z MR

Shum Yip Group Limited * Interest in controlled corporation 4,480,478,142 - 67.31
WEEEARAF SEYEE M 2 R (Note 1)
(BfFsEL)

Shum Yip Holdings Beneficial owner 4,419,373,328 - 66.40

Company Limited HaEA A

G (EE) ARAF Interest in controlled corporation 61,104,814 - 0.92
TV MR (Note 2)
(Bt &E2)

* The English translation is for identification purpose only
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Notes:

1. Shum Yip Group Limited * is deemed to be interested in the 4,480,478,142 Shares
Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited (“SYH”) is interested in by virtue of SYH being

its direct wholly-owned subsidiary.

2. These 61,104,814 Shares were held by Goldclass Industrial Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Successful Years Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by
Shum Yip Finance Company Limited (“SYF”). SYF is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
SYH and accordingly, SYH is deemed to be interested in these 61,104,814 Shares.

3. The percentage was calculated based on 6,656,055,289 Shares in issue as at 31
December 2014.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Company had not
been notified by any person (other than directors and chief executives of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions for the year in accordance with
applicable accounting standards are set out in note 44 to the financial
statements. The Company has complied with the applicable disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for
those related party transactions which constituted non-exempt connected
transactions (as summarized below). Other related party transactions did
not constitute connected transactions nor constituted connected transactions
but were exempted from all disclosure and independent shareholders’

approval requirements under the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION
Set out below is information in relation to the connected transaction carried
out by the Group during the year, particulars of which were previously

disclosed in the announcement and circular of the Company.

On 27 January 2014, the Company, Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited
(“SYH”), the controlling shareholder of the Company, Shenzhen Nongke
Holdings Company Limited (“Nongke”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
SYH and Shum Yip Group Limited (“SYG”), the holding company of SYH,
entered into an acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”)
pursuant to which, among others, the Company agreed to acquire and SYH
agreed to sell the entire issued share capital of Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture
Company Limited (“SZ Bio-Agricultural”) (the “Acquisition”). Nongke
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SZ Bio-Agricultural. The parties to the
Acquisition Agreement entered into a supplemental acquisition agreement
on 8 May 2014 (the “Supplemental Acquisition Agreement”) to make certain
amendments to the Acquisition Agreement. Pursuant to the Acquisition
Agreement (as amended by the Supplemental Acquisition Agreement),
the consideration for the Acquisition is RMB5,589,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$6,955,203,105) (subject to adjustment, if any) which is
to be settled (i) as to HK$3,477,601,551.06 (equivalent to approximately
RMB2,794,499,999), by way of allotment and issue of 1,061,538,935 new
shares of the Company credited as fully paid at the issue price of HK$3.276
per share; (ii) as to HK$2,871,286,794.34 (equivalent to approximately
RMB2,307,283,001) in cash, at completion date; and (iii) as to the balance
in the amount of HK$606,314,759.60 (subject to adjustments) in cash
after completion in the manner described thereunder. As SYH is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of SYG and the direct controlling shareholder of the
Company, both SYG and SYH are connected persons of the Company and
accordingly, the Acquisition constituted a major and connected transaction
for the Company and is subject to the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.
The Acquisition was approved by the independent shareholders on 29 May
2014 and its completion took place on 22 August 2014. For further details,
please refer to circular of the Company dated 12 May 2014.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below is information in relation to certain continuing connected
transactions carried out by the Group during the year, particulars of which
were previously disclosed in the announcements and where applicable,

circulars of the Company.

1. On 8 April 2013, Nongke Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Nongke
Property”), the then wholly-owned subsidiary of Shum Yip Group
Limited (“SYG”) and Shum Yip Land Co., Ltd. (“Shum Yip Land”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an estate agency
agreement (“Estate Agency Agreement”) pursuant to which Nongke
Property appointed Shum Yip Land as the exclusive estate agent of
Nongke Property regarding the sale of residential units located at i £
KMFF 111, in Nong Xuan Road (J2HFFE) at the Nongke area (JEFHH
%) in Shenzhen City, the PRC (the “Property”) for a term commencing
from the date of the Estate Agency Agreement and ending on the
earlier of (i) the expiry of 12 months from the date when the first batch
of residential units located at the Property are made available for sale,
which date shall be after the issuance of the first pre-sale permit(s) (¥
EFFAT#) in respect of the Property; or (ii) the sales of all targeted
residential units located at the Property. An agency fee equivalent to
1.9% of the gross proceeds of sale of the residential units located at
the Property in respect of which sale and purchase agreements have
been entered into through the agency services performed by Shum Yip
Land, is payable by Nongke Property to Shum Yip Land and the annual
cap for the 12 month period commencing from the date when the first
batch of residential units located at the Property are made available
for sale is RMB80 million. Nongke Property was then an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of SYG, the ultimate holding company of
the Company, accordingly, Nongke Property was a connected person
of the Company and the transactions contemplated under the Estate
Agency Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to
the reporting, announcement and annual review requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 8 April 2013. With the completion of the Acquisition
(as defined under the paragraph “Connected Transaction” above)
on 22 August 2014, Nongke Property became an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the Estate Agency Agreement no longer constitute

continuing connected transaction of the Company.
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On 27 January 2014, SYG and Nongke entered into (a) an agricultural
land entrustment agreement (AL Entrustment Agreement”) pursuant
to which SYG will appoint Nongke (i) to hold and manage certain
agricultural lands and related assets; and (ii) to authorize Nongke and
its wholly-owned subsidiaries to manage such agricultural lands and
related assets in accordance with their existing operations, in each
case, at the cost of SYG for a term commencing on the completion
date of the Acquisition (as defined under the paragraph “Connected
Transaction” above) and ending on 31 December 2016, and Nongke is
entitled to a management fee with an annual cap of RMBI.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2014 and RMBI1.7 million for each of
the years ending 31 December 2015 and 2016 respectively; and (b) a
floral market entrustment agreement (“NFM Entrustment Agreement’,
together with AL Entrustment Agreement, the “Entrustment
Agreements”) pursuant to which SYG will appoint Nongke to handle
legal procedures with respect to the investment and operation
management of Ji£ FEARLE AL A R ¥ (Agricultural Popular
Science and Flora Expo), the social car parking space and certain
commercial facilities at a parcel of land at Futian District; and (ii) to
demolish all the building structures currently erected thereon pursuant
to the relevant requirements, at the cost of SYG, for the period from
the completion date of the Acquisition to 31 December 2016. Nongke is
entitled to a management fee with an annual cap of RMB0.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014 and RMB1.0 million for each of the
years ending 31 December 2015 and 2016 respectively. As SYG is the
ultimate holding company of the Company and Nongke will become
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company upon completion of the
Acquisition, the transactions contemplated under the Entrustment
Agreements constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company. As the Entrustment Agreements are on better terms to
the Company, the transactions contemplated under the Entrustment
Agreements are subject to the reporting, announcement, annual review
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules notwithstanding that all the applicable percentage ratios
are less than 0.1%. The Entrustment Agreements and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were approved by independent shareholders
on 29 May 2014. For further details, please refer to the circular dated
12 May 2014.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors had reviewed the foresaid
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that they have been

entered into:
1.  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
2. on normal commercial terms or better; and

3. according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the

Company as a whole.

The Company’s external auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules, the auditor of the Company, has provided a letter to the Board
confirming that nothing has come to their attention to cause them to believe

that the continuing connected transactions:
(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Company if the transactions involve provision of

services by the Company;

(iii) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the

agreements governing the transactions; and
(iv) have exceeded the cap.

A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of its listed securities during the year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this annual report,
there is sufficient public float, as not less than 25% of the Company’s issued

shares are held by the public.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER
RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES
Banking facilities with covenants in relation to specific performance of the

controlling shareholder:

By an agreement (“lst Facility Agreement”) dated 28 September 2010
entered into between, among others, the Company as borrower and a
syndicate of lenders (“Lenders”), a transferable term loan facility of up
to US$400 million (“Ist Facility”) is made available by the Lenders to the
Company on the terms and conditions as stated therein. The 1st Facility
was made available to the Company within 6 months from the date of the
Ist Facility Agreement and the Company shall repay to the Lenders in full
of any outstanding advances made thereunder on the date falling 48 months

from the date of the 1st Facility Agreement.

By an agreement (“2nd Facility Agreement”) dated 16 September 2011
entered into between the Company as borrower and a syndicate of lenders,
a US$209 million transferable term loan facility and a HK$1,026 million
transferable term loan facility (“2nd Facility”) were provided to the
Company on the terms and conditions as stated therein. The 2nd Facility
shall be repaid by the Company in instalments with the last repayment date
falling 48 months from the date of the 2nd Facility Agreement

By a letter (“3rd Facility Agreement”) dated 17 October 2011 entered into
between the Company as borrower and a bank, a HK$600 million term
loan facility and a CNY200 million term loan facility, which aggregate
amount shall not exceed HK$800 million (“3rd Facility”) was provided to
the Company on the terms and conditions as stated therein. The 3rd Facility
shall be repaid by the Company in instalments with the last repayment date
falling 36 months from the date of the 3rd Facility Agreement.

By an agreement (“4th Facility Agreement”) dated 21 June 2012 entered
into between the Company as borrower and a bank, a HK$200 million
transferable term loan facility (“4th Facility”) was provided to the Company.
The 4th Facility shall be repaid by the Company in one lump sum on the
date falling 36 months from the date of the 4th Facility Agreement.
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By an agreement (“5th Facility Agreement”) dated 25 June 2013 entered into
between the Company as borrower and a bank, a HK$300 million (or its
equivalent in US dollars) transferable term loan facility (“5th Facility”) was
provided to the Company. The 5th Facility shall be repaid by the Company
in one lump sum on the date falling 36 months from the first drawdown
date.

By an agreement (“6th Facility Agreement”) dated 9 October 2013 entered
into between the Company as borrower and certain banks, up to a principal
amount of US$235 million (or equivalent to approximately HK$1,833
million) transferable term loan facility and up to a principal amount of
HK$1,654 million transferable term loan facility (“6th Facility”) were
provided to the Company. The 6th Facility shall be repaid by the Company
in four instalments of various percentages of the total amount of borrowings,
with all outstanding amount shall be fully repaid on the date falling 60
months from the date of the 6th Facility Agreement.

By an agreement (“7th Facility Agreement”) dated 25 August 2014 entered
into between the Company as borrower and certain banks, up to principal
amount of US$435 million (equivalent to approximately HK$3,393 million)
transferable term loan facility and up to a principal amount of HK$2,510
million transferable term loan facility (“7th Facility”) were provided to
the Company. The 7th Facility shall be repaid by the Company in three
instalments of various percentages of the total amount of borrowings, with
all outstanding amount shall be fully repaid on the date falling 60 months
from the date of the 7th Facility Agreement.

By an agreement (“8th Facility Agreement”, together with the 1st Facility,
2nd Facility Agreement, 3rd Facility Agreement, 4th Facility Agreement,
5th Facility Agreement, 6th Facility Agreement and 7th Facility Agreement
collectively referred to as the “Facility Agreements”) dated 4 December 2014
entered into between the Company as borrower and a bank, up to principal
amount of HK$400 million transferable term loan facility (“8th Facility”)
was provided to the Company. The 8th Facility shall be fully repaid in 36

months commencing from the date of the 8th Facility Agreement.
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Under the Facility Agreements, it will be an event of default if Shum Yip
Holdings Company Limited ceases to own beneficially at least 35% of
the issued share capital of the Company, ceases to be the single largest
shareholder of the Company, ceases to have management control of the
Company, or ceases to remain beneficially owned as to at least 51% by the
Shenzhen Municipal People’s Government of the People’s Republic of China
and at any time after the happening of an event of default, all amounts due

under the facilities may be declared to be immediately due and payable.

As at 31 December 2014, all advances made under the 1st Facility Agreement
and the 3rd Facility Agreement had been fully repaid.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Group’s results for the year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
Information on the work of Audit Committee and its composition are set

out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 47 to 48.

AUDITORS
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
have been audited by Ernst & Young who will retire and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

LU Hua

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2015
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Independent Auditors’ Report
T S AZ Bl

Ernst & Young ZKE IS
22/F, CITIC Tower EBPBAZEIR
ﬁ i 1 Tim Mei Avenue S K E2218
7 Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of Shenzhen Investment Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen
Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 76 to 240, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 80 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents

of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
T S AZ Bl

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
26 March 2015

R Y FE AT (A)

FALW BORATRR P DA IO B A T s kR
PR R DR BRI IR o TR Y
PP PR A A S 1) 4 B - B4 B Al R
FE S R T E B A B R A A R B R
BRI B JEL B o fE BF A % S IR B o BT
L B 5% ) A R S T LR T 1 b B B
UL BN 5 G BB 3R AR A ) A AR ) - DAt
N DE: 3 s R (BN P B2 = /A D i 6
il A9 R AE B R L - BN LA A S A
PR B0 & O 9 5 8 B BT A i) wh A
FHAO S HEVE - DA R A A B R A R
FIHRITK -

BEAE > BEITES 2w IRE TR
WL 2 AR AR IR

HERR > A MR R CARSR A v
5 3 ¥ JU) LTI O OF M R W BN R R 3R
M ZF— AR =4 — H B B IR
UL 2 H Ik AR B2 B A T Y s M) S 3
B WO REE A ARG Z AR

PLEE T
i
SR -HE=ZATRH



Shenzhen Investment Limited

TRYIFERCA FRA )

Annual Report 2014 4t

76

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

A RAREAR

Year ended 31 December 2014

L A e N

2014 2013
—R—ys —F =
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
! T-#IT Tt
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FRA R s
REVENUE &3 5 13,827,105 9,778,807
Cost of sales BH S A (9,754,161) (6,177,192)
Gross profit EF 4,072,944 3,601,615
Other income and gains HABWA B FIAS 5 2,449,129 1,611,207
(Decrease)/increase in fair value B AR R IR FUE
of equity investments at A REREZ
fair value through ANRME (B,
profit or loss, net I REEEE (1,522) 715
Increase in fair value of investment TGN E
properties a4 764,085 624,046
Recognition of change in fair value FrEf & Z E %L
of completed properties held for L/ES S EE VS
sale upon transfer to investment LY E X RGNS
properties S 1) 17 846,820 -
Selling and distribution expenses SHE Koy s B (412,084) (254,882)
Administrative expenses FT LB 3 (1,000,185) (736,505)
Other expenses HAbBASZ (820,054) (184,606)
Finance costs Rl LA 7 (742,762) (635,535)
Share of profits and losses of: 5 A v R K s AR
Joint ventures A /N 46,484 219,169
Associates /N 650,117 831,933
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM FRERERBZ
CONTINUING OPERATIONS B B w52 1 6 5,852,972 5,077,157
Income tax expense BT A8 B 3 10 (2,348,878) (1,976,197)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

2 /N RN Year ended 31 December 2014
&Rﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂ% WEE—IET ] = — H IR
2014 2013
el IV =
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
B Tt T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM R R 2
CONTINUING OPERATIONS A PN ¥ A 3,504,094 3,100,960
DISCONTINUED OPERATION IR FR S T
Profit for the year from a discontinued I 48 28 S
operation £ A ¥ A1) 1,947 10,029
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A P ¥ A1) 3,506,041 3,110,989
Attributable to: THIEN, -
Owners of the parent L Y/NEIE VEPN 11 3,131,316 2,738,432
Non-controlling interests FEFE R 4 374,725 372,557
3,506,041 3,110,989

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BE/\ =] 3%/ [t it 25
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF  #H AJEL

THE PARENT R A 13
Basic HEA
- For profit for the year — 4E N5 HKS53.62 cents #lll | HK58.97 cents ¥l
- For profit from continuing operations — RS 2T U £ HK53.62 cents ¥l | HK58.85 cents sl
Diluted fH e
- For profit for the year — AE A I A HK53.60 cents #iflll | HK58.55 cents # Il
— For profit from continuing operations — RR KRB 2 Ui £ HK53.60 cents ¥l | HK58.44 cents sl

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are disclosed in TR A A B HE UR S4B IR IS 2 R o R B
note 12 to the financial statements. B R k12 o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

R NL & E S

Year ended 31 December 2014
BWE - F—UES T = —H IR

2014 2013
&R PULE —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#IT THIT

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 4 7 3,506,041 3,110,989
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME i 4 1fj it 2%
Other comprehensive income to AR S [ R

be reclassified to profit or loss in I ERG

subsequent periods: HoAt A2 W #s
Available-for-sale investments: CIRF R ==E 4 < g

Changes in fair value APIRIEL L) 29,688 (6,436)

Income tax effect RN (4,252) 1,609

25,436 (4,827)

Share of other comprehensive (loss)/ JRRE A 88 ) At 4 T

income of associates (E18) s (55,986) 135,100
Exchange differences on translation of WA T2

foreign operations [ 58, 25 25 (823,940) 572,268
Exchange fluctuation reserve released upon 8 — [H] [} B 28 7] S AR 1E i B

disposal of a subsidiary and deemed — [ N ] B A% 55 [

disposal of equity interest in an associate [ bi, B Bl it fhs (131,230) -
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income A% 1 [0 01 B

to be reclassified to profit or loss in SR F A i 2 HoAth

subsequent periods 2TH (E1R) /W FHE (985,720) 702,541
Other comprehensive income not to FLAR U T i AN

be reclassified to profit or loss in HH D EER L

subsequent periods: HoAt 4> Wi £
Gain on revaluation of property, plant and /542 ~ E &

equipment A 2 FAF 242,536 -
Income tax effect Pris Bl (60,634) -

181,902 -

Share of other comprehensive income of JRE AL B 455 A ]

associates Al 4 TR i 1,640 =
Net other comprehensive income not HAE M A e

to be reclassified to profit or loss in A EEE L

subsequent periods At 4 THT Ui 4 3 AH 183,542 F
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2 /N S Year ended 31 December 2014
AR B =B ] = A B I
2014 2013
TRy ===
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt T
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ ARy 3 2 T
INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF B18), Was
TAX FrBits (802,178) 702,541
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AR A TH
FOR THE YEAR W 3% 48R 2,703,863 3,813,530
Attributable to: THIEAG -
Owners of the parent [SYAIE ZEDN 2,350,324 3,391,987
Non-controlling interests R AR 353,539 421,543
2,703,863 3,813,530
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A M BIR DR

31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

31 December

31 December

2014 2013
e S UV S TR
+ZH=+—8H +-H=4+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i AR Fisor
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ) B
Property, plant and equipment W~ WE Kk A 14 3,240,502 2,697,625
Prepaid land lease payments TE AT - M A 15 43,237 45,463
Goodwill [ 16 322,765 322,856
Investment properties TG 19 20,018,594 15,299,549
Investments in associates Wb N w1 & 22 6,134,980 5,929,954
Investments in joint ventures BN ARG 21 1,904,139 343,719
Available-for-sale investments A it R 23 140,471 39,790
Other long term assets Hih B & E 24 1,793,370 1,584,056
Deferred tax assets 0% 2 A TEUE 34 1,213,842 892,725
Breeding biological assets A PEAE Y 26 7,200 =
Pledged deposits LAY 30 - 17,277
Total non-current assets JE BN A P A 34,819,100 27,173,014
CURRENT ASSETS A e
Inventories pecy 25 136,448 125,974
Completed properties held for sale HFEfGEZ BB R 2 17 14,708,217 8,434,699
Properties under development R h 2 18 30,794,948 28,356,871
Trading biological assets THFEMEA W & 26 10,188 -
Trade receivables JRE Wi B K 27 714,764 416,122
Prepayments, deposits and other TAATEIE ~ 5T 4 1%
receivables HoAth FE ISR IH 28 3,660,743 4,117,358
Equity investments at fair value through B #4845 $% A\ FU(EHFIE
profit or loss Z R E 29 3,116 11,011
Pledged deposits e A7 K 30 31,228 13,594
Restricted cash 3 PR3 4 30 1,250,679 913,383
Cash and cash equivalents B kR &% BY 30 8,375,476 6,534,049
59,685,807 48,923,061
Assets of a disposal group classified as held 4345 /3 FFERF & 2
for sale HEHGZEE - 795,450
Total current assets LB B AR 59,685,807 49,718,511
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B AR DLAR

31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

31 December

31 December

2014 2013
e S 12 TR AR
+=ZH=+—H +=ZH=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
iR FHIL T
CURRENT LIABILITIES B~ Ki
Interest-bearing bank and other FEESRAT B H At
borrowings [ERss 31 12,057,310 12,121,869
Trade payables JEAT E ) iR 32 4,314,398 1,028,975
Other payables and accruals HoAh AT R TE K R 33 9,975,943 10,134,523
Due to the immediate holding company JEAT B HER AN B Gk 44(d)(61) 51,171 31,446
Due to the ultimate holding company JEAT B A A IR IA 44(d)(1) 3,054,840 3,898,268
Tax payable JEEAT B IH 5,389,732 3,177,118
34,843,394 30,392,199
Liabilities directly associated with the B iR E 2
assets classified as held for sale EiE HIEHEZ Ak - 424,363
Total current liabilities Vi B A (AR 34,843,394 30,816,562
NET CURRENT ASSETS T A 24,842,413 18,901,949
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES A R B £ 59,661,513 46,074,963
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES e B A %
Interest-bearing bank and other TR ERAT S oA
borrowings [El=s 31 17,341,508 12,167,504
Due to the immediate holding company  MEf] EEEFERA FIFIA  44(d)(ii) 323,208 -
Due to the ultimate holding company JEAT B SRR AN R R IE 44(d)(d) 1,412,597 1,221,024
Deferred income PRIEUTA 35 28,183 =
Deferred tax liabilities 8 SE ol TH A K 34 7,782,382 5,107,089
Total non-current liabilities JE LB £ AR 26,887,878 18,495,617
Net assets & E HE 32,773,635 27,579,346
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31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

31 December

31 December

2014 2013
S —g—=f
+oAZ+—H | A=A
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B Tl Tt
EQUITY HE2S
Equity attributable to owners of the parent /% e A M4 #E 25
Share capital: nominal value JEEAS « TH{E 36 - 269,053
Other statutory capital reserves Hfth 33 1 B A A - 10,966,253
Share capital and other statutory capital A K HoAth 5 58
reserves AN 36 14,564,800 11,235,306
Other reserves Ho At fit 5 38(a) 15,065,773 13,456,778
Proposed final dividend YR A A I B 12 865,287 645,727
30,495,860 25,337,811
Non-controlling interests FEVE R A 2,277,775 2,241,535
Total equity HE 25 A AR 32,773,635 27,579,346
GAO Shengyuan LIU Chong
[EEw B
Director Director
FzH FH
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Year ended 31 December 2014
BWE - F—UES T = —H IR

Attributable to owmers of the parent

B B
Available-
for-sale
Share Copital ~ Share Asset - investment Exchange Proposed Non-
Sre premium  Other redemption  option  Capitel revaluation revaluation  Stetutory fluctuation  Retained final controling
apial accomt®  reserve  reserve’ reserve. reserve. reserve. reserve. reserve. reserve. profits dividend Totdl interests Totaequity
il
Rt HE BE  REER Ei%e Rkl Hh
Bh BB CURE RERR  RE WARE ERRE  ORE MeRE BE RWRN O RE MR B e
Notes  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO0  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOD0  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSM00  HKS000
Bt fhr Thr Thkr T T T TE Thr T Thr Tkt T T TE T
At January 2013 R-F-=E-f-H 196451 5714000 (GIL3) 206 99 9019 6436l 3660 L4703 3408383 6510077 410192 175478% 1961947 19509843
Proft or the year ERidl 1738430 18430 35T 3110989
Other comprehensive income forthe ~ ZF/UL{B2 i
yoar: Wi
Changes in frvalue ofavalble for- -~ LA EREZ A
sale investments, net of tax 20 Rt (48m) (48m) (48m)
Share ofother comprehensive income of {58 A Efg
asocites 2l %5 134805 13100 135100
Exchange diffrences on transaton of BHEMER,
frein operations Ei2E I AR A% S
Toal comprehensive ncome forthe ~ E/2 il
year aE %5 (48 658,087 2,738,43 3301987 4154 3813930
Final 2012 dividend inthe formof csh W& AL
and new shares ZR-CHRERE 123 787 4180 (155540)  (410192)  (15007) (145007)
Isue of shres relating o acquiifon of %7 UE—MBAT
astbsidiry HRmRh MR M6 43 - 4639286 469286
Bquitysetedshare opton expense WA 2 R X 37 - = 6,088 6088 088
Exerciseofshareoptions i b 58 36 (7,001) 15,063 15,063
Transfer ofshare apton reserve pon. R EELRA
thelpseand cancellationof e~ s iF A
options BliEs (9807 9807 - -
Share of eserves of asociates Eltmaimps 2007 29007 29007
Interim 2013 dividend n the formof ~ WE& TR Z
cashand e shares 7 R 123 L B (371,160) (13019 (130619)
Proposed fina 2013 ividend RECZ-=ERERE 1 - (#s7m) 6570
Divdends ped tonon-contrallng. ~~ ZFERRTRZ
shareholders A - - (14195)  (14195)
Transer from retained prof' -] 108837 (128837)
At31 December 2013 PoE-=EfZf=1-H 26905 10964217 (31L368) 206 4509 9019 64656  (L16S) LT6TA0  AQ66AT0  TSTS0 64727 253378 JMISE 27579346
* Included in other statutory capital reserves in the consolidated statement of financial * RIS G MBIR LR 2 HoAth i G A Al -

position.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2014
WE T —IET T = H IR

Attibutableto ownersof the parent
BATHER Lt
Avalable-
for-sale
Share Copital -~ Share Asset investment Exchange Proposed Non-
Sre  premum  Other redemption  option  Capitel revaluation revaluation  Stetutory fluctuation  Retained  final controling
apil aoount reserve meser reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profis  divdend Totdl inteests Total equiy
e
R Wi e BERE gk it ] *h
BEOBIEORERE  BR 0 RE WARE  BE BB MRRE R RAEN  RE M B BN
Notes | HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
e | Hr T R Ot Tl T TE R T T Ot T T TE TER
A nary 04 HoB-mE-f- WO 0TGN A% B B09 M (IF) LT KA TN TN BIML M5 I8
Proft forthe yeer L - - - - - - - - - BN B ) B R K
Other comprehensive ncome forthe /L {B2
yoar: Wi
Changesin fr value of avalblefor- -~ A EREZ AR
sie imestments, et of tax 24, B - - - - - - D - - - - B - B
Gain on revaluaton of roperty,plant 473 » W st [
and equipment, nt of fax 2R Rtk - - - - 181,902 - - - - I8 - 1L
Share of other comprehensive income of EFEHFE A Al
asocies et - - - 1640 St - - (343 (54340
Exchange fuctuaton reserve reeased. i EMBARR
wpon disposalofasubsidiaryand.  fEH R
deemed disposal of euiy nerestin ~ ARRERMIRZ
sttt Exsaki - - - -omm - - () (131230)
Bnchange differences on trnsaionof - B HINERZ
fregn petatons EiZR - - - - - - - - - -0 (§%)
Totel comprehensive income for the ERelE
year 45 - - - - - - IR B4 - (989970) 3131316 - L3034 3359 2703863
Final 2013 dividends inthe form of new DIERIFAZ
shue “F-ZERERS 0| - - - - - - - - - 5T (49 - (143
Intrim 2014 dividends “E-EARS I - - - - - - - - - (19868 - (19868 - (19968
Acqistion ofa subsidiry fe-RNELA 09| 280468 - . - . - e - - 306 - 306
Acquistion of non-controling nerets B £ ER 161 - - - - - - S (4 T4
Disposdl ofsusidais HERRAT 4 - - - - - (31984 (127 6459 - - (1409 (12409
Brecie of share apton it 5 554 - - S A - - - - - -4 30
Lapsedand surrener ofshare optons B3R R EBEFR 37 - - - - (B8 - - - - i - (39 (39
Equtyseted shareopionenpense.  WRAEIZBRERE ¥ - - - - U - - - - - - B - B
Share of eserves of assocates EltRANRE - - - ) - - - - - - ) )
Divdends pd tonon-controllng. £ ERRTRZ
shaeholders i - - - - - - - - - - - - - (168366)  (1683%6)
Propased inal 2014 dividend BCT-NERORE 0 - - - - - - - - - N - - -
Transerto no-par vlue egime BREETHE 3| 10966253 (10964,207) (2036) - - - - - - - - -
Transfer from retaned prfit ERAREEAN - - - - - DAl - (25,18 - -
At31 December 2014 REE-WETZR=1-H 14364800 - - 0958t 5909 64 MNP LT9NGSE LA 983476 865087 30495860 275 3LTIIENS
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$15,065,733,000 * 255 ot f TR H R R AR S BB IR UL R b 2 A
(2013: HK$24,423,031,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 4 1% #515,065,733,000% 6 (& — =4F :
24,423,031,000%#7C) ©
: Included in other statutory capital reserves in the consolidated statement of financial ‘ FEA SR A BB IR D3 2 H A B E R

position.

o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

maBlaeiiEg

Year ended 31 December 2014
BWE - F—UES T = —H IR

2014 2013
R TR AR
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i T THTo
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING AH BB Z
ACTIVITIES Blefis
Profit before tax: B Bt AT i )
From continuing operations A B 5 A AR S 5,852,972 5,077,157
From a discontinued A —IHIEFRAE
operation R 2,482 16,036
Adjustments for: e N & TE R
Finance costs Pl A 742,762 645,954
Finance income FABF A (768,482) (446,740)
Depreciation Yreg 14 149,449 161,205
Increase in fair value of investment BEY A RME
properties S bil| (764,085) (624,403)
Recognition of change in fair value of T 2 IR G ERFE
completed properties held for sale REZCERYE
upon transfer to investment properties 2N SRAE B R (846,820) -
Income from available-for-sale A A] L R
investments ZUA (1,254) (3,114)
Share of profits and losses of joint JEA 8 2wl i A1) K
ventures [ i} (46,484) (219,169)
Share of profits and losses of JRRE A T 8 ) i )
associates | 2= (650,117) (833,163)
Amortisation of vehicle licenses TR L R 6 - 9,522
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TE AT - b I
payments 5 15 1,600 2,206
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYZE - WE B
plant and equipment THH 2 Fl5 5 (11,523) (2,457)
Gain on disposal of investment HEREYEY
properties 5 5 (63,684) (134,979)
Gain on a bargain purchase — TH B E I E )15 5 (1,069,722) (637,945)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H B B N 7 2 A5 40 (395,704) =
Increase in fair value of trading THFEMEAE T A ol
biological assets a0 26 (713) -
Loss on disposal of equity H B 2 A 1 A A
investments at fair value IS FAHFIE 2 B
through profit or loss BE&E 2 EH 1,646 -
Deemed disposal of equity interest in PRANE B — [ W
an associate ] A 6 59,225 -
Impairment of an investment in — WS N FEHRE
an associate 2 WH 6 149,000 96,000
Impairment of properties held for sale FHEREYEZ WHE 6 287,893 =
Impairment of properties under BERPYEY
development IAE 6 169,472 -
Net fair value loss/(gain) on equity R A REFH
investments at fair value through Z IR EZ N
profit or loss FEREE (i) 1,522 (715)
Equity-settled share option PAIRAS ST A 2 B P
expense B 52 37 24,903 6,088
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

maBlaeiiEg

Year ended 31 December 2014

W P ] S — H IR

2014 2013
&R TR
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
i T THTo
2,824,338 3,111,483

Increase in trade receivables TE S 5 B e (213,045) (164,576)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and TS IE ~ 5T 4 K HA

other receivables JRE AT S T ik D 990,973 278,919
Increase in inventories 17 & (3,268) (19,545)
Decrease in trading biological assets THFEME AW & e WD 1,919 =
Decrease/(increase) in completed FEfFE 2 BV M2

properties held for sale WA () 7,367,153 (1,347,215)
Increase in properties under development %5 & H1 4 2E 34 Jifi (7,812,516) (796,079)
Increase in trade payables JEAS & ) B n 50,758 326,437
Decrease in other payables Al 8 A5 T K% B R T

and accruals 2 k> (173,541) (134,126)
Increase in an amount due to the JEAST B RN

immediate holding company SRIE A 18,023 1,670
(Decrease)/increase in an amount due to ] 5 AHE AL 7

the ultimate holding company RIE () B (5,161) 10,501
Increase in restricted cash 7 BRI B 4 3 30 (337,296) (608,855)
Cash generated from operations R ELEZHE 2,708,337 658,614
Interest paid B LR (1,849,583) (1,586,850)
Mainland China taxes paid B A5 A B K P B T (1,073,981) (792,809)
Net cash flows used in operating LB T 2 B4

activities it (215,227) (1,721,045)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

maBlaeiiEg

HET—

Year ended 31 December 2014
POAE+ = H = H kAR

2014 2013
— g4 —ER-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 51 FHL T T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING KABREFHEZ
ACTIVITIES Blefis
Interest received E LS 368,892 460,601
Income from available-for-sale investments 2K [ aJ ft i 8 £ & 2 it A 1,254 3,114
Dividends received from associates B /N i IS 113,629 167,273
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEMZE - BE Rk
property, plant and equipment TE H B8 2 23,208 16,819
Proceeds from disposal of investment BB Y LTS
properties PRI 230,167 274,055
Purchases of items of property, plant and ~ § A#) 2 - 5 K&
equipment A EE (116,513) (203,134)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi Bt — ] A Jogg 2 ) 39 (1,177,628) 355,159
An additional land premium of a parcel — I B oA e — ] o o
of land related to an acquisition of a ANTEIMEZ Tz
subsidiary FEAN L HACAE - (508,907)
Decrease in breeding biological assets A A E D (136)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HH B A ) B A5 I 40 419,160 =
Proceeds from available-for-sale ATt
investments Fr 152K T8 1,720 -
Proceeds from equity investments at fair ~ ZE#R8 # $4 28 F(HFTE
value through profit or loss Z IRHEBUE T A R 3,034 =
Purchases of available-for-sale investments i & ] { i 5 % & (49,964) -
Additions to investment properties ZEY %i yili] (359,380) (516,607)
Loans to joint ventures BT EENAFZER (1,315,590) (523)
Additions to investments in joint ventures & %45\ & Z % &1 (204,858) =
Loans to associates AR = /A= I (4,885) (6,812)
Increase in other long HAt R EE 2
term assets B ii] (363,148) (237,362)
Additions to intangible assets Y A 1 - (49,986)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged BRI A7 3K
deposits (38, W 30 (357) 236,357
Net cash flows used in investing P& E 2 B4
activities i (2,431,395) (9,953)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2014

W P ] S — H IR

2014 2013
R e SN
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i T THTo
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING KAMEFREZ
ACTIVITIES Bl i &
Proceeds from issue of shares BELT A T A5 X TE 4,327 25,263
Dividends paid EATRE (324,078) (275,626)
Dividends paid to non-controlling SCAS IR T R
shareholders i85 (168,366) (141,955)
(Decrease)/increase in an amount due to  JEEf] fe &2 i/ W) 7K TE
the ultimate holding company () B (723,203) 514,134
(Decrease)/increase in loans from fellow JREAST ) 2R i Jog A /) 2
subsidiaries B () (17,409) 19,282
(Decrease)/increase in loans from JEAST FE 4 IR SR 2
non-controlling shareholders B EA) (12,440) 122,686
New bank and other borrowings TG SRAT B H A A £ 20,780,289 15,112,845
Repayment of bank and other borrowings & #&$R 17 & H AL M & (15,382,313) (13,880,250)
Net cash flows from financing 2 H Rl T B
activities & A 4,156,807 1,496,379
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH B4 KBl & %1EY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B (WA BHE 1,510,185 (234,619)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 4] 2 Bl 4 J Bl 4
year SEY 6,645,378 6,734,052
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net I e EE 3 535 B8 S 288 Y 219,913 145,945
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERZBE B4
END OF YEAR L fE ) 8,375,476 6,645,378
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH Bla KRBT
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS KEER BT
Cash and bank balances Bl B SRAT 45 R 30 7,622,469 6,379,869
Non-pledged time deposits with original % A [kf 5 E|H H
maturity of less than three months when ‘DA =i H 2
acquired A € A7 K 30 753,007 154,180
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in A B BA TS
the consolidated statement of financial AR R 2 Bl 4 K
position B EY 8,375,476 6,534,049
Cash and short term deposits attributable — FE R4 4845 2L FS EAL 2
to a discontinued operation BRSPS E SRR - 111,329
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the # R B EELZ
statement of cash flows e RS EEY 8,375,476 6,645,378
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Statement of Financial Position

BA IR LA

31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

31 December

31 December

2014 2013
Ry ZE AR
+ZA=Z+—H +—=H=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
it Tl it
NON-CURRENT ASSETS I B
Property, plant and equipment W ~ Wm B 14 344 588
Investments in subsidiaries ol NCIEr S =3 20 18,097,378 12,091,963
Investments in associates W& N B & 22 119,532 268,532
Available-for-sale investments A B 23 - 1,720
Total non-current assets FE VLB A AR 18,217,254 12,362,803
CURRENT ASSETS LB A
Prepayments, deposits and other TAATEIE ~ 574 K HoAth
receivables JE i 2K TE 28 2,345 2,176
Due from subsidiaries JRE ST g ) R I 20 8,889,750 7,268,199
Equity investments at fair value through  E#4E 5 %A RMEHFHE
profit or loss Z BHERE 29 3,116 11,011
Cash and cash equivalents e KR EEEY 30 1,560,212 911,257
10,455,423 8,192,643
Asset classified as held for sale N R R E Y B - 71,220
Total current assets it B B AR 10,455,423 8,263,863
CURRENT LIABILITIES it B AR
Interest-bearing bank and other FTE R AT B oA
borrowings Ny 31 2,782,454 3,818,818
Other payables and accruals HoAh AT R TE K S 33 52,683 52,381
Due to the ultimate holding company JREASS 5 B2 I W) A 23,503 159,905
Due to subsidiaries JREAST o o 2 ) R 20 303,989 234,199
Total current liabilities LB B AR 3,162,629 4,265,303
NET CURRENT ASSETS A S 7,292,794 3,998,560
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT A8 E oI B
LIABILITIES J=Lr 25,510,048 16,361,363
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Statement of Financial Position

BA IR LA

31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

31 December 31 December
2014 2013
Ry ZE AR
+ZA=Z+—H +—=H=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i AR T T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES i By 15
Interest-bearing bank and other FEESRAT B H At
borrowings [ERss 31 9,660,225 4,436,658
Due to the immediate holding company WEAT BB AN m) R TE 44(d) (i) 323,208 =
Total non-current liabilities I E) A AR 9,983,433 4,436,658
Net assets R I E 15,526,615 11,924,705
EQUITY HERR
Share capital: nominal value JEAS « THi{E 36 - 269,053
Other statutory capital reserves HoMh vk 2 B A - 10,966,253
Share capital and other statutory capital — JAS Jx HAvE B & AR
reserves frti s 36 14,564,800 11,235,306
Other reserves oA At 38(b) 96,528 43,672
Proposed final dividend IR AR A RS, 12 865,287 645,727
Total equity HE 4 0 H 15,526,615 11,924,705
GAO Shengyuan LIU Chong
[=Ew B 5%
Director Director
HF HF
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Notes to Financial Statements

S B A M

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Shenzhen Investment Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office of the
Company is located at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, 9 Science

Museum Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred

to as the “Group”) were involved in the following principal activities:

- Property development
= Property investment
= Property management

- Manufacture and sale of industrial and commercial products

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
of the Company is Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited (“Shum
Yip Holdings” ¥ 2£(%E )A R /2 7l), which is a private company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The ultimate holding company of the
Company is FEHEF AR (“Shum Yip Group”), which is a state-
owned company established in Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
relating to the preparation of financial statements, which for this
financial year and the comparative period continue to be those of
the predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with
transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set
out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, certain buildings classified as
property, plant and equipment and equity investments which have
been measured at fair value. Disposal groups held for sale are stated at
the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell as
further explained in note 2.4. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand except when otherwise indicated.

2.1

31 December 2014
= S

A E R

WEINFE WA BRA T (TARATD) £—H
AT W R RS 2 A PR AT A F] o AR
T 2 G T 3 A7 7 7 s JURE R B2 A
QI BRI SE 84 o

AR > A BB A A (A
M IALHE]) 28T T EEEHE
) :

— YEBI B
— WEEE
— W
— T3 S P 26 i 2 B S S

RS > ARF 2 HARERA R AR
s et oL 2 FAN AT — R (B
M) ARAA (T GER) ] - AR
T Z B AP o W) 2 A TR A N R LA
([ ]) RINE AL < A AR — R
EMARATR ([TRHEEM]) -

AR ) 2 BSR4 A s A S A e
AU (7 s BB ik i ME R ) (R4 T A&
T BB R R R A s e st M R (T4
WEETER ) KA AR e R 4
o ARIAH AR ING & F WA A RBIA
Bl 4w I S Rk 2 B ELE o AR
WA AR (Se22%8) FifR115576 8 56
87 BT i % 6 49 56 90 T W I 3% 4% | Fir
N 2 38 v 22 B R A B e B 2 LR - w
BN e e TR Y
A SR AT A A R (B32%) 2 —
By o BAGS IR T ¢ JRE 5B J A 1 491 i 4
WeR B2 - 75 TR A EZ M
AT A B I RE R 4 N P (B o
FrlEfr 2 HEA G R HIRmEEEA R
(B 3 HE B B P O BRI B AR (R
B EE2.4) o BRIEDATHIE - A RIS
WMEHmELB T (TBt)) 23> A
SHEB U A B R T L8 -
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Notes to Financial Statements

S B A M

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

31 December 2014
= S

2.1 RS (4)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2014. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated until

the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between

members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the

Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

GROHRE T

S A R A A AR A A B L A )
BEZ-NES A=+ —HI4FE
ZBAH R o MHE A R 2 IR R Tk
BRLAR ) AR 7] 2 %45 1 2 0 — B0 &
FIBUR AR B o (B A Bl 2 245 A AL
BUSFEHIRE & B R A A ARR > I RpAfs
AAREZ RIS L IS IE -

18 0 A2 T 3 25 6 940 B
A A B 5 AT A TR 3
B 525 43 B B A B i
A BRAR SR o FFAT SR B 4 7 2 5
A 0 B~ MR A - B
LU B M B A A M H o B
o -

ik <5 B R LB T ST Ja 2 W & w
P i) = TELE I R R 2 —JHE A
BUAEE) > SR I EOH AT AL LR A
BOEE R o Wi A m] 0 B A RERE £R 52 3
(RA R LRI 225 AR -

ik A% 5 T % 25 26— [H] B Jag 28 W) 2 22 1l
HE > RIEAR LR ) RZ M B A Rl 2 B
(BT ) BB~ G AT AT I 22 fi o
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ME S0 26 5 3l 7E R 4 o e R () BT W AU
A FE ~ QAR PR B 2 B A AL
K (i) A o] IR 0 728 A 19 2 SR U 4R = DA
7 A 22 TRT WS i 7R ife R 14 A 4 T R A
VS35 A S T L o B A B S AR
AR IR SRR A7) i Y 0 B 0
R4 SR B A (s i) -
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Notes to Financial Statements

S B A M

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards and new

interpretation for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Amendment to HKFRS
2 included in Annual
Improvements 2010
- 2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS
3 included in Annual
Improvements 2010
- 2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS
13 included in Annual
Improvements 2010
- 2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS
1 included in Annual
Improvements 2011
- 2013 Cycle

! Effective from 1 July 2014

Investment Entities

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting

Levies

Definition of Vesting Condition

Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a

Business Combination’

Short-term Receivables and Payables

Meaning of Effective HKFRSs

31 December 2014
ZE—NETFZA=Z+—H

2.2 EHETEUR KPR E)

A B L AR 4 T 2 A5 R T UK BR A
LB HE LIV TR

il BB R e REEH
1097 - BB
RAEEAIF 125 R
A a7
BT (CE——4)

B Gt R 53288 M2 MEER
T ERAE

A i it A2 3998 Wi TR ER R
2T il A

Hilk (BRHHRERE A4
ZEE) - RREuR
JINZF—FFE
ZE-CHERH R
SO BT s
BRI BT
AZF—FEE
ZE-CEEYZ
FEE AL BT
BRI H35E 2 T
AZF—FEE
ZE-CERYZ
FEE GBI
BB 1358 2 53T
WA=F——FF
ZE-ZERYZ
FEE GBI
REER B2 T
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HIANSLIEL
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BREBHERE
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Notes to Financial Statements

S B A M

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Except for the amendment to HKFRS 1 which is only relevant to an

entity’s first HKFRS financial statements, the nature and the impact of

each amendment and interpretation is described below:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of an investment
entity and provide an exception to the consolidation requirement
for entities that meet the definition of an investment entity.
Investment entities are required to account for subsidiaries at
fair value through profit or loss rather than consolidate them.
Consequential amendments were made to HKFRS 12 and HKAS
27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS 12 also set out the
disclosure requirements for investment entities. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group as the Company does not
qualify as an investment entity as defined in HKFRS 10.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off” for offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify the
application of the offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement
systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply
gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group as the Group does
not have any offsetting arrangement.

The HKAS 39 Amendments provide an exception to the
requirement of discontinuing hedge accounting in situations
where over-the-counter derivatives designated in hedging
relationships are directly or indirectly, novated to a central
counterparty as a consequence of laws or regulations, or the
introduction of laws or regulations. For continuance of hedge
accounting under this exception, all of the following criteria must
be met: (i) the novations must arise as a consequence of laws or
regulations, or the introduction of laws or regulations; (ii) the
parties to the hedging instrument agree that one or more clearing
counterparties replace their original counterparty to become the
new counterparty to each of the parties; and (iii) the novations do
not result in changes to the terms of the original derivative other
than changes directly attributable to the change in counterparty
to achieve clearing. The amendments have had no impact on the
Group as the Group has not novated any derivatives during the

current year.

31 December 2014
= S

2.2 EHRBURK IR EE) (4])
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Notes to Financial Statements

S B A M

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

()

(g)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a liability for
a levy when the activity that triggers payment, as identified by the
relevant legislation, occurs. The interpretation also clarifies that
a levy liability is accrued progressively only if the activity that
triggers payment occurs over a period of time, in accordance with
the relevant legislation. For a levy that is triggered upon reaching
a minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no liability
should be recognised before the specified minimum threshold is
reached. The interpretation has had no impact on the Group as
the Group applied, in prior years, the recognition principles under
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
which for the levies incurred by the Group are consistent with the
requirements of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21.

The HKFRS 2 Amendment clarifies various issues relating to
the definitions of performance and service conditions which are
vesting conditions, including (i) a performance condition must
contain a service condition; (ii) a performance target must be met
while the counterparty is rendering service; (iii) a performance
target may relate to the operations or activities of an entity, or
to those of another entity in the same group; (iv) a performance
condition may be a market or non-market condition; and (v)
if the counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases to provide
service during the vesting period, the service condition is not

satisfied. The amendment has had no impact on the Group.

The HKFRS 3 Amendment clarifies that contingent consideration
arrangements arising from a business combination that are not
classified as equity should be subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss whether or not they fall within the scope of
HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39. The amendment has had no impact on the
Group.

The HKFRS 13 Amendment clarifies that short-term receivables
and payables with no stated interest rates can be measured at
invoice amounts when the effect of discounting is immaterial. The

amendment has had no impact on the Group.

31 December 2014
= S

2.2 EHRBURK IR EE) (4])
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Notes to Financial Statements

S B A M

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET

ADOPTED

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that

have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

HKEFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
(2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11
HKEFRS 14

HKEFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27
(2011)

Annual Improvements
2010 - 2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2011 - 2013 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2012 - 2014 Cycle

Financial Instruments*
Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture’

Investment entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception’

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations?

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

Disclosure Initiative®

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions’

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements’

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs!

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

: Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual financial

statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not applicable

to the Group

2.3

31 December 2014
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2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW

31 December 2014
= S

2.3 FARIR AN BT AT R ARG AT A

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE

HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET
ADOPTED (CONTINUED)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) will come into operation
as from the Company’s first financial year commencing after 3 March
2014 in accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance, which will
be the year ending 31 December 2015. The Group is in the process
of making an assessment of the expected impact of the changes in
the period of initial application of Part 9 of the Ordinance. So far it
has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant and will
primarily affect the presentation and disclosure of information in the

consolidated financial statements.

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS
9, bringing together all phases of the financial instruments project to
replace HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
9 from 1 January 2018. The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS
9 will have an impact on the classification and measurement of the
Group’s financial assets. Further information about the impact will be
available nearer the implementation date of the standard.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS
28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes
a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s
interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2016.
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2.3 FARIR AN BT AT R ARG AT A

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE

HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET
ADOPTED (CONTINUED)

The amendments to HKFRS 11 require that an acquirer of an interest in
a joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes
a business must apply the relevant principles for business combinations
in HKFRS 3. The amendments also clarify that a previously held
interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of
an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint control
is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to HKFRS
11 to specify that the amendments do not apply when the parties
sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, are under common
control of the same ultimate controlling party. The amendments apply
to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and
the acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation.
The amendments are not expected to have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 January
2016.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue
is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key judgements and
estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15
on 1 January 2017 and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15

upon adoption.
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31 December 2014
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2.3 FARIR AN BT AT R ARG AT A

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE

HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET
ADOPTED (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the principle in HKAS
16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits
that are generated from operating business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through the use
of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to
depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be used in very
limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The amendments are not expected to
have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group
upon adoption on 1 January 2016 as the Group has not used a revenue-
based method for the calculation of depreciation of its non-current

assets.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle issued in January
2014 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. Except for those
described in note 2.2, the Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2015. None of the amendments are expected to have a
significant financial impact on the Group. Details of the amendment

most applicable to the Group are as follows:

HKEFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity must disclose the
judgements made by management in applying the aggregation criteria
in HKFRS 8, including a brief description of operating segments that
have been aggregated and the economic characteristics used to assess
whether the segments are similar. The amendments also clarify that
a reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only required to
be disclosed if the reconciliation is reported to the chief operating

decision maker.
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME

POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give
the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over

an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;
(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement of
profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 FHEGFIBORZME (8)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which
it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those

policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing

control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment

losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting

policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has been
a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures
is included as part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint

ventures.
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2.4 FHEGFIBORZME (8)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method.
In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate
or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit

or loss.

The results of associates and joint ventures are included in the
Company’s statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments in associates and
joint ventures are treated as non-current assets and are stated at cost

less any impairment losses.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified as
held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-

current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related

costs are expensed as incurred.
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2.4 FHEGFIBORZME (8)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the

separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any

resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration
is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with
the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for

within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference
is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain

purchase.
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2.4 FHEGFIBORZME (8)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are

assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the operation

disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and equity investments
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants

act in their economic best interest.
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2.4 FHEGFIBORZME (8)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant

to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 FHEGFIBORZME (8)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, construction
contract assets, financial assets, investment properties, goodwill and
non-current assets/a disposal group classified as held for sale), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit

to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of
the impaired asset, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the

relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill and certain financial
assets is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued

asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and

that person,

®

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the

entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

31 December 2014
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its

intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair
value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying
amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or
loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the statement of
profit or loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged. An annual
transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained profits is made
for the difference between the depreciation based on the revalued
carrying amount of an asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s
original cost. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of
the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations

is transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:
Leasehold land and buildings Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements 20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% to 25%

9% to 20%

10% to 25%

Motor vehicles

Plant and machinery

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant

asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed

and ready for use.
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,

which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Properties under construction or development for future use as
investment properties are classified as investment properties under
construction. If the fair value cannot be reliably determined, the
investment properties under construction will be measured at cost until

such time as fair value can be determined or construction is completed.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in

which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year of

the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties
or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting
is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property occupied
by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property, the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”
up to the date of change in use, and any difference at that date between
the carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for
as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from
inventories to investment properties, any difference between the fair
value of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount is

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sales
transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case,
the asset or disposal group must be available for immediate sale in its
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale must be highly
probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a disposal
group are reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether the Group

retains a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment
properties and financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets classified as held

for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a

finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases are
charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over

the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments and available-for-sale financial investments, or
as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets

recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period

generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are

designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with positive net changes
in fair value presented as other income and gains and negative net
changes in fair value presented as finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not include any dividends
or interest earned on these financial assets, which are recognised in

accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income and gains in
the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans

and in other expenses for receivables.
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity when the Group
has the positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity. Held-
to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the statement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those which
are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may
be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in

the market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in other income, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss in other expenses. Interest and dividends earned whilst
holding the available-for-sale financial investments are reported as
interest income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost

less any impairment losses.
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability and

intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of

profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the

asset.
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and

obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that

the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as

changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If
the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not,
it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a

collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,

the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to
the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit

or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative
asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an
unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets

are not reversed.
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that

an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale investment is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of

profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in
the statement of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive

income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an

investment is less than its cost.
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded for
impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the
reduced carrying amount of the asset and is accrued using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part
of finance income. Impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed
through the statement of profit or loss if the increase in fair value of
the instruments can be objectively related to an event occurring after

the impairment loss was recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or loans and borrowings,

as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction

costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
an amount due to the ultimate holding company, an amount due
to the immediate holding company and interest-bearing bank and

borrowings.
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon

initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or
loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not include any

interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition

and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as

well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is

included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair
value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative

amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the

liabilities simultaneously.
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Properties under development
Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after

completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value and comprise land costs, construction costs, borrowing
costs, professional fees and other costs directly attributable to such

properties incurred during the development period.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
the construction period of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond normal operating cycle. On completion,

the properties are transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined by an apportionment of the
total land and buildings costs attributable to unsold properties. Net
realisable value is estimated by the directors based on the prevailing
market prices, on an individual property basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal.

Biological assets

Biological assets represent breeding pigeons recorded as non-current
assets and trading pigeons and orchid flowers recorded as current
assets. The biological assets are measured at their fair value on initial
recognition and at the end of each reporting period less estimated costs
to sell. The fair values of the biological assets are determined based on
the most recent market transaction prices. Change in fair value less
estimated costs to sell of a biological asset is included in profit or loss

for the period in which it arises.
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand

and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term

deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the

Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and

the same taxation authority.
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,

on the following bases:

(a) income from the sale of properties and industrial and commercial
products, when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the

properties and goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

(c) income from the provision of transportation services, when the

transportation services have been rendered;

(d) services income, when the relevant services have been rendered;

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(f) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive payment
has been established.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the statement
of financial position, until they have been approved by the shareholders
in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the

shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an

entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for the purpose
of obtaining qualifying assets, an average capitalization rate of 8.1%
(2013: 7.4%) has been applied to the expenditure on the individual
assets.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”),

further details of which are given in note 37 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The
fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model,

further details of which are given in note 44 to the financial statements.
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee
benefit expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or
loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period. If the share
options granted vest immediately, the Group recognises the fair value
in the period in which the options are granted.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions

are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification, that increases the total fair
value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the

employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous

paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional

share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme except
for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded
to the Group when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF

Scheme.

Each of the subsidiaries operating in Mainland China participates
in the central pension scheme (the “CPS”) operated by the local
municipal government for all of its staff. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute 8% to 20% of their payroll costs to the CPS.
The contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they

become payable in accordance with the rules of the CPS.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. Differences arising on the settlement or
transaction of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit

or loss.
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2.4 FEFFIBORZME (4)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,

respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the Company
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of
a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign

operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the unused tax losses can be
utilised, based on all available evidence. Recognition primarily involves
judgement regarding the future performance of the particular legal
entity or tax group in which the deferred tax asset has been recognised.
A variety of other factors are also evaluated in considering whether
there is convincing evidence that it is probable that some portions or
all of the deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised, such as the
existence of taxable temporary differences, tax planning strategies and
the periods in which estimated tax losses can be utilised. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets and related financial models and budgets
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and to the extent that
there is sufficient convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits
will be available within the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the
tax losses carried forward, and that the asset balance will be reduced

and charged to the statement of profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)

Land appreciation tax

Under the Provisional Regulations on Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)
implemented upon the issuance of the Provisional Regulations of the
PRC on 27 January 1995, all gains arising from the transfer of real
estate properties in Mainland China with effect from 1 January 1994
are subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including land use rights, borrowing costs

and all property development expenditures.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property development
business in Mainland China are subject to LAT, which has been
included in income tax. However, the implementation of these taxes
varies amongst various Mainland China cities and the Group has not
finalised its LAT returns with various tax authorities. Accordingly,
significant judgement is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises these liabilities based on management’s best estimates. When
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, the differences will impact the income tax
and provisions for land appreciation taxes in the period in which the

determination is made.

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangement that
it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these

properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. The Group considers whether a property
generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets held by
the Group.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties (continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or leased out
separately under finance leases, the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is
an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative

purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not

qualify as an investment property.

Classification between investment properties and properties under
development

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Judgement is made by
management on determining whether a property is designated as an
investment property or a property under development. In general, the
Group considers its intention for holding the properties at the early
development stage of the related properties. However, in response to
the market demand for investment properties, the Group would from
time to time amend the corporate strategies on the Group’s property
portfolio. During the course of construction, the related properties
under construction are accounted for as properties under development
included in current assets if the properties are intended for sale after
their completion, whereas, the properties accounted for as investment
properties under construction included in non-current assets if the
properties are intended to be held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Upon completion of the properties, the properties held
for sale are transferred to completed properties held for sale while
the properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation are
transferred to completed investment properties.

31 December 2014
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

described below.

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has to exercise
judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value or such
event affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management to determine the
level of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the

net present value used in the impairment test.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market
for similar lease terms and other contracts. In the absence of such
information, management determines the amount within a range of
reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgement, management
considers information from (i) current prices in an active market for
properties of a different nature, condition or location by reference to
available market information; (ii) recent prices of similar properties
in less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the dates of transactions that occurred
at those prices; and (iii) discounted cash flow projections, based on
reliable estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms of any
existing lease and other contracts, and (where possible) by external
evidence such as current market rates for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of

cash flows.

31 December 2014
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3. EREEHHE RAGE ()

ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued) st 2 AMEEFZE (4)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties (continued) ;ﬁé‘ﬁ%%‘/‘fﬁﬁ/ﬁ?f (%)

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December 2014 BEYEN —F—NE+—H=1+—H

was HK$20,018,594,000 (2013: HK$15,299,549,000). Further details, Z Wi {E £520,018,594,000% JC (—&F —

including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement and a =4F 1 15,299,549,000% JT) o A B i —

sensitivity analysis, are given in note 19 to the financial statements. ERElE (BEA RER 2 A2 2R

R B AU G AT T A B 7 3R M
19 °
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REBHBER

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units AR S > A5 4 L 5 K RS B

based on their products and services, and has five reportable operating By AR ZER AT > N B TR R R AR

segments as follows: BB FHEIT ¢

(a) the property development segment engages in the development of (a) WIS RAETE - T3¢
residential, industrial and commercial properties; KT

(b) the property investment segment invests in residential, industrial (b) WEFKENFELER BB R
and commercial properties for their rental income potential; T s TERpEEMTE

(c) the property management segment engages in the management of (c) WA H SR A8 H ph A B T T
both properties developed by the Group and external parties; AR L gE R 2 T

(d) the manufacture segment engages in the manufacture and sale of (d) RSN FEEF RS R E TN
industrial and commercial products; and HERE M > K

(e) the “others” segment comprises, principally, the hotel operations, (e)  [HCAb ] 43 35 2 40 45 1 )i 7 4
manufacture and sale of aluminum alloy products and agricultural RIGE RSB A S~ BEN - &Kl
products, design and construction of gardens and other Foite T2 AR R HABSERS
businesses.

Management monitors the operating results of the Group’s business B B G VR4 L S R BT AL 2 PR

units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources I B B 1 AN 4 ) SRS B 2 AR A o

allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is Ay FEER B T e B i A U FEA T AR

evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of L% o S s ) B Ff MRS T 2 B

adjusted profit before tax from continuing operations. The adjusted HEBRBEHT R B o RrAg K88 ST 2 KC T B

profit before tax from continuing operations is measured consistently [ ﬁu{ﬁﬁlj)ﬁ?'“éﬁiitﬁlgzl%mﬁﬁ(ﬁﬂﬂ

with the Group’s profit before tax except that interest income, finance — Bz i AEHE o HERLE A - B K

costs, dividend income, fair value gains from the Group’s financial A BEIRA - AEESRH THNA R

instruments as well as head office and corporate expenses are excluded (B g > DA K SRR R A ZE BH S0 R

from this measurement. HWFETEMFT R A -
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, pledged deposits, restricted
cash, cash and cash equivalents, equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss and other unallocated head office and corporate

assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
an amount due to the ultimate holding company, tax payable, an
amount due to the immediate holding company, deferred tax liabilities
and other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these

liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing

market prices.

31 December 2014
ZE—NETFZA=Z+—H

R o BB (A1)

BINEEBIHE E - TR - 2R
Ml B4 ~ Bla R BLGSFEY) - B H
e AE R 2 BHESUE KA R 43 B
K8 2 % N ) B E U A 4R R A
B SO E A AR L E o

S FE S RAT R A - AT B A
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31 December 2014
. e

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REHBER (H)
(CONTINUED)
Property Property Property
Year ended 31 December 2014 development investment management Manufacture Others Total
BEZZ-NEFZA=+—HIEE LB WY LIES R i b Fakil
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tl T Tl T T Tl
Segment revenue: I
Sales to customers HETEF 10,938,147 681,151 1,211,043 432,899 563,865 13,827,105
Intersegment sales MERE - 5,622 15,839 - 111,376 132,837
10,938,147 686,773 1,226,882 432,899 675,241 13,959,942
Reconciliation HE
Elimination of intersegment sales HENEHHE (132,837)
Revenue Wik 13,827,105
Segment results before increase in fair value of & HE/A AR AT Z
investment properties MRS 2,460,309 507,624 55,922 1,256 (9,245) 3,015,866
Increase in fair value of investment properties {4 %/A 72 (R4 - 764,085 - - - 764,085
Recognition of change in fair value of completed  FERATF{ERF & 2 E VA
properties held for sale upon transfer to WEAREEE
investment properties HRB R - 846,820 - - - 846,820
Segment results after increase in fair value of  H{EHIEA RN 2
investment properties NEES 2,460,309 2,118,529 55,922 1,256 (9,45) 4,626,771
Reconciliation HE
Elimination of intersegment results BRI (45,944)
Finance income HHIA 768,649
Dividend income and unallocated gains TREIRA RA R R 40,207
Gain on a bargain purchase (note 39) —TEREEREE RIS ([ff3E39) 1,069,722
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) HEREA 2 IS (a0 395,704
Loss on deemed disposal of equity interest in 1 {E ! E—[H{ & /A 7
an associate (note 22) PR R (ko) (59,225)
Fair value loss on financial instruments, net SRTARAZAREERTHE (1,522)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses N Bt R Bl (198,628)
Finance costs RERA (742,762)
Profit before tax FRBE AT A 5,852,972
Segment assets NEERE 56,089,928 22,736,199 160,784 172,823 4331038 83,490,772
Reconciliation HIE
Corporate and other unallocated assets N B R BB 11,014,135
Total assets MR 94,504,907
Segment liabilities NEAE 15,395,207 1,850,390 486,945 39,575 944,574 18,716,691
Reconciliation HE
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities AT RSt A 1 43,014,581
Total liabilities A 61,731,272
Other segment information: HpHBER
Depreciation bk 34,317 13,805 12,256 12,242 76,829 149,449
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments ~ F FHbfH B2k R - - - - 1,600 1,600
Share of profits and losses of associates HEAG I &N R A 1R 464,342 151,525 6,244 - 28,006 650,117
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures T &7 Rl A iR (6,299) - - - 52,783 46,484
Impairment of an investment in an associate — [N AR 2 i E 149,000 - - - - 149,000
Impairment of properties under development /& H# 5[ 287,893 - - - - 287,893
Impairment of completed properties held for sale FERFEZEERYERE 169,472 - - - - 169,472
Loss on deemed disposal of equity interest in an 4 {E Hi & — B /A 7
associate it ¥4 it 59,225 - - - - 59,225
Investments in associates BEAmRE 5,833,837 85,552 19,368 15,133 181,090 6,134,980
Investments in joint ventures AEATRE 1,625,678 - - - 278461 1,904,139
Capital expenditure* AR 16,767,989 521,955 10,674 6,833 15,725 17,323,176
% Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, * AR S IR B - RUE B

BEME - BRPWERFEREZC
TEIZE > LA B B WA — ] i 2
ZHE o

investment properties, properties under development and completed properties
held for sale, and including assets from the acquisition of a subsidiary.
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31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REHBER (H)
(CONTINUED)
Property Property Property
Year ended 31 December 2013 development investment management Manufacture Others Total
BEZZ-SHEF A= —HIEE IE i WERE VES:R L3 iy Fik
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TiL TiBL T T
Segment revenue: Al -
Sales to customers HETEF 7,04917 547,859 1,110,636 354927 560,468 9,778,807
Intersegment sales MERE - 6,023 5,608 - 209,686 21317
7,204,917 553,882 1,116,244 354,927 770,154 10,000,124
Reconciliation HE
Elimination of intersegment sales BB BE (221,317)
Revenue from continuing operations i redllen 9,778,807
Segment results before increase in fair value of &) H/A AR AT Z
investment properties g ES 3,259,015 582,417 30,237 11,641 265943 4,149,253
Increase in fair value of investment properties £ &43E /A (84N - 624,046 - - - 624,046
Segment results after increase in fair value of S EHIEA RN 2
investment properties MEER 3,259,015 1,206,463 30,237 11,641 265,943 4,773,299
Reconciliation i
Elimination of intersegment results SRS (30,282)
Finance income MHIA 446,186
Dividend income and unallocated gains B B B A e 20,095
Gain on a bargain purchase —FRERERE 637,945
Fair value gain on financial instruments, net SHTAZ AR A FE 715
Corporate and other unallocated expenses AN R R EE A (135,266)
Finance costs RERA (635,535)
Profit before tax from continuing operations  FEAE AT 2 Bt AR A 5,077,157
Segment assets B 44,357,392 18,921,005 142,511 170647 4077519 67,669,074
Reconciliation HiE
Corporate and other unallocated assets ONEl R R B 8,427,001
Assets related to a discontinued operation B E LT B 795,450
Total assets B 76,891,525
Segment liabilities A 12,094,403 2,477,705 325,609 46,535 L111,154 16,055,406
Reconciliation HE
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities AR REMFA A E 32,832,410
Liabilities related to a discontinued operation ~ SLEFFATARE LT 2 A& 424,363
Total liabilities = 49,312,179
Other segment information: Hi g R
Depreciation i 27,838 10,539 11,434 6,076 67,485 123,372
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments T 4 L T - - - = 1,521 1,521
Share of profits and losses of associates JHE e i A R 659,540 133,319 5,968 = 33,106 831,933
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures JE A Al A R B - - - - 219,169 219,169
Impairment of an investment in an associate — A A ARG WE 96,000 = = = = 96,000
Investments in associates - YAk 3 5,636,740 82,303 18,264 15,133 177514 5929954
Tnvestments in joint ventures AENFARE 63,595 - - - 280,124 343,719
Capital expenditure* GRS 18,313,156 5,723,203 17,868 4,176 1,128,314 25,186,717

As the Group generates substantially all of its revenues from customers

domiciled in the Mainland China, no geographical information is

presented.

R A A S 10 480 0 2 Wi i E A LA
BURFEZ & - HOI M6 2 5 3 [ R o



Notes to Financial Statements

S B A M

Shenzhen Investment Limited

TRYIFERCA FRA )

Annual Report 2014 4t

138

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents proceeds from

the sale of properties, commercial and industrial goods, rental income,

management fee income and others.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains from continuing

operations is as follows:

31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

Weas ~ HALBA KA

Wi i B 26 A e 2 2 S - R B
SRR O 3 B T BT ORL -
WA - HIIYA KA

PR s 26 2 it - HA A K AI75
IR

2014 2013
e Sl 1t 2 T —AE
HK$’000 HK$000
THC THs T
Revenue Wt
Sale of properties B 10,938,147 7,204,917
Gross management fee income B PN 1,211,043 1,110,636
Gross rental income from investment BEYEM SR
properties k) 681,151 547,859
Sale of commercial and industrial goods %85 ¥ 25 K& T3 b 432,899 354,927
Others HAth 563,865 560,468
13,827,105 9,778,807
Other income HAdug A
Bank interest income SRATALE A 80,878 80,466
Interest income from: DU & H 2 FLEA ¢
Joint ventures BB 399,795 363,676
A non-controlling shareholder of —[E B AR Z —4
a subsidiary FEHE R R - 2,044
Finance income from an independent third & 5 #3726 = /7 2
party WH A 287,809 -
Estate agency fee income from a fellow A¢ |8 — [H] 7] 2 Bt &g 2 v
subsidiary 2 AR IR YA 9,220 70,220
Others oAty 129,685 321,147
907,387 837,553
Gains ) 15
Gain on disposal of held-for-trading HERELHREZ
investments FAlpE=s 1,109 =
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYZE - B Lkt
plant and equipment HH 2 A1 11,523 730
Gain on disposal of investment properties & 4% &2 ~ F15 63,684 134,979
Gain on a bargain purchase (note 39) —TEBE(E I A (MffEE39) 1,069,722 637,945
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & T A ®) 2 FlAS
(note 40) (Fft3E40) 395,704 =
1,541,742 773,654
Other income and gains oAt i A B )45 2,449,129 1,611,207
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6.

The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived at

31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

B i i 1
ARG T U TS 2 BB A i A A1

after charging/(crediting): B (REA) TS HEEZES -

2014 2013
R TR AR
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Fh 3 Tt THIT
Cost of properties and inventories sold B Y % A& A 7,895,780 4,620,028
Cost of services provided PEAEIR TS A 1,858,381 1,557,164
Auditors’ remuneration % SR 45 5,250 5,250
Depreciation e 14 149,449 123,372
Impairment of trade receivables JRE Wiz B Uk (L 27 32 87
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables & i i 7 i {EL % 1] 27 (86) -
Impairment of other receivables Al R W R T 13,170 1,093
Impairment of an investment in an — WS NFREZ
associate* P AE* 22 149,000 96,000
Impairment of properties under R
development* JRAE 18 287,893 -
Impairment of completed properties held — FfERFHE 2 B 5 A
for sale* W ZE AR+ 17 169,472 =
Direct operating expenses (including W EYEZ
repairs and maintenance) arising on BAERSE S H
rental-earning investment properties (BLHEAENE B (R 7)) 98,852 95,159
Minimum lease payments under operating il i 2 & TH &
leases in respect of land and buildings BG4 4,626 7,424
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEAT - M &
payments FIE S 15 1,600 1,521
Employee benefit expense (excluding & B 45 FI B 32 ORA G
directors’ and chief executive’s HFHH N RETEA R
remuneration, note 8): < > BfiEES) -
Wages and salaries T&E R4 860,336 759,984
Equity-settled share option expense DAJBEAS SZAS) 22 i FR R B <2 18,020 2,325
Pension scheme contributions JRAIR G E Atk 120,341 104,771
Less: Amount capitalised AR < N || (25,754) (31,431)
Net: Pension scheme contributions BARE T FIE T E 94,587 73,340
972,943 835,649
Foreign exchange differences, net A1 HE 22 B FH(E 5,625 8,369
Rental income on investment ) SEAH IS ok L B2
properties less direct operating B 3 11498,852,000% 70
expenses of HK$98,852,000 (ZFB—=4
(2013: HK$95,159,000) 95,159,000 7T.) (582,299) (452,700)
Changes in fair value of contingent JEAT B B T &
consideration payable to the immediate HAREZ
holding company IS FAHEEE) 39 7,246 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H BB AN w2 RS 40 (395,704) =
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYZE - WE B
plant and equipment TEHH Z F15 5 (11,523) (730)
Gain on a bargain purchase — T R I ) 15 39 (1,069,722) (637,945)
Gain on disposal of investment properties i &£ &4 2 ~ F45 5 (63,684) (134,979)
Loss on deemed disposal of equity interest #4F B — [H] i & A 7
in an associate* JBEHE 2 e dR+ 22 59,225 -
* The impairment of an investment in an associate, properties under * — [ A m B R S R RrE R B 2

L v B 2 T AT A — [T 2 W
HEZ B BUE 2 W ERE A SR SRR
[HALBISC] e

development and completed properties held for sale and loss on deemed
disposal of equity interest in an associate are included in “Other expenses” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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31 December 2014
AL =

7. FINANCE COSTS il 5 B AR
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: Rl AR Z AT an R
Group
AREEHE
2014 2013
e Sl 1t 2 CE AR
HK$’000 HK$000
Tl T

Interest on: FIE S

Bank loans SRATEN 1,455,878 1,176,329

Other borrowings HoAth {545 53,205 97,015

Loans from the ultimate holding JEAST R S HE RN ) 2

company =4 316,378 263,535
Loans from fellow subsidiaries TEASH[E] 22 B N 7] 2 Bk 16,976 30,083
Loans from non-controlling JEAT ISR 2
shareholders B 7,146 9,469

Total interest expense on financial A IR B AR 5 1A FUlE

liabilities not at fair value through profit PRz EREEZ

or loss IS B S A 1,849,583 1,576,431
Less: Interest capitalised W AR EAL (1,106,821) (940,896)

742,762 635,535
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S o Redn AT BON B4

REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules and section 78 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference to section 161 of the predecessor

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

A A AR R b T R R B A s ) A6k 41
(%622%) Mt R115878M% > I 2 M &
WA RG] (5532%) SH161 kbl s 2 &
HM BT

Group

AL
2014 2013

e S 122 —EF =
HK$°000 HK$000
Tt T
Fees 4 1,750 1,552
Other emoluments: Fo A 4 -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fra > HEHE R E Y R 8,825 7,955
Equity-settled share option expense AR AR 324 22 i PR R B =2 5,255 2,125
Pension scheme contributions BAIREHH# AL 1,401 1,629
15,481 11,709
17,231 13,261
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B A e

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. WHMmEEATBARME (4)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
During the year, certain directors and chief executive were granted AARIEREN » 25T 4 % M s TN
share options, in respect of their services to the Group, under the share B[R % 45 B A 4 (8 RS T AR B AR ) 2
option scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out TR S P I AR R > A R — 2 E
in note 37 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options, 15 T34 B R M 537 A o 45
which has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the WEZ A B CH A i o 0 [ A 4B 45
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount INERR) C AR H AR € » Tk A
included in the financial statements for the current year is included in EEMBEREZ SFEEFIA L CGER &
the above directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration disclosures. e AT B4 2 SRR S RHA o
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BorIEBATHE SR
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the ARAEJE A B ST FE AT I ML e
year were as follows: T 8

Equity-settled
share option

Fees expense Total
UREts 555 2
wme RRER X ok
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TH#TT Tt Tt
2014 R4
Wu Wai Chung, Michael AR 330 - 330
Li Wai Keung 2R 380 - 380
Wong Yau Kar, David R 380 - 380
1,090 - 1,090
2013 —FE =
Wong Po Yan* TR SRt 190 - 190
Wu Wai Chung, Michael S e 330 - 330
Li Wai Keung 2R 380 = 380
Wong Yau Kar, David** TR FE 222 = 222
1,122 - 1,122
2 Wong Po Yan resigned as an independent non-executive director on 13 5 BRR —F—=4F AN H + = HEHES
June 2013. SEIFBATIESR
** Wong Yau Kar, David was appointed as an independent non-executive o ERFER CE-ZEAA T HERE
director on 13 June 2013. Py E AT -
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non- AN 2 JBE NI A At R AT 8 57 AT i

executive directors during the year (2013: Nil). B (T — =4 ) o
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B H A i e

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. W KEmATBANRME (4)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) PUTES KIEATES
Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme
Fees in kind expense contributions Total
DAL
Hidx ~ E HHZ Bk
e REWNE  WERMERY  arEfa A

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Tt T FiT Tt T#

2014 R
Executive directors: HMATEDS ¢
Lu Hua = 3 - 2,924 1,759 483 5,166
Gao Shengyuan mE T - 2,795 1,494 461 4,750
Mou Yong 2B - 1,251 1,001 183 2,435
Liu Chong S - 1,855 1,001 274 3,130
- 8,825 5,255 1,401 15,481
Non-executive directors: FMATES
Wu Jiesi AR 330 - - - 330
Huang Yige H—A% 330 - - - 330
660 - - - 660
660 8,825 5,255 1,401 16,141
2013 SR =
Executive directors: HATEDS
Lu Hua (ZE - 2,484 768 452 3,704
Gao Shengyuan* 1= 28 T - 2,031 303 361 2,695
Mou Yong 2B - 1,094 347 258 1,699
Liu Chong 5 - 1,636 347 390 2,373
Wang Minyuan** T - 710 360 168 1,238
- 7,955 2,125 1,629 11,709
Non-executive directors: FRATHER
Wu Jiesi A 330 = = = 330
Huang Yige A 100 - = - 100
430 = = - 430
430 7,955 2,125 1,629 12,139
* Gao Shengyuan was appointed as an executive director on 13 June 2013. * RETR - F—=FAA+=H
WRAEHATHES -
**  Wang Minyuan resigned as an executive director on 13 June 2013. * EHER -F-=FXNAT=H

BHERTH S -
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31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES HAE R IEE
The five highest paid employees during the year included three RIEFZ R4 RS E BT =4S
directors (2013: three directors), details of whose remuneration are (CE—ZF: ZLFEFH) > 2S5 EFH2

set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining two (2013: two) highest paid employees who are neither a

director nor the chief executive of the Company are as follows:

PO <5 S L SCR GRS o BRI (-
T4 WA FALNREE R
FTBUN B 2Z B e #r R B A 47 BE 22 T <6
FEEIR

Group

AL E
2014 2013
B S U1 E2 2 ZE A
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt THT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #4x ~ G L EW A 3,573 7,079
Equity-settled share option expense DA RGeS 37 AF 22 B P B <2 2,057 174
Pension scheme contributions BAK 43 it 2k 548 295
6,178 7,548

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:

P <5 J§ LA o IR o o T O R AT I
ANBZ kFE#HREEHEEMT

Number of employees

2 B ¥ H
2014 2013
—R—sE —F =%
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 JC £22,000,000 % JC - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 % 7T %2.3,000,000% I 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 %5 7T % 3,500,000 G 1 =
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 %5 JC 426,000,000% 7T - 1
2 2

In prior years, share options were granted to two non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid employees in respect of their services
to the Group, further details of which are included in the disclosures
in note 37 to the financial statements. The fair value of these options,
which has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is included in
the above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees’

remuneration disclosures.

BN > W4 I R IR R AT
BN B 2 f5 i 9 08 H DR 9846 2 A 42 0
1T AR S FBCHE - AT B A — A5 R A T
W BB R R N R 37 2 B ORI o 5% 5%
S Rt 2 28 Su(E CHEEC A i Je 401 1t 4R
i RN HERS) TR B E > At
ARG Z BB R 2 O A _E3CF
R R AT B 2 i B
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10. INCOME TAX

31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

10. FrfaAi

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2013:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year
(2013: Nil).

Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China are calculated at the

rates of tax prevailing in the provinces in which the Group operates.

Under the relevant income tax law, the PRC subsidiaries are subject
to corporate income tax (“CIT”) at a statutory rate of 25% on their

respective taxable income during the year.

PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including amortisation of land use rights,
borrowing costs and all property development expenditures. LAT of
HK$1,036,771,000 is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year (2013: HK$1,072,851,000).

7 42 [ 2 7 s R A5 B B AR TR AT (R0 A s
JE A 2 A IE B I F14%16.5% (—F—
=4 1 16.5%) ZBLERFTE o FIN o ANME
V) S 0 A 7 s o A AT o] RE R B Vs )
WS A A s A AR B (—F— =
i 4E) o

H B A o R R i R A AR 2 B SRR
AL B Ay 2 BATBURF . -

HRYEH B PG BLL o N > o IR
FZE R BB RRBE A 1% 35 52 B %225%
BT ERL ([ R2EPEHL]) -

R b B E B e T 3 2 30% %
60% 2 B Y > L (E RD B
2 T A5 0 T ol 0 35 - S fi P MRS -
B RAS BT A ) 3 B B S 2 T S0 B
X o AEE > CHAGHEAR PR
Hh 3 {5 $i1,036,771,000% 76 (& — =
4F 11,072,851,00045 70) ©

2014 2013
— %t e
HK$’000 HK$000
T#T THIT

Group: ZNAEE

Current — Mainland China B — AR ok 1,060,943 913,760

LAT in Mainland China H B R B -t (BB 1,036,771 1,072,851

Deferred Mainland China corporate AR SE B K A3

income tax (note 34) A mL (B 5E34) 251,164 (10,414)

Total tax charge for the year AR B TE S Y A 2,348,878 1,976,197
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10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
from continuing operations at the statutory income tax rate to the tax
expense at the Group’s effective income tax rate for the year, and a

reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the

effective tax rate, are as follows:
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31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

10. Fif3mi (4)

N SCRT R DA B B AR R R R £
AR 25 2 R T i A1) 2 A I B S B
AR G2 B A AE B A OB AR 2 BLIA B
32 ER RO ML (5 EBLR) B
AR L B

2014 2013
TR YA e SRS
HK$’000 % HK$°000 %
T-H#T T

Profit before tax from continuing RS

operations Bk o T ¥ ] 5,852,972 5,077,157
Tax at the statutory tax rate in Fi v B K e v E L R

Mainland China FHE 2 BUIH 1,463,242 25.0 1,269,289 25.0
Lower tax rates for specific provinces 457 & 5t 75 5

or enacted by local authorities il 72 2 BB &R 6,267 0.1 35,591 0.7
Profits and losses attributable to Wi ) JRE A Y )

associates K JEta (139,083) (2.4) (207,983) (4.1)
Profits and losses attributable to joint & %57\ &) FEAL i 7

ventures K JEia (11,678) (0.2) (54,792) (1.1)
Income not subject to tax HIEFRBLIA (267,342) (4.6) (160,116) (3.2)
Tax losses not recognised TR 2 B TE s 1H 157,987 2.7 110,579 2.2
Tax losses utilised OB 2 BlIE 18 (89,670) (1.5) (12,313) (0.2)
Expenses not deductible for tax ASa] R YE A0 e B S 325,626 5.6 82,326 1.6
Effect of withholding tax on AL E B

distributable profits of the Group’s R} Jog 2> 7 2 BT 43 IR

PRC subsidiaries i ) 2 TEAN R 8 125,919 2.2 108,978 2.1
LAT + Hb (L 1,036,771 17.7 1,072,851 21.1
Tax effect of LAT b I (B 2 BT (259,161) (4.4) (268,213) (5.4)
Tax charge at the Group’s T AR B R R

effective rate R 2 B T8 2,348,878 40.2 1,976,197 38.9
The share of taxes attributable to associates amounting to 3 A 4 2N W) B IH £5636,362,0009 7T

HK$636,362,000 (2013: HK$628,839,000) are included in “Share

of profits and losses of associates” on the face of the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

(=& —=4F : 628,839,000 7C) T.5I A
AEA IR R [ EAG A 7 i 1 X 518

A o
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11.

12.

13.

31 December 2014
=L =

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT 11. BEARIBEA N EAS i 1H
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent for the BE_ZFZ—-NE+_A=+—H I
year ended 31 December 2014 includes a loss of HK$478,790,000 (2013: BE BN B HEA N EAL 45 A i A5
HK$457,673,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements 478,790,000% 7T 5 18 (& — = 4 ¢
of the Company. 457,673,0003 70) A AL R Z B H5 IR
KPR o
DIVIDENDS 12. BB
2014 2013
e SuEs ZER-EA
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T T
Interim - HK3 cents (2013: B, — R
HK?7 cents) per WAl (ZF—=4F -
ordinary share 7¥AIl) 199,682 371,160
Proposed final dividend of HK13 cents 158 YR R A B A S A e
(2013: final dividend of HK12 cents) per 13l (F—=4F -
ordinary share A IS 12 #5411 865,287 645,727
1,064,969 1,016,887
On 26 March 2015, the board of directors proposed a final dividend AR —FAEZH —ANH > EFEER
of HK13 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2014 (Year REE_F-NETZA=+—H I
ended 31 December 2013: HK12 cents per share). The proposed final 2 R E B3l (R E —F—
dividend will be paid in cash but shareholders will be given the option ST A= HIREE  FRRE
of receiving such dividend wholly in new fully paid share(s) of the il o 58 R R A IS DA B 4B S A - M
Company (“scrip shares”) in lieu of cash, or partly in cash and partly in B R T AR 45 2 S LA AN 2 ) 2R AR R A
the form of scrip shares. (TCE B 1) AR B4 i o ABR 46 B
853 AR R B 6 J7 s R IR S o
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval AR AR R A A B B A A B IR
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general JRE Jigi J o B 4 K B SR - T AT A
meeting. "o
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13, B A o 2 15 A A AN

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 5,839,586,236
(2013: 4,643,891,403) in issue during the year.

g JR AR 8 ) 4 R T i R ) O
HE 2 AT N A 4 P9 iR ) 2 4R 4 2 354 T
- I HE - 24 %05,839,586,236 /% (—
T—=4F ¢ 4,643,891,403/8%) FIE o
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31 December 2014
AL =

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13. BEZR] %4 B RE %5 F7 A A\ EAL
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (%)
(CONTINUED)

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is based on AF B B R TEE 2 R 4 B TG R BN E] S E
JBeHE A 4 N A 4F v AR o AR
W IR 2 O R O aE R 2
AT E AR EE (B DS g iR A
BLANE) LA B ARSI B A7 VB AE
JBCARLAE A7 {68 s il 46 72 5538 R IR AR AR 34T

the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted

average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at

no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive FI%) 35 I AR ST 34 S o
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share amounts s FL A K7 8 T 2 R TG d R B 4% TE B
are based on: E
2014 2013
S e
HK$’000 HK$000
T TH#IT
Earnings B
Profit attributable to ordinary equity FH DAL A I SR A
holders of the parent, used in the P 7 2 BT
basic and diluted earnings per share A5 % 2
calculations 5 N REAL
From continuing operations P ASERT e 3,129,758 2,733,154
From a discontinued operation R IE R AR 2T 1,558 5,278
3,131,316 2,738,432
Number of shares
et i H
2014 2013
S U TR
Shares ety
Weighted average number of ordinary FH DA IR R A
shares in issue during the year used in B ZFEREELT
the basic earnings per share calculation e 50 R S ) 8 5,839,586,236 4,643,891,403
Effect of dilution - weighted average e 2 — A R RE
number of ordinary shares: TR
Share options S PR 1,974,878 33,077,079
5,841,561,114 4,676,968,482




Shenzhen Investment Limited

RINFERA BRA 7

Annual Report 2014 4t

148

Notes to Financial Statements

BB A e

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W3 ~ Bm Rkt
Group AL
Land and
buildings in
Mainland
China under Furniture,
medium term Leasehold  fixtures and Plantand  Construction
leases improvements  equipment Motor vehicles ~ machinery i progress Total
DA LA
PN
P g fRif
LiREE  WEEE RERRE HE RS fRLIE Lt
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000
T THT T T T Tz T
31 December 2014 “E—NE
+ZH=1-H
At 31 December 2013 and RoR—=
at 1 January 2014; +ZA=+-HkK
“F-ME-f—H:
Cost or valuation BB 2,614,347 233,281 229,332 85,510 198,297 9,227 3,369,994
Accumulated depreciation At (248,510) (80,323) (165,736) (56,435) (121,365) - (672,369)
Net carrying amount TRV 2,365,837 152,958 63,596 29,075 76,932 9,227 2,697,625
At 1 January 2014, net of REZ—NE-A—H
accumulated depreciation Tk ZHrE 2,365,837 152,958 63,596 29,075 76,932 9,007 2,697,625
Additions NE 27,770 40,381 16,964 2,991 5,009 23,770 116,885
Acquisition of a subsidiary W — A
(note 39) (f3E39) 375,025 437 8,024 5,908 6,549 11,288 407,231
Transfer from properties under RS EE
development (note 18) (HzE18) 9,934 - - - - - 9,934
Reclassification BHE - - - - 13,082 (13,082) -
Transfer to completed properties  #f# Zf{EfFE 2
held for sale EERE (33,066) - - - - - (33,066)
Disposals HE (619) - (1,937) (171) (8,958) - (11,685)
Surplus on revaluation B 242,536 - - - - - 242,536
Depreciation provided during the year A4 f¥ A i (65,167) (26,558) (33,602) (8,922) (15,200) - (149,449)
Exchange realignment (i3 (34,225) (2,160) (901) (483) (1,368) (372) (39,509)
At 31 December 2014, = Z— 4
net of +ZA=+-H>
accumulated depreciation TR BT 2,888,025 165,058 52,144 28,398 76,046 081 3240502
At 31 December 2014; REF—é
FZAZ+—H:
Cost or valuation WA fh 308917 270457 258,648 95,009 171,197 30831 405,099
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (340,892) (105,399) (206,504) (66,611) (95,151) - (814,557)
Net carrying amount JE A VR 2,888,025 165,058 52,144 28,398 76,046 30,831 3,240,502
Analysis of cost or valuation: BASE B :
At cost IS 1,150,384 270,457 258,648 95,009 171,197 30,831 1,976,526
At valuation fhifa 2,078,533 - - - - - 2,078,533
3,228,917 270,457 258,648 95,009 171,197 30,831 4,055,059
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A 5 R By
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W3 ~ B Mkt (48)
(CONTINUED)
Group (continued) 3 (48)
Landand  Landand
buildings ~ buildings in
inHong  Mainland
Kongunder  China under Furniture,
medium term  medium term Leasehold  fixtures and Motor ~ Plantand Construction
leases leases improvements  equipment vehicles  machinery in progress Total
Mrdits D
IEE RTERRE
1 v fig EUS
THRET THRET WKL RERHE RE HERH  ERLIE Eit ]
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Tk T Tk T Tk T Tk Tt
31 December 2013 ZE-CZHEFTASTH
At 31 December 2012 and RoE-CF
at 1 January 2013; tZA=t—R R
“F-E-f-R
Cost or valuation WA E 3109 2218457 145539 24888 35790 192457 B8 313348
Accumulated depreciation 2tk (108)  (206127) (65606 (142261)  (197.030)  (107,844) - (9,96
Net carrying amount SR (E 3,001 2,012,330 79,933 72,627 128,560 84,613 33,188 2,414,252
At 1 January 2013, net of REZE—=E—F—H
accumulated depreciation BB ETHTE 3000 2,012,330 79,933 72,627 128,560 84613 3188 241425
Additions WE - - 59,446 20,397 120,002 3,289 - 203,134
Acquisition of a subsidiary B AR - 4,506 1,470 297 2 -8
Transfer from properties under BR AR
development ES - 99,319 - - - - - 99,319
Reclassification R - - 24,708 - - - (24,708) -
Transfer from completed properties  #ifi Hf{Efrf 2
held for sale ERAE - 7,186 - - - - - 7,186
Disposals hil= - (4859) (2,544) (1,103) (5,743) (113) - (14,362)
Included in assets held for sale AR ER (3069)  (62706) (44) (1428)  (170,893) (589) - (m89)
Depreciation provided during the year A% &4 i = (54,829) (14,702) (34,438) (45,015) (12,001) = (161,205)
Exchange realignment 5 68 27454 1,635 6,071 1,867 1928 747 39,790
At 31 December 2013, RoZE—=
net of TZAZ1-=H
accumulated depreciation BNRETHTE - 2365837 152,958 63,59 29,075 76,932 9227 2,697,625
At 31 December 2013; BRoE—=
+ZHZ+-R:
Cost or valuation WA E - 264347 3381 29332 85510 198297 9207 3,369,9%
Accumulated depreciation ZithE - (48510 (80323)  (165736)  (56435) (121,365 - (672369)
Net carrying amount A - 2368 152958 659 2907 76,93 9207 2697605
Analysis of cost or valuation: WA ENM
At cost %S - 2,435,042 233,281 229,332 85,510 198,297 9,227 3,190,689
At valuation fhfE - 179,303 - - - - - 179,305
- 2,614,347 233,281 229,332 85,510 198,297 9,227 3,369,994
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2014
= S

14. W3 ~ W Bt ()

(CONTINUED)

The Group’s land and buildings were revalued at 31 December 2014
by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professionally
qualified property valuers, at an aggregate open market value of
HK$2,078,533,000 based on their existing use. A revaluation surplus of
HK$242,536,000, resulting from the above valuation, has been credited

to other comprehensive income.

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Nongke, a subsidiary
acquired by the Group on 22 August 2014 as detailed in note 39, and
an independent third party on 3 September 2012, Nongke agreed to
dispose of certain of its buildings to the independent third party for a
cash consideration of RMB250,457,000. As at 31 December 2014, the
carrying amount of the buildings was HK$15,339,000. Further details

of the agreement are included in note 19 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has not yet obtained the ownership
certificates in respect of the buildings with a net book value of
HK$357,994,000 (2013: HK$348,982,000).

At 31 December 2014, certain of the Groups land and buildings
in Mainland China with a net book value of approximately
HK$1,104,045,000 (2013: HK$879,033,000) were pledged to secure
bank loans granted to the Group (note 31(a)(i)).

AL & R B R AR
CHE+ BBy HESERYE
At (L BT U 7 (R B I A PR ) e L B
W2 AR AT Al > HA BTG AU 7
2,078,533,000%5 It o - %l T ki g Ak 2
1 74 #7242,536,000% 76 E 51 A HiAth 4= 1
zs o

AN B RE3O TR o AR PR R B (AR 4R E R
TR N A —
BAT) BB =R E— AL
H = H L2 Wbk - J2 B[R] 25 ) 48 57
BErERETHE HERER
A R #5250,457,0007C © A & — U 4E A
ZHE1T—H BEMFEZREES
15,339,000% JC o % I wk 2 #E — 25 FF I
SR FAB SR B RE 19,

WZE—E+—A=Z+—H K&
] 1) A B A5 R 1T 99 (L £ 357,994,000945 76
(% —=4F : 348,982,000 7C) Z HiF
2 EHERE -

WO —EF H=+—H, A&
] 5 T R TET U 4 £%91,104,045,000 7T
(& —=4F 1 879,033,000% J0) Z it
B K e 5 AT 2 Tt B AR T R AE 2 AR
£ [ BT RE R SRAT Bk 2 MR R (B3 1(a)
(i) °
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2014
AL =

14. W3 ~ BB K3 (5)

(CONTINUED)
Furniture and Motor
Company A F] fixtures vehicles Total
AR B2 e HH HE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T¥I0 T-¥o0 T¥I0
31 December 2014 ZE—NE+H=+—H
At 1 January 2014, net of M_F—E—~H—H -
accumulated depreciation AN Bt 136 452 588
Additions PN 164 - 164
Depreciation provided during the year 24 i 47 5 43 g (47) (361) (408)
At 31 December 2014, AT YA
net of +-H=+—H>
accumulated depreciation AN Bt 253 91 344
At 31 December 2014: i E— P4
+=A=t—R:
Cost J AR 1,568 4,324 5,892
Accumulated depreciation Bty (1,315) (4,233) (5,548)
Net carrying amount HE T 5H(H 253 91 344
Furniture and Motor
Company AT fixtures vehicles Total
EL Y& SN R HaER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T o T¥oT T¥oo
31 December 2013 X —-=Ft+_"H=+—H
At 1 January 2013, net of MoFE—=F—H—H -
accumulated depreciation AN R 111 858 969
Additions S E 70 = 70
Depreciation provided during the year 74 47 25 4 g (45) (406) (451)
At 31 December 2013, N_E—=
net of +—-H=+—H">
accumulated depreciation AN BT 136 452 588
At 31 December 2013: A ZE— =4
+ZH=+—R:
Cost BA 1,404 4,324 5,728
Accumulated depreciation 2 e (1,268) (3,872) (5,140)
Net carrying amount R TRV 136 452 588
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15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15, FEA LA BRI
Group
AR AL
2014 2013
e S U142 ZE AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHIL ARV
Carrying amount at 1 January w—H—H Z I 46,940 50,559
Transfer from properties under HLE G B ) 2E
development (note 18) (Bf5EL8) 177 1,540
Recognised during the year AN ERR (1,600) (2,206)
Assets included in a discontinued FEAJE R A 28 4 2T
operation Z G - (4,040)
Exchange realignment [ifE 53, o (829) 1,087
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ H=+—HZIREHE 44,688 46,940
Current portion included in prepayments, #I ATETFHIE ~ 514 &
deposits and other receivables A AT 3 VB 2 B 49 (1,451) (1,477)
Non-current portion JE B HA B 43 43,237 45,463
The leasehold lands are held under medium term leases and are FHE b DA R EAFH 20 R > 3647 5 H B

situated in Mainland China. KEE o
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16. GOODWILL

31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

16. m%

Group A4 HK$’000
THIT
Cost at 1 January 2013 N E S H 2 AR 322,744
Exchange realignment T 5, & 112
Cost and carrying amount MRoE—=ZF+_H=1T—HZ
at 31 December 2013 AR % M T 322,856
At 31 December 2013: NoEFE—=F+_"_HA=+—H :
Cost AR 322,856
Accumulated impairment ZEHE -
Net carrying amount JEATREIEN 322,856
Cost at 1 January 2014 T E—PUE— A — HZ AR 322,856
Exchange realignment HEE 52, 37 B¢ (o1)
Cost and carrying amount BoE—lNE+_H=1T—HZ
at 31 December 2014 AR % R 1 322,765
At 31 December 2014: W FE—E+_—_H=+—H :
Cost JAR 322,765
Accumulated impairment ZEHEE _
Net carrying amount MR T T 322,765

Impairment testing of goodwill
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of interests in subsidiaries has
been allocated to the following cash-generating units, for impairment

testing:

o Property development cash-generating unit

. Property investment cash-generating unit

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units have been
determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The key assumptions adopted on
growth rates and discount rates used in the value-in-use calculations
are based on management’s best estimates. The growth rate of 2% (2013:
2%) is determined by considering both internal and external factors
relating to the relevant segments. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 12% (2013:12%).

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the
key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts of goodwill are
based would not cause the carrying amounts of goodwill to exceed its

recoverable amounts.

T 1 0 3

PR A 2 7 2 Wl e 2
53 25T 91 B 4 7 LG 4
B

o WIERBBEEARN
. WIEEEBEEAEREA

B4 7 A BV 22 T i (] B A L HAR DR
BB N B 2 AR B TE
JH B 4 i e TR SO 2 0 B (R o
Ao P £ 30 R gl 346 = 38 % U B e R A4
Z EBARRE I ARR A PG 2 AR A w
B o WMRF2% (TE—=4 :2%) JY
A BAAHBA A B 2 ISR R AR R E -
B 45 Vi 12 T U0 8 T 22 B B Ay 129 (—
FE—=45F 1 12%) o

T ARG o B PR R T o [ T AR
B2z E BRSBTS BT RESE )
IS G 5 | S50 R AR AT (B A8 HE AT i o]
i o
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17. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

31 December 2014
= S

17. FfEfe 2 C% %

During the year ended 31 December 2014, completed properties
held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$782,652,000 were transferred to investment properties upon
change in use as evidenced by the signing of relevant tenancy
agreements. The excess of the fair value of these properties at the date
of transfer over their carrying amounts, amounting to approximately
HK$846,820,000, was recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

During the year, impairment provision of HK$169,472,000 (2013: Nil)
for certain completed properties held for sale located in Mainland
China was recognised in “Other expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. In making the impairment assessment,
the Group’s management has determined the recoverable amount of
these properties on the basis of their fair value less costs to sell on a
market value basis with reference to the valuation carried out by Asset
Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professionally qualified
property valuers. The valuation was arrived at by making reference
to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties with
adjustments for factors such as differences in scale of development,

development density, location, type of development and time periods.

In addition, the application for ownership certificates of certain
completed properties held for sale located at Li Lin Terrace (44K
%6) and Li Cui Court (FHZ[H) of Nongke and its subsidiaries (the
“Nongke Group”) with a total carrying value of HK$13,740,000 as at
31 December 2014 was still in progress. Pursuant to the Acquisition
Agreement as detailed in note 39 to the financial statements, any
interest in the properties located at Li Lin Terrace (75#38) and Li
Cui Court (% #2[4]) with the total carrying amount of HK$13,740,000
as at 31 December 2014, of which the ownership certificates have not
yet been issued, shall be deemed to be owned by Shum Yip Holdings
if certain conditions are not satisfied by the Nongke Group within a
specified period of time, further details of which are included in note

39 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2014, the Groups completed properties held for
sale with a net book value of approximately HK$16,419,000 (2013: Nil)
were pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 31(a)
(ii)).

#HE_F—-NE+H=+—HILF
BE M T AR 5 782,652,000%5 IG5 1 1F
B 2 VR U S 8 R T A B LR
EAIEMEINE R S Jan - & Ei'd S //E
TSR H Y > B2 20N N S (R
$ T L 755 9 4 £5846,820,000%5 7T £ 1A 45
G iR 4 R AER o

N B TR B K RE 2 FEERE
Z B VE ) S R U(E HE 169,472,000
WL (CF— =4 &) B4R ESR
TR Ly [ HABBASZ | o AE i WE RS
B> AEEEHEEREMIIEELSY
o ) A L o Sl Y (R 1) A PR
ONE ZAGEAS > T LA Ao 8 Ik B B
A (P B (E) 2 % S EEZ Tk
] &8 o A7 B A (B 2 BB U 260
558 Gy (B A IR T A2 B0 > Sl vl gk 4 e i
B - R - E - R
T RF 355 TR R A AR o

WA A E -+ A =+ —
H o R E Mg 2w (TR RHE M )
AL 75 AR B K T 2R 22 W T AR E A
13,740,000 70 2 & T HefEfRr s 2 7%
B 2 2 B A5 HE RS S 2 R A AR AT
o AR5 B S R 3 B s 30 At 2 i
T e - A S R A I A A A PR A R
B T > I 75 AR B0 M 7 22 7
Z W R AE A R MR R
E—ES A=+ — A AR EE
13,740,000% 7)) 2 ATl HE 2545 B B R 2
(L) B - A B — 25 5 E A R B 55
R M3 -

AE—EFZH =+ —H > A4
I 17 93 {EL £916,419,00095 JC (% — =
i) ZHRHERRE Z T TR
VR £ 7 4 ] BT A6 4% SR AT B0k 2 4f 4R
(Bt 5E31(a) (i) °
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31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

18. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 18. Ry
Group
AR
2014 2013
—% —x=
HK$’000 HK$’000
T-H#IT THIT
Land in Mainland China held under DA r HAFE 4 1 m 8 K A
medium term leases, at cost: Z L s R
At beginning of year EAT) 21,076,061 10,933,166
Additions NE 1,181,745 2,462,889
Disposal of a subsidiary th B — [T i B8 4 )

(note 40) (Bt E40) (150,545) -
Transfer from other long term assets e g b R A 115,877 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary S — ] o 2

(note 39) (Bf$5E39) 8,377,658 8,700,613
Transfer to completed properties held R EREZ

for sale B3RS (4,882,946) (1,964,935)
Transfer from investment properties LIS IS ES < E/ES

(note 19) (FfF&E19) 185,948 668,002
Transfer to prepaid land g FE AT

lease payments FHL & #KTE - (1,540)
Exchange realignment i b, o8] (382,066) 277,866
At 31 December wt+—_HA=+—H 25,521,732 21,076,061

Development expenditure, at cost: BEESZ Y > FeRLA -
At beginning of year AEH) 7,280,810 4,790,707
Additions NE 7,105,248 4,998,497
Disposal of a subsidiary H B — ] B B A

(note 40) (Kft5E40) (1,341) -
Acquisition of a subsidiary IS e — ] o 2 )

(note 39) (K &E39) 4,556 819,797
Transfer to completed properties held B RHEREZ

for sale SEISE/ES (8,689,078) (3,759,476)
Transfer from investment properties R H ARG Yk

(note 19) (K$5E19) - 418,070
Transfer to property, plant and A EYE - BB R

equipment (note 14) st (fsk14) (9,934) (99,319)
Exchange realignment [ 5a, 3 & (129,152) 112,534
At 31 December Wt+—H=+—H 5,561,109 7,280,810
Provision for impairment A (287,893) -

30,794,948 28,356,871
Properties under development expected to A AT g [H]
be recovered: BRTY)E
Within one year —4E R 7,535,889 8,862,652
After more than one year I — AR 23,259,059 19,494,219
30,794,948 28,356,871
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18. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

31 December 2014
= S

18. @bzt (A1)

(CONTINUED)

During the year, impairment provision of HK$287,893,000 (2013:
Nil) for certain properties under development located in Mainland
China was recognised in “Other expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. In making the impairment assessment,
the Group’s management has determined the recoverable amount
of these properties on the basis of their fair value less costs to sell
on a market value basis with reference to the valuation carried out
by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professionally
qualified property valuers. The valuation was arrived at by making
reference to comparable transactions for bare land as available in the
relevant markets and taken into account the construction costs already
expended, with adjustments for factors such as differences in scale of
development, development density, location, type of development and

time periods.

Properties under development included interest expense of
HK$1,106,821,000 (2013: HK$939,324,000) for the year ended 31

December 2014 that was incurred and capitalised.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s properties under development
with a net book value of approximately HK$1,962,590,000 (2013:
HK$1,826,242,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted to the
Group (note 31(a)(iii)).

As at 31 December 2014, the application for certificates of land use
rights in Mainland China for land held under medium term leases with
a net book value of RMB5,214,930,880 (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,513,970,000) (2013: HK$1,531,689,000) was still in progress.

GENTNIEI 2 o VA N 7 N e e
) 2 T 4R (B Y 45287,893,000%5 I (-
T— =4 ) BN IEE RS
[ AR S | o JAE s B R Al I > AR
V) L 46 2 25 e ST B2 A R
(L v 22 0 7 (B P A PR ) 2 Al
(B 1% > EA4% A AR RA (BT
WHEE) e 5255 W) 2 2l i e <5 4 o
A BB T 2 BB AR B T 25 1 al LR
1022 B 52 by HLASEE R B N 2 #E sk
JAS T EE B > 7 P A o R ) 25
R - LB - BRI KR
E (ke

BEPYECFHE T UEF A
= t—HIEFEEEARE EARLZ
H] B BH 321,106,821,000% ¢ (& — =
4F 1 939,324,000%5 70) °

ATR—AEFT A =1T—H » A4EH
2 W T T (E £91,962,590,0009 6 (— &
— = 4F 1 1,826,242,000%5 J6) < ¥ JE
Y2 C AR AR AR B2 SR AT Bk 2 447

(Fff5E31(a)(iii)) °

A E—WEF A=+ —H KH
T EH A R #5,214,930,88070 (# % Jit
#16,513,970,000% JG) (— &F — =
1,531,689,000% JG) 2 DA o A FH & 14 o
K e R A 2 b fof R 2 F ) A o
i1 o
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31 December 2014
AL =

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. #EWHE
2014 R Group
AR
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties at construction at
fair value fair value Total
WA R EL /N W
)i HikZ
[S/951 e
BEYH B A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
T T#T T#T
Carrying amount at RoFEE—~H—-HZ
1 January 2014 AR T (H 8,870,561 6,428,988 15,299,549
Additions NN - 502,624 502,624
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39) Wl — I FHE AR (FffE39) 2,917,954 - 2,917,954
Transfer from completed properties 84 H Rp{EfFE 2
held for sale (note 17) BRI (FE17) 1,629,472 - 1,629,472
Transfer to properties under (XA ER Iy E S
development (note 18) (Kff5E18) (185,948) - (185,948)
Transfer to completed properties held ## 4 =R {EfFE 2
for sale BRI RYES (446,051) - (446,051)
Net gain from a fair value adjustment i 8 £ H R 2 28 fo(E
recognised in profit or loss A 2 4l A 739,508 24,577 764,085
Disposal futh {5 (166,483) - (166,483)
Exchange realignment [fE be, i & (195,480) (101,128) (296,608)
Carrying amount at i E— P4
31 December 2014 T A=t HZ IR E 13,163,533 6,855,061 20,018,594
Unrealised gains for the year AN = Er N
included in profit or loss EN ST & 675,824 24,577 700,401
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

31 December 2014

U B

19. BEWE (F)

2013 —E =4 Group
EN
Investment  Investment
Completed properties properties
investment under under
properties at construction construction
fair value at fair value at cost Total
A HARE HENA
Flkz Sl FlRZ
B %M T+ FEE
BEYE  wEYE BEYE ikl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
S L
Carrying amount at MNoFE—=4F—H—H2Z
1 January 2013 HEE T (1 9,132,939 - 77,400 9,210,339
Additions NE - 369,722 146,885 516,607
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wz B — ] B o A ) = 6,116,333 - 6,116,333
Transfer to properties under [ §71 D)
development BRI (787,190) (74,597) (224,285)  (1,086,072)
Net gain from a fair value A HH A RS
adjustment recognised in NI K
profit or loss Z AR 624,403 = = 624,403
Disposal fit (55 (139,076) - - (139,076)
Assets included in FEA R RE
a discontinued operation AT B (177,710) = = (177,710)
Exchange realignment T 5, ol 217,195 17,530 - 234,725
Carrying amount T — U4
at +ZA=+—HRxZ
31 December 2014 R TR {E 8,870,561 6,428,988 - 15,299,549
Unrealised gains for the year  FI ARzt 2 F A
included in profit or loss 7% 58 B A 4 618,664 - - 618,664

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland China and

are held under medium term leases.

AAE 2 BUE Y SE AL B OB > A DL

HIATH AR -
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

31 December 2014
= S

19. BEWE (F)

On 5 January 2011, Nongke, a subsidiary acquired by the Group on
22 August 2014 as detailed in note 39, entered into an agreement with
a real estate developer (the “Counterparty”), an independent third
party. Pursuant to the agreement, Nongke agreed to exchange certain
of its investment properties, which are located at Longxi Garden (HE
1% {E[), Futian District, Shenzhen, the PRC, for new properties with
total gross floor areas of 8,469.85 square metres to be built by the
Counterparty. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of the
investment properties was HK$301,308,000. The new properties will
be built by the Counterparty at the current location of Longxi Garden
upon demolishment of the existing properties owned by Nongke. On
3 September 2012, Nongke entered into a supplemental agreement
with the Counterparty. Pursuant to the supplemental agreement,
Nongke agreed to dispose of certain of its buildings under property,
plant and equipment, which are also located at Longxi Garden to
the Counterparty for a cash consideration of RMB250,457,000. As
at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of these buildings was
HK$15,339,000 (note 14). The demolishment of these buildings will
be commenced within 30 days after full payment of the amount of
RMB250,457,000 by the Counterparty. On 27 September 2012, an
advance payment of RMB30,000,000 was received by Nongke. At the
date of approval of these financial statements, the remaining balance of
RMB220,457,000 is not paid by the Counterparty, and the timetable for

the demolishment of these properties is not determined yet.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain investment properties
of the Group with a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$1,758,953,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$2,092,941,000)
have not yet been issued by the relevant PRC authorities. The Group is

in the process of obtaining the relevant certificates.

o E——FE—HHH > BR (REE
AT E—PUAENHA T il —
Bt A > wE LB sE39) BRI AE =
5 3 rE B S ([ 1) T30 ik o AR
RaZ bk o SRR AL B R T
A H [ BE VR AE B 27 T HOE Y 2L B
7 #5714 48 7 S TH R £98,469.85°F 77 K
M- RoF—NE+ZH=1+—
H > &M 3% 2 AR (H £5301,308,000 7%
TG o T IR 2 7 18 R R B R
A W AR A BE IR AE [ A B RS o R
SR TENAZH > BRI R
M FE ek o MR SRk > SRR 1)
oy HEWE - WE KEHEE AT
B (IR 2 FEVR AL ) > B4 {0 ME
7y N R H5250,457,0007C © it % — U 4F
T A=+ —H > ZEYEZIREHES
15,339,000%% 70 (Bt 5E14) o 95 48 5% 55 1
1A 3 7 A2 RS AN R 250,457,000
JGZ FKIEAR30H N B A o A T —
FERAZ+HEH > BREWREMKA
[& #30,000,0007C ° A 5% % B B R &
HEAE FHE > 3B 07 R SO A BR AN R
220,457,0007C » S5 78 5% 55 1) 3 2 hp [
R RME -

AE—-PES T H =+ HAREME
HiE T 7 {H £ £51,758,953,0003 6 (&
— =4 1 2,092,941,000% 7T) 2 45 T %
) S R v A R S A 3 T A

o A ST AE HE AR BRARERE & T4 o
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

31 December 2014
= S

19. BEWE (F)

Included in the investment properties with certificates of ownership not
yet been issued as abovementioned were properties of HK$62,705,000
located at Longxi Garden and Xiangli Garden (% %% {E[#) owned by the
Nongke Group as at 31 December 2014. Pursuant to the Acquisition
Agreement dated 27 January 2014 as detailed in note 39 to the financial
statements, any interest in the properties located at Longxi Garden and
Xiangli Garden, of which the ownership certificates have not yet been
issued, shall be deemed to be owned by Shum Yip Holdings if certain
conditions are not satisfied by the Nongke Group within a specified
period of time, further details of which are included in note 39 to the

financial statements.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s investment property with
a net book value of approximately HK$5,758,608,000 (2013:
HK$4,157,621,000) was pledged to secure bank loans granted to the
Group (note 31(a)(iii)).

The Group’s investment properties consist of several commercial
and industrial properties in Mainland China. The directors of the
Company have determined that the investment properties consist
of two classes of asset, i.e., commercial and industrial, based on
the nature, characteristics and risks of each property. The Group’s
investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2014 based on
valuation performed by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent
firm of professionally qualified property valuers, at approximately
HK$20,018,594,000.

The Group’s investment properties under construction are measured
at cost until such time as fair value can be determined reliably or

construction is completed.

L R E AR REYER
FERFHERR®R —F—HEF A=+
— H A 2 DA HEIR AE B B A 7 A6 F
62,705,000% TG Z W) % o MIFH WA =
T—4E—H =+ H 2 i e O
T 5 2 B 30 F L) o ik St B AR A
Fi 2 A BR IA R 22 B T 0 - R A BE
VA 7 B A 75 A0 [ 1) ¥ R 28 8 BT A
FA 5% 55 ) 36 2 AT Al HE 45 45 7 H R 26 (4
B) BEA - A B 20 R E HUR B R
R MEE39 o

o E—PAEF A=+ —H > A%E
HE 7 B T 75 {E 495,758,608,00095 76 (—
T — Z4E 0 4,157,621,000% 00) 2 &
W ZEAE B A 4R I T 4 SR AT Bk 2 A IR
(Bff 531 (a)(iii)) °

AR AR [ 2 B S LA 22 TEAL A P R
e PHSE R LT o« RN REHCIL
KYEZHE - R R A a2
MG E > BIpIE R T o A4
B RGN R —E A =T
— H 2 37 B A A S A AT
2 T (R A PR R 2 A (A A
#120,018,594,000%5 JC °

A B 2 A R A W) 36 T A
B HEN R A 5 E s Rk
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group’s investment properties:

31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

19. #EWE ()
O\ PGS AR
TRISAEBREWEZ A ARMAERE
LRI

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2014 using

R VLT S
RoE-NET+ZA=+—H
AT Z N el R
Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
4 HA K
[ip = g R
e iy A\ iy A AE
(58—Jg) (58 ) (SB=JF) A
Recurring fair value HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
measurement for: RN REFHE R T T T#T
Commercial properties [HE e - - 16,327,052 16,327,052
Industrial properties T EEMFE - - 3,691,542 3,691,542
- - 20,018,594 20,018,594
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2013 using
PR LA B
RoB—=fE+ A =+—H
AT Z N Al
Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
A T HR HR
WGz CIp ks VIR %23
HAE A E T AE
(&) (ZBER) (B=J2) K
Recurring fair value HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
measurement for: REHEARMEFE T T TH#TT T
Recurring fair value
measurement for BN AMERHE
Commercial properties T - - 11,303,852 11,303,852
Industrial properties T T - - 3,995,697 3,995,697

15,299,549 15,299,549

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

TAAAEBE R - 5 — g K — s i st
B DI R A =8 -
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 19.

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key

31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

BEYE ()
DA 45 0 Sl L9 P 2 A (67 3

inputs to the valuation of investment properties: B A TN G P

Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Range or weighted average

7 % BRA B @A E A 5 -

As at 31 December 2014
REF—mE+ZA=+—H
Commercial properties Comparison method Market unit sale rate (RMB/sq.m.) 8,200 - 43,000 (20,400)
ES &5 bk REAEE (AR PR
Industrial properties Comparison method Market unit sale rate (RMB/sq.m.) 5,400 - 34,000 (13,900)
TERT bk diEEAEE AR¥T /TR
As at 31 December 2013
REF—=#+"HA=+—H
Commercial properties Comparison method Market unit sale rate (RMB/sq.m.) 8,000 - 27,000 (16,000)
e T bk WHEAERE (AR, FIK)
Industrial properties Comparison method Market unit sale rate (RMB/sq.m.) 5,000 - 24,000 (11,000)
THEMET e dEEAEE (AR¥T/ Ik

The fair values of investment properties are determined using the
comparison method by making references to comparable sale evidence
as available in the relevant market. Comparable properties of similar
size, character and location are analysed and selected for each
investment property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of their
fair values. The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the

market unit sale rate.

PG ZE 2 N P B 48 2 BN B T 3 ] 3%
Pb i 2 8 15 18 AE 4R PR T EL ik 3 DL i
TE o SEBUAT LN SUAE ECE - i A
BOEY T ROEFR R/ - R A B
AL AT LB 3 o o fefd st B
LA A 2 A B
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31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. MHEARRE
Company
A F]

2014 2013

.l UI 22 —E =

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHIL ARV

Unlisted shares, at cost FE b Ay o H AR 17,062,722 11,136,984

Due from subsidiaries* JRE AT BF S 2 ) ek T+ 1,005,940 1,005,940
Capital contribution in respect of employee & B LA £y 2L b >

share-based compensation A AR 3K 33,716 25,259

Classified as held for sale B R E - (71,220)

18,102,378 12,096,963

Impairment** R el (5,000) (5,000)

18,097,378 12,091,963

*%

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and have no fixed terms
of repayment. The amounts due from subsidiaries of HK$949,546,000
(2013: HK$949,546,000) are interest-free, while the remaining balance of
HK$56,394,000 (2013: HK$56,394,000) bears interest at rates ranging from 5%
t0 6.31% (2013: 5% to 6.31%) per annum.

An impairment was recognised for certain unlisted investments with a carrying

amount of HK$5,000,000 (before deducting the impairment loss).

The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included in the Company’s

current assets and current liabilities are unsecured, interest-free and

are repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of amounts due from

and to subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.

o REA R G 4 D T R AR B 4 i
Y] o JE MR BRG] 3K 1E1949,546,000
W50 (% — = 4F © 949,546,000 7C)
By 8 83 56,394,000 U6 (&K —
=4F 1 56,394,000%5 JG) % &4 A F5)E
F631E (T F — =4 : 5/ £6.31/F)
FHAALE o

R {E 455,000,000 70 (4801 Bk 6 (8
Al 2T L& O R EIE -

FEAARR R Z BV EE LR E) AR
W B B AT RS J 2 W) RO A SRS - G
B SRR o %5 R K
5K AF JE 2 ] i T R T B RGN 0 (ELA

-

E‘o
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

31 December 2014
AL =

20. M@ w&E (4)
LM A FRER T

Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity

registration and registered share interest attributable

Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
L/ RE R CRTHE/ RATIRERGZ
%k BRI ik MR A WHEE A TR
2014 2013
—B-mE | F-2k
Shum Yip Southern Land (Holdings) PRC/Mainland China HK$1,702,500,000 100 100 Property investment and
Co., Ltd. (note b) hE /B kR 1,702,500,0007 1 development
R HE (M) ARAF (HEED) VESIS VT S
Shum Yip Centre Development (Shenzhen) Co., PRC/Mainland China HK$40,000,000 100 100 Property investment
Ltd. (notes a & ¢) /R A b 40,000,000% 7 MERE
LB (WO HRAR (Hitalic)
Shum Yip Shumkang (Group) Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB95,500,000 - 80 Provision of transportation
(“Shum Yip Shumkang”) (note d) /R N E#95,500,0007C services
WREIRE (H) ARAR (TR g
(HtzEd)
Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB§00,000,000 75.05 75.05 Property investment and
(“Shum Yip Terra”) (note d) /A b A EE800,000,0007C development
WRBR (EH) BOARAR ESIS VT F s
([HERR]) (Hfikd)
Shenzhen Terra Construction Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 75.05 75.05 Manufacture and sale of
(notes a & c) g/ Bk NE#10,000,0007C aluminum products
YT R ER AR TRARAF WERHERREER
(WiEafec)
Shenzhen Terra Property Management Service ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB5,060,000 75.05 75.05 Property management
Co., Ltd. (notes a & c) /R A b 5,060,000 0 WEER
PRINTI 28 SRS MR A R A 7
(M&EaRe)
Wuhan Shum Yip Terra Property Development ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB137,000,000 75.05 75.05 Property development
Co., Ltd. (notes a & c) VI DN AB137,000,0007C UESES
BT TR AR R M P B R )
(W7Ealc)
Shum Yip TaiFu (notes a & c) PRC/Mainland China RMB166,495,352 95.77 95.37 Operation of warehouses and
FERE (Mikakc) /KR AR #166,495,3527C property development
ABRARrMEHRSR
Shum Yip Pengji Holdings Co., Ltd. (note b) PRC/Mainland China RMB932,050,000 100 100 Property investment and
VREMEE: (SRR ARAF (Hizkb) /B B A R#932,050,0007C development
VESIS VT s
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

31 December 2014
AL =

Wit g 2 W BEE (7)
T MR AR ()

Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity

registration and registered share interest attributable

Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
L/ R CH#TLE,/ ARAF A Z
#iti S Rk MR A BHEE A TR
2014 2013
%W | =32
Shenzhen Pengji Property Management Services PRC/Mainland China RMB40,000,000 100 100 Property management
Limited (notes a & c) (Te3: &%) /R A b A B40,000,00078 WEEH
VRYITH BB AL 3 RIS A PR )
(HikaBic) (BAEERE)
Shenzhen Shum Yip Steel Centre Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB19,920,000 100 100 Manufacture of steel products
(notes a & c) S/ AE19,920,0007C WERRER
RIFRLEHRAR (Hikakc)
Shenzhen Wondershine Residence Company PRC/Mainland China RMB15,000,000 100 100 Property management
Limited (notes a & c) /R A b A R15,000,00078 WEEH
VRYIT BB A IR AR (i iEafte)
Shum Yip Investment (Shenzhen) PRC/Mainland China US$150,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Co, Ltd. (note b) /A 150,000,0003% 7C BRI
VOREER () AR (REEED)
Changsha Pengji Property Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB75,000,000 80 80 Property development
(notes a &) R /KR B #75,000,0007 ESLE
RUBEMEHRAR (FrTalc)
Huizhou Pengji Investment Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 100 Property development
(notes a & c) /K b AR #10,000,0007C Bk
BEMBESEHRAR (Hikakc)
Shum Yip (Shenzhen) Property Management ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100 100 Property management
Limited (notes a & c) I/ A b A B30,000,000 78 MEEH
WREE (Y FEEHARA R
(MzEac)
Dongguan Shum Yip Property Development PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 100 Property development
Limited (notes a & ) VAN B #10,000,0007C ESE S
FEEM AR MEARAR (Witakc)
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20.

31 December 2014
AL =

Wif g o> w4 ()

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

EEMBE ARG T - ()

Place of incorporation/
registration and

Issued ordinary/
registered share

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
L/ R CH#TLE,/ ARAF A Z
#iti S Rk MR A BHEE A TR
2014 2013
%W | =32
Foshan Shunde Shum Yip Property Development PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100 100 Property development
Limited (notes a & c) /R A b A B20,000,00078 Bk
L M 7 R S M A R A )
(MzEaic)
Changzhou Shum Yip Property Development ~ PRC/Mainland China U5899,800,000 100 100 Property development
Limited (note b) VAN 99,800,000 7 ELES
EMERRERRAR (k)
Chengdu Xinyi Property Development Limited ~ PRC/Mainland China RMBS,000,000 - 52.535 Property development
(“Chengdu Xinyi”) (notes a & c) /A b N\ E8,000,000C EiE
R A6 7 M A B PR
(TRAROG ) (BifiEafc)
Shum Yip Land Company Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100 100 Property development
(notes a & c) VAN A RH50,000,00078 ELE
WEBMARAR (Witalke)
Shum Yip East China Property Development PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100 100 Property development
Co, Ltd. (notes a & c) il VAN AR 50,000,0007 UESEES
VR R B AR (Wi iEa ko)
China Shum Yip (Group) Property Investment  B.V.I./Mainland China US$200 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited ERAERIE 200 7T REEK
(notes a & c) Hh K
MEEE (RH) hEREARAE
(WiEafec)
Shenyang Wuai Shumkang Transportation PRC/Mainland China RMB400,000,000 80.352 74.675 Property development
Centre (Limited) (notes a & c) /A b N E#400,000,0007C and investment and
EH LR BB (HRAR) transportation station
(Fitalec) management
VELLE YT Ia OV L
&l
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

31 December 2014
AL =

20. M@ w&E (4)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

LM ARG T - ()

Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered share interest attributable
Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
L/ RE R CRTHE/ AT Z
A BRE RE MR A BoEE A FEEH
2014 2013
ZF-pg | 2R 28
Shenyang Wuai Shenzhen Real Estate PRC/Mainland China HKD62,403,000 80.352 74.675 Property development
Development Company Limited /B B 62,403,000 7 ESL L
(notes a & ¢)
R LB R LA R AR AR
(W7Ealc)
Suzhou New Development Investment Limited ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB§00,000,000 100 100 Property development and
(notes a & ¢) /A R #800,000,0007C hotel operation
BEM B R AR (Wiakalto) WS I o i s
Shum Yip (Shenzhen) Property Management ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100 100 Property development
Limited (notes a & c) I/ A b A E5,000,0007C VESik
WREN (R ERARAR
(Pif7Eafec)
Shenzhen Kezhigu Investment Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB784,528,950 100 - Property development and
(notes a & c) hE /B kR AR 784,528,950 7C property investment
YR B BEARAT (Witake) ELLEITIESiac
Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture Company Limited B.V.I./Mainland China US$1 100 - Investment holding
(“Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture”) HEAERRE / BT Era gt
IR EARA R (TRINERSE ) K
Shenzhen Nongke Group Limited (‘Nongke”) ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 100 - Investment holding, property
(notes a & ¢) i / LN N #200,000,0007C investment and property
R R EEARAR (TREH) management
(WiEalec) BB - WERE
S
Shenzhen Nongke Property Development PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100 - Property development and
Limited (notes a & ¢) i /e K b A #30,000,0007C property investment
PRYIT B HEE B AR A (WfaEa fec) VESLEYLIE S8
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

31 December 2014
= S

20. M@ w&E (4)

On 7 March 2014, the Group disposed of the 80% equity interest in
Shum Yip Shumkang to Shum Yip Holdings. Further details of this

disposal are included in note 40(i) to the financial statements.

On 22 August 2014, the Group acquired the 100% equity interest in
Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture from Shum Yip Holdings. Further details of

this acquisition are included in note 39 to the financial statements.

On 31 December 2014, the Group disposed of the 70% equity interest
in Chengdu Xinyi, which was directly held by Shum Yip Terra (a
subsidiary owned as to 75.05% by the Company) to independent third
parties. Further details of this disposal are included in note 40(ii) to

the financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

Notes:

a. Indirectly held by the Company

b. Established in the PRC as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise

c. Established in the PRC as a domestic enterprise with limited liability

d. Established in the PRC as a Sino-foreign joint venture enterprise

T E—AE=H B H > A g
() 85 A TR SE TR W 22 809% IR HRE o
HH S ST 2 A — 5 I A A R B
FE40(1) A ©

Mo FE—PENA =+ T H - AEMEM
G () U EEIIED 22 100%
JREHE o eI T 2 o — 2D AR O B
LM EE3IA o

A-E—NEF"A=Z+—H  A%H
If) 8 57 56 =05 AR R O fe (i AR A
HEA75.05% 2 HE 4 149 BT Jag 2 ) TR 6 28 R
) 70%2 FHE o I i & S0 2 o —
RN AT B R R B R E40 () AT -

bR R AR AR AR T
SR B AL AR S E 2 E
AN FIME AR LR - HHES
B9 A A J 2 R 1 0 A R A
IR -

Wi

a AL AMNERA

b R BR RS R

c. R A AL 3

d. JRAHBSGL A AN B AR
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21. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. BEAFRKRE
Group
AR
2014 2013
e U142 e SRS
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#T Tt
Share of net assets JRE A 5 5 572,257 333,357
Goodwill on acquisition WA S AR 2 P 6,116 =
Loans to joint ventures S R AN /ATl = o ¢ 1,325,766 10,362
1,904,139 343,719
The loans to joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and are BT —HEE A F B AT - R
repayable after twelve months from the end of the reporting period. B B ZEOR i 0 R R R A T AR
- .
The Group’s other receivables due from the joint ventures are disclosed A A [ B i 7 A ) 2 L A B SR L

in note 28 to the financial statements. B R Mt k28 Bk 2% o
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21. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 21.

31 December 2014
AL =

aEAFERE (8)

Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows:

REWZ GEAFFHENT

Percentage of

it 2 4 1o
Nominal value of Place of registration ~ Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
Name registered capital and business interest power sharing  activities
ea sk 3 A T £ ik 2 S Fi A HE bl 2 BE s EEEE
Taizhou Shum RMB100,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 51 50 51  Provision of
Yip Investment AR #100,000,0000C  HEhEIKRE development
Development Limited service
FINRES AT SR AL B B R
HIRAF
Shenzhen ShumYip RMB100,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 50 50 50  Property
Pengji Baohua A #100,000,0007C el I hN development
Investment Limited ESEE
TRYN TR M A B 3
BHEARAF
Shenzhen Langtong RMB100,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 50 50 50  Property
Property Development A K #100,000,0007C B developme0nt
Company Limited VESE
(“Langtong”)
RN i P20 5 2 P
BRRAR (TR )
Shenzhen Guoye RMB6,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 50 50 50 Investment
Qianhai Investment AR #6,000,0007C HiE /B A B consulting,

Development
Consulting Company
Limited (“Guoye

real estate
consulting

and logistics

Qianhai”) consulting
T B SR HE REEH - Fi

B B AT PR FE 5 7 ]

(TR E T ) P )

All of the above investments in joint ventures are indirectly held by the

Company.

FHTAR G E AT Z BCE AR
GESREN
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21. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 21. BEAFEE (4)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of T RIRAEE 2 &8N T2 M ER
the Group’s joint ventures: HEEL -
2014 2013
—F g —EF =5
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#oT THIT
Share of the joint ventures’ profit for the L&A R Z 4N
year gl 46,484 219,169
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s ZA4EE &8N Al HEZ
investments in the joint ventures i T (L A4 % 1,904,139 343,719
22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. BB AW®RE
Group Company
AL Ao ]
2014 2013 2014 2013
TR | 2R = TR NE | SFE =
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
T Tt T T
Unlisted shares, at cost BTy - $E A - - 15,133 15,133
Shares listed in Hong Kong, AW by
at cost i i A - - 920,399 920,399
Share of net assets JREAN B T (E 6,774,999 6,481,455 - -
Goodwill on acquisition WAL B E A 2 T R 91,577 91,577 - =
Loans to associates 45T A% N T 2 BEER 84,404 79,519 - =
Included in assets held for sale 5| AS/EfFE & E - (55,597) - =
Provision for impairment B B A (816,000) (667,000) (816,000) (667,000)
6,134,980 5,929,954 119,532 268,532
Market value of listed shares I i £ i {H 1,483,062 1,728,513 157,773 227,193
The loans to associates of HK$84,404,000 (2013: HK$79,519,000) are 5T WA N T 2 45K 84,404,0009 7T (—
interest-free, unsecured and are repayable after twelve months from F— =4 79,519,000 70) M -
the end of the reporting period. Additionally, an amount due from an A T ZE 1A R o AR - TR A R AE
associate included in the Group’s deposits and other receivables are o WAk > FEAR SR T B K H AR R R
disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements. NI 2 — 4 RSB 88 ) S L B s

KM E28BEFR

The loans from associates included in the Group’s other payables and A AR G2 [ At 8 Ao SO I RE =t 28 T 2
accruals are disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements. Wi o w) RO A B R M R 3348 o
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22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The provision for impairment is related to the Company’s investment
in Coastal Greenland Limited (“Coastal Greenland”). The recoverable
amount of the investment in Coastal Greenland of HK$152,181,000
has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation using
the Company’s share of the present value of the estimated future
cash flows expected to be generated by the associate from financial
budgets covering a five-year period. The projected cash flows have
been updated to reflect the current financial performance of Coastal
Greenland. The key assumptions adopted for growth rates and discount
rates used in the value-in-use calculations are based on management’s
best estimates. Growth rates are determined by considering both
internal and external factors. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 14% (2013: 14%). As a result of this analysis,
management has recognised an impairment charge of HK$149,000,000
during the year ended 31 December 2014. The impairment charge is

recorded within other expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

22.

31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

Wi nrl g (4)

TR A58 85 BELAR /A ) JA T VA ok £ 5% [ A R
A (THEEHKORE]D ZBEHH -
AT T ok £ K R 4 2.152,181,0009%5 76
AT EL R RR > T ARYE AR B [ 2 B
BT TR 2 W8 N A A 2 AR A
Al Al TE 2 R AR 4G i i 2 BB 2
FEEFAREE RSN ECH
o B A U Ak (R R B R
Bl o (i A8 (E w5 W k8 R 2 R B B
RN 2 2 EART RE S g 2
AT T 2 o 3R 2T R A A B
FARTEE o M 3R 4 v 2 I 2 B
POl F14% (28— =4F ¢ 14%) © R
Wz > EIE R E R — AR
CHET—RIEFEE > mRIRERA
149,000,000% 7 o ¥ {H 2 A 43 A A B
R RAME o

EEBEAFREHWT

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ ownership interest
Business registration and registered share attributable to
Name structure business capital the Group Principal activities
R/ R R CHTEE/ Firr o
#iti EHRE  ERAM Rk MR A HERE F A3 b FEEH
2014 2013
“FNE CF-ZF
Coastal Greenland* (note a) Corporate Bermuda/ HK$418,587,000 15.08 22.62 Property development and
i sk AR (Hita) AT Mainland China 418,587,000 7T investment
AR/ KR B YEIa
Road King Infrastructure Ltd. Corporate  Bermuda/ HK$72,970,000 27.73 2727 Development, operation
(“Road King”)** (note b) N Mainland China 72,970,000% 7 and management of
SEERARAT ([3Y]) = [EE 3 VDN toll roads and property
(FtzED) development and
investment
S YN P& I
BEREHLK
EL T8
Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park Corporate ~ PRC/ US5$62,000,000 37.53 37.53 Property investment and
(Group) Co., Ltd. (note b) N Mainland China 62,000,000 7 development
REHREM (EH) HRAA VAN ESSULE S

(i 7ED)
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22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

31 December 2014
= S

22. BB AREE ()

None of the associates are audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or
another member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

* On 24 January 2014, Coastal Greenland announced a plan to issue
1,395,291,428 open offer shares at a price of HK$0.25 per open offer share by
way of one open share for every two existing shares held by the shareholders.
The Company did not take up its entitlements under the open offer. Upon
completion of the open offer on 14 March 2014, the equity interest held by the
Company in Coastal Greenland decreased from 22.62% as at 31 December 2013
to 15.08%. The loss on deemed disposal of equity interest in Coastal Greenland
amounting to HK$59,225,000 is charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Group continues to account for Coastal Greenland as an associate
subsequent to the deemed disposal as abovementioned. Although the Group
holds less than 20% of the ownership interest and voting control of Coastal
Greenland, the Group considers that it has the ability to exercise significant
influence over Coastal Greenland through both its shareholding and its

nominated directors’ participation on Coastal Greenland’s board of directors.

** Road King is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and its
ordinary shares with a nominal value of HK$0.10 each are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The principal location of

Road King’s business is Mainland China.
Notes:
a. Directly held by the Company

b. Indirectly held by the Company

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details
of other associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

The financial years of the above associates are coterminous with that
of the Group, except for Coastal Greenland which has a financial year
ending 31 March. The consolidated financial statements are adjusted
for the material transactions between Coastal Greenland and group
companies between 1 January and 31 March. Coastal Greenland uses 31
March as its financial year end date to conform with that of its holding

company.

R AT B 7 A ) A W 22 o i
B BT SR K Bt i T 2 BkE B A F
JIE: 2 %

* TR E—H A PUH > WiESOR
] A A — T 32 1 A A T AR
H A 22 B B — e A B R0
Z IR > #8171,395,291,428 L B 8% =
B > 4 A BREEE B A 0.25W5 0T © A
NGRS BN /N R i Nl
o “E—VM4E=HTMH > AEE
SEINAR > AN F AU Sk R A 2
MR = F—=F P H=1T—HZ
22.62% Nk %15.08% o MAE B Wi 4k
i, 5 [ B HE 2 T $859,225,00095 7 H #%
BEoZ—NFET_A=T—HILFEZ
ARGz R T IIRE o

A AR > AL B LA B AR
T fek (0 5% TR B AL AR A W O IR o e
AR AR Wi Aok £ 5% T 2 A HE
BEEEHE D 1220% > AGE B 58 2% T 72 L L
HERRAZEREZ NG OR EEEE
8 T A 3 ok €90 5 B 47 (5 TR R
MIfESs o

o BRSNS s RS 2 B BRA T
A R T (EL0. 109 I 2 5 8 JE7E 75 745 W
BRGIARA R R LT - Mz E
B E I B B P B K BE o

Fif 51
a.  WAAREESAE

b, HAARIMESE

VA b2 S5 R I AR AR B R R R
B A A B T R E  FE AR Ay
AL E N T L - HHTR - 5
HCH A B0 2 7 R I A BRI A T
Eo

R N ] L S B A R BELAC AR [
BUAE BEREAS — B> MEn I ok (0 K [/ 2
BUEFEAERS = H =T —H o 556 MH
2 Y Ve ok €00 5% ] DL 4 WA — A
—HE=H=+—HHMZERZGME
P - WO R R =H =+ —
H R BAE R AR AE H > DUBLL P
R BTR T E B -
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Road King, which is considered a material associate of the Group, is

engaged in the development, operation and management of toll roads

and property development and investment, and is accounted for using

the equity method by the Group.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information

in respect of Road King adjusted for any differences in accounting

22.

31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

g A vl sk ()

B SR A R 2 EEBE AT > ¢
FRU A B 2 B P R IR )
SEBAEE R AT o M ph A S T L HE R MR A
HE o

T 2R A A AT IR R 2 SR o A
B S 2 PARS EORM B - Sl K IR B

policies, and reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated BEEAIBSHR R 2 BRI ¢
financial statements:
2014 2013
— g4 TR AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHIL FisoT
Current assets TS 35,306,391 37,303,877
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill B EE - SO 7,177,398 6,125,586
Goodwill on acquisition WAL 8 AE 2 i 91,577 91,577
Current liabilities T AR 18,028,637 21,555,269
Non-current liabilities FE U E) A 10,402,600 8,510,942
Non-controlling interests R A 844,661 691,483
Net assets EE R E 13,299,468 12,763,346
Net assets, excluding goodwill BEFE > AN 13,207,891 12,671,769
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in IR B AL E
the associate: S = /NI Pt
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 74 [ T A HE 2 EL ) 27.73% 27.52%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate, Z<£E [ i Hh 45 /8 &) EAL 2
excluding goodwill BEFE > A 3,662,354 3,487,495
Goodwill on acquisition Wi il A 2 91,577 91,577
Carrying amount of the investment & 2 IR (E 3,753,931 3,579,072
Revenue e A 12,730,104 11,456,048
Profit for the year A A T A 1,029,383 1,023,367
Other comprehensive (loss)/income HAbAm (E8) ik (54,217) 290,954
Total comprehensive income for the year  4F [A1 4 [fj i 5 48 40 975,166 1,314,321
Dividend received e B 107,073 96,972
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22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 22. BEARIRE (4)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of T 3[R A A [ E At g A W) A T A
the Group’s other associates: B
2014 2013
e kS CE A
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#oT Tt
Share of the associates’ profits for the year {845 48 7] 2 4F A 5 374,942 542,783
Share of the associates’ total comprehensive {4 /8 7] 2 2 [
(loss)/income (518 /W 25 A8 AH (75,791) 104,808
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s 7S 45 [H] A B 22/ 7]
investments in the associates P& 2 MR (A 2,381,049 2,350,882
23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 23. AIBLHERE
Company
AAH
2014 2013 2014 2013
TR WE | DFSE ) DR WE | DF 4
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T-H#T T T T#T T#IC
At fair value: AU
Listed equity investments e RRE Bz
in Mainland China PR 75,211 22,467 - -
Club memberships (Y i8¢ 3 2,799 4,570 - 1,720
78,010 27,037 - 1,720
At cost: A
Unlisted equity investments I b R 62,461 12,753 - -
140,471 39,790 - 1,720
During the year, the net gain in respect of the Group’s available-for-sale RN - AR [ FA A T U 4 T ERR
investments recognised in other comprehensive income amounted to ] R 2 AR 25,436,000 7T
HK$25,436,000 (2013: loss of HK$4,827,000). (ZF—=4 : #51H4,827,00087T)
The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market RS 2 O OB T AR B T 3 A
prices. fif 7E ©
As at 31 December 2014, unlisted equity investments with a carrying ATE—PEFT A=+ —H o BRE(E
amount of HK$62,461,000 (2013: HK$12,753,000) were stated at cost 1462,461,000%5 709 IF T IRAESRE (=
less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is F— =4 ¢ 12,753,000 70) & A Bl IRk
so significant that the directors are of the opinion that their fair value ELFAR » JRUR 7 BN S (e Al et o i
cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of BEOR - 3 SR8 HA A A RE AT 5E M st

them in the near future. 2 o ASE[H AT BRI M S L o
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24. OTHER LONG TERM ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, other long term assets mainly represented
prepayments of HK1,780,879,000 (2013: HK$1,571,337,000) related
to the acquisition of land use rights. The remaining balance of
HK$12,491,000 (2013: HK$12,719,000) included a receivable from

an independent third party, which is unsecured, interest-free and

25.

26.
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repayable after 12 months from the end of the reporting period.

24.

31 December 2014
AL =

At R 0

W oFE—WEFH=+—H,> H
fib {2 1 B A T B4R A i B L b £
HE T 3 A5 /Y T8 A 3K1,780,879,000% T4
(= & — = 4F : 1,571,337,000%5 JC) °
H #£12,491,000% JC (= F — = 4F
12,719,000%5 70 A 45 5 Az b 85 37 565 —
T2 IH > A BRI - B R
SRR SR AL T 0 H AR A -

INVENTORIES 25. 78
Group
A
2014 2013
— —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
T-#IC THTT
Raw materials JEA R 41,192 36,776
Work in progress TEE 48,390 54,150
Finished goods A 46,866 35,048
136,448 125,974
BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 26. G E

The Group’s total amounts and quantities of the biological assets are as

follows:

FIRRAE AR ) S R B B AN R

Group
SR

2014
—
HK$’000
Tt

2013
SRS
HK$°000
RE

Breeding biological assets
Trading biological assets

EEMAEYEE
HAEMEAEY EE

7,200
10,188

17,388

The Group’s biological assets comprise mainly pigeons and cloned

orchid flowers.

AL 2 Y EE T E AR T LoikE

BATE ©
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26. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 26.

31 December 2014
AL =

W E ()

The Group’s biological assets were revalued by management at the

end of each reporting period on a fair value basis. The fair value less

estimated point-of-sale costs of the biological assets was determined

using the market approach, which was determined based on the most

recent market transaction prices.

A [ B AR ) R A R A A
RIEAAEEERE - EYEEN LR
(EL T Al T 0 45 286 AU AS T AT 3553 1
BV g B3 i 3 50 5 (B A R

A reconciliation of the carrying values of the biological assets is as A R L IRIE S IR T
follows:
Breeding biological assets A A
Group
AL
2014 2013
e a1k —F =
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T THT
At 1 January w—HA—H - =
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39) WA B — D o g A (P E39) 7,064 =
Purchases B 3,371 =
Disposals fan(== (3,178) -
Exchange realignment BEE 51, 4 % (57) -
7,200 =
Trading biological assets HFEEA W &
Group
ASE
2014 2013
Ui —F =5
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T THT
At 1 January w—H—H - =
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39) Wi il — [ B A =) (B 5E39) 11,394 =
Purchases 3= 22,131 -
Sales S (23,827) -
Gain arising from changes in fair value less /A f{E % 8 2 £ 2 1|15
costs to sell TS A 713 -
Exchange realignment [P e, o R (223) 3
10,188 =
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31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES 27. MEWCRSK
Group
ARG
2014 2013
ZE 4 S B
HK$°000 HK$°000
T THIT
Trade receivables JRE U HE 2k 749,058 446,222
Impairment WAE (34,294) (30,100)
714,764 416,122

Under normal circumstances, the Group does not grant any credit
terms to its customers for the sale of properties. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and to minimise
credit risk. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s
trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade

receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting

TEIEWEOLT - A ER & 1 5
P AT AR B o AR EBUE
3 R i [ 2 B AR T R A5 A 12 ) S
WRAE SR o SR R R AR LR
BRI R WTRZRLEE
A S5 ST 0 8 A P 2 A B o AR
A1 1 SI7 4 A B WS R R A6 8 4 A A T 4
i SO A S BT o MEMORS A A st

BIH o

TR 5 R DA 45 40 B Ut 50 BR e A

period, based on the contract date and net of provision, is as follows: Z EWUIR AR Z IREE AT N T
Group
AR
2014 2013
&R PULE —E =5
HK$’000 HK$’000
T-#IT Tt
Within one year —4E R 699,534 407,207
One to two years —HEEWEN 15,230 8,915
714,764 416,122




Shenzhen Investment Limited

TRYIFERCA FRA )

Annual Report 2014 4t

179

Notes to Financial Statements

S B A M

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

27. MEWURER (8)

The movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables JENT IR 2K 2 Wk (I i s B -
are as follows:
Group
AREEHE
2014 2013
R =
HK$’000 HK$000
Tt Tt
At 1 January w—H—H 30,100 30,939
Impairment losses recognised E R 2 B 1R 32 783
Acquisition from a subsidiary (note 39) H M e 2w (Bt EE39) 4,781 -
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables i % 2k (EL 455 [1] (86) (2,330)
Exchange realignment [ifE 3, o (533) 708
34,294 30,100

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables is a
provision for individually impaired trade receivables of HK$34,294,000
(2013: HK$30,100,000) with a carrying amount before provision of
HK$34,294,000 (2013: HK$30,100,000).

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers that
were in financial difficulties or were in default in payments and the full

amount is not expected to be recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not individually nor

T A I R A R 9 £ 5 181 1l 2
(B 2 WA 2 445 134,294,000 7 (&
— =4F : 30,100,000%5 70) > 1M 5% ME UK R
T ¥ A I 2 B T (B £534,294,000%5 70
(Z=F—=4F 1 30,100,000%57T) ©

A1 9 L - R WA AR T B T i B 5 IR
B R R H AR o RS ROA

e A AR s ] o

A ) 2 ] 8 2 7 ) 5 9 2 B i B

collectively considered to be impaired is as follows: Ty Bk L BRES AT N R
Group
A4
2014 2013
—% i e
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T#E T
Neither past due nor impaired 2481 1A IR R IR (E 705,805 407,207
Less than one year past due LD R — 4 8,959 8,915
714,764 416,122
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27.

28.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

31 December 2014
ZE—NETFZA=Z+—H

27. MEWURER (8)

R I R A 2 B WK T B e
T2 REZEF AR > ST A
R K FE 8k o

70 30 L A 9 L < R S I B A 2 JF Rl
Bz HFAR > 25 EF EALE A
REFBAERLSR o RO AR > hR e
RS PAE-S-E N X TN NSRS
SR J T A B[] > AR S R EE S
Ty T R S A B A L (A

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

28. FHAFHOH ~ 5T 4 R At BE WOk O

RECEIVABLES
Group Company
ASEH A H]
2014 2013 2014 2013
SR ZF 4| SRR | R4
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt THTT RRCZT THIT
Prepayments FEAT 3 IAE 218,355 137,030 - -
Deposits and other receivables ] 4 S HoAth I 3k IE 700,887 731,484 2,345 2,176
Loans to joint ventures S R AN~ /A=l = o ¢ 2,741,501 3,248,844 - =
3,660,743 4,117,358 2,345 2,176

Included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other receivables
are loans to a joint venture totalling HK$2,687,190,000 (2013:
HK$3,248,844,000), which are unsecured and have no fixed terms
of repayment, and bear interest at 12% per annum (2013: 12%). The
remaining amount of HK$54,311,000 (2013: Nil) due from a joint
venture, which is unsecured and has no fixed terms of repayment, bears
interest at the one-year benchmark lending rate of the People’s Bank of
China (the “PBOC”).

Included in the Group’s deposits and other receivables are amounts
due from associates of HK$1,641,000 (2013: Nil), which are unsecured,

interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment

Included in the Groups deposits and other receivables are amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries of HK$17,352,000 (2013: HK$13,273,000),
which are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

A SR 2 AT B - R B At B i
REHEEST - HaEL A2 &K

A 3£2,687,190,000% J6 (& — = 4F ¢
3,248,844,000%5 70) > 5%%% 2K TH £ MEHE P

T[] 5 2 O R KR AR 128 (Z
T—=4F 0 128) FHE - B A E A E
2 ik #54,311,000%5 06 (. F — = 48 ¢
) 7 AR o R E R A o b
ARSI (T ANRBIT]) —FHE
EERFEGHE o

A 4 [ 2 5T 4 L At R SRR R L 4
Wi W 2 R ECIE L, 641,000 6 (—F —
SR E) o RS RIE B IR - R
T 45 [ 7 1 PR

A 4 [ 2 T 4 A JRE AR T v 4
Wi ) 2% BB A ) 3K P 17,352,00085 78 (—
F— =4F 1 13,273,00045T0) > 5% 5% HKIH
By SRR ~ B B e o AR IR o
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28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 28.
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
Included in the Group’s deposits and other receivables are amounts due
from non-controlling shareholders of certain subsidiaries of the Group
of HK$3,821,000 (2013: HK$2,578,000), which are unsecured, interest-

free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which

there was no recent history of default.

29. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 29.
PROFIT OR LOSS

31 December 2014
AL =

(%)

7% 42 B 2 5T 4 T HAth iRk TE R 4
JRE Wi A 42 [ 2 T Y A W) 22 9F i R ik
WK JH3,821,000% 6 (T EF — = 4E
2,578,000%5 JG) > 5% 55 AR TH A AR
G I T A [ 7 2 O PR o

bl A R ISR AE o FEA B R
2 G A B R R R 2 B
HIEAR o

AR AR 12 o A B
%

Group Company
AL AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
SEWE | S-S | SRR | DB
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#C Tt T#oT Tt
Listed equity investments, at i EAERE >
market value: iy
Hong Kong i 3,116 11,011 3,116 11,011
3,116 11,011 3,116 11,011

The above equity investments as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 were

classified as held for trading.

LR =F—NER =T —=F1+"A
=t HZBREBCE T FH A AR R
5 o
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30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

31 December 2014

U B

30. Bl KBI&EHEY K CHIER

DEPOSITS
Group Company
AL AN
2014 2013 2014 2013
SR | SESE | SR | Sk
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T THTT T#T THIT
Cash and bank balances Bl RRATHE R 7,622,469 6,379,869 95,895 22,754
Time deposits FE WA 2,034,914 1,098,434 1,464,317 888,503
9,657,383 7,478,303 1,560,212 911,257
Less: Pledged time deposits: B BT B
Pledged for long term RPMITERZ
bank loans A
(note 31(a)(v)) (FffiE31(a)(v)) - (17,277) - -
Pledged for short term ST ERZ
bank loans A
(note 31(a)(v)) (Fif3E31(a)(v)) (31,228) (13,594) - -
Restricted cash* 7 BR i) B 4+ (1,250,679) (913,383) - =
Cash and cash equivalents B4 I B4 S 18 8,375,476 6,534,049 1,560,212 911,257

As at 31 December 2014, an aggregate amount of RMB275,560,000 deposited in
the bank accounts of two subsidiaries of the Group was seized by The People’s

Procuratorate of Jianli County of Hubei Province (note 43(iii)).

In addition, included in the Group’s restricted cash is an amount of
HK$2,701,000 deposited in an escrow account jointly operated by a subsidiary
and an independent third party as at 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013:
HK$26,315,000).

The remaining balance of HK$903,776,000 (31 December 2013:
HK$887,068,000) in the Group’s restricted cash was limited to use in the
development of certain property projects. In accordance with relevant
documents issued by the PRC State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau,
certain property development companies of the Group are required to place in
designated bank accounts certain amounts of presale proceeds from properties
as guarantee deposits for the construction of related properties. The deposits
can only be used for purchases of construction materials and the payments of
construction fees of the relevant property projects when approval from the PRC
State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau is obtained. Such guarantee deposits
will only be released after completion of the related pre-sold properties or

issuance of the real estate ownership certificates, whichever is the earlier.

* MRE-F—NE+ZA=1T—H > FH0R

7 £ 18] i [ B A ) 2 SRAT IR P 2 ik IE
HgE N R 275,560,000 7 H 1AL B B A
BRdr s (FftE43(iii)) o

ot s R —EFZA=+—H >
7 A B 2 7 R A B 4 G — SR A TR
Hy — [ B JB A ) B2 — 44 8 5L 5 = 3t
A & M 2 5EH IR F A 2 352,701,000
B (CE-=4FTF-HA=+—H:
26,315,000%57C) ©

7% 42 ] 2z BR 1l Bl 4 2 % £2903,776,000
B (CE—-=FT-"HA=1+—H:
887,068,000%% 7T {4 1] F 1 B #E4 T 4
FETEH o MR A - Y R
REH B A BRSO > A SR B T4 2B
BN T ZE NG R SRAT R A O T
O T B ) 2E T A KIE > VR Ry AR A 2
iR RTT K o S A7 B ] TS
e 50 [ A, A L e A AR IR A
B M KA B 2 TE E ik #
F o A BRSO A SR B S A R T ) 2
v LBl A s M R (AR L A 3
FHUE) 1207 T IR o
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30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

31 December 2014
= S

30. Bl KBI&EHEY K CHIER

DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
HK$8,019,461,000 (2013: HK$5,079,885,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies. However, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through

banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with

creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

(%)

R EHR ALE MU AR (A
R FHEZ B & &% EY L
8,019,461,000%5 G (= & — = 4 :
5,079,885,000% 75) o A ¥l A H H
H S A0 £ A B o SR o ARAE P R Ab
5 il A6 7] I 4 RE ~ 48 O % ) R LR
FE o AN BE [ VO R A HE A T A1 RE 26T
ZERAT N R S0 A B s

FOR RAT 2 BLE MR % sRAT AR
H 0 ) AR BRIOM B o S8 AR K
ZIEF R — HE=MARSE » T4
G 2 BN B 7R 21 2E > A% AH B S
1 S A B R BRER B, - SRAT AR TS
R RAARRAXR - FERIFZ
AT o
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. BF R8T K H A &
BORROWINGS
2014 2013
ZE-pk e S
Effective/ Effective/
contractual contractual
interest rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 | interest rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
iR/ B/
Group REH BHRE (H) EL T | a#f% (5) 31 THTT
Current ot
Bank loans-secured PTEH - Hikm 6.16-7.80 2015 1,981,860 6.00 - 7.995 2014 1,362,446
i “Z-WE
Bank loans-unsecured Hrr B — g 5.841 - 8.40 2015 9,858,107 2.48-7.38 2014 9,685,939
HIBOR +1.95-  ZF—Ti% HIBOR+195-  —F—Uf
HIBOR+2.95, HIBOR + 2.95,
LIBOR +2.95 LIBOR +2 -
LIBOR + 2.95
5.841 — 8.40 2.48-7.38
3 G BRI E
B+ 195 B+ 195
- TR 3 - BRI
Hik+ 295, FE+295,
[t E TR (SRR
fif+295 #8+2
— (mStRATIF
H8+295
Other borrowings-unsecured A 8 — g 6.30 - 6.48 2015 187,365 6.0-9.8 2014 1,073,484
“F-hE e Silfia
Other borrowings-secured HA S — FIE 6.60 2015 29,978 =
ZE-Nk
12,057,310 12,121,869
Non-current i
Bank loans-secured RTER —HHD 616-7.68  2016-2021 2,348,013 6396-738  2015-2021 2,401,712
B SN “F-hE-
ey “E—
Bank loans-unsecured RITED — KR 6.15-6.656  2016-2023 14,993,495 6.15-738  2015-2023 9,765,792
HIBOR+2.2 - HIBOR +2.2 -
HIBOR+3.75, HIBOR + 2.95,
LIBOR+2.4 - LIBOR + 2.4 -
LIBOR +3.75 LIBOR +2.95
6156656 _F—NE - 615738 “F—HfE-
RERTRE  Z%2=2 BERARE —F2=F
fiB+22 FE+22-
- BBRITR i GiEES
fiB+ 375, B+ 295,
AR RT3
fiBi+24 8+ 24
— RT3 o EI T
fif+375 8429
17,341,508 12,167,504
29,398,818 24,289,373
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. ®FESRAT R ALAE B (4)
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
2014 2013
“BmE “F-=K
Effective/ Effective/
contractual contractual
interest rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 | interest rate (%) Maturity HKS'000
.74 .4
Company AT AR () b Tl | AHHI%E (5) N T
Current k|
Bank loans-unsecured Hr B — g HIBOR+1.95 - 2015 2,782,454 HIBOR + 2014 3,818,818
HIBOR+2.95, 1.95-HIBOR +
LIBOR +2.95 2.95,LIBOR +2
-LIBOR +2.95
RERGAE ZFLE BEROFEE  ZF-E
B+ 195 8+ 195
- TR - BBRTR¥
B+ 295, F8+295,
fg AT LB GRS
il 295 frE+2
— ER TR %
5+ 295
Non-current i
Bank loans-unsecured HiT R — HIBOR+2.2-  2016-2019 9,660,225 HIBOR + 2.2 2015-2018 4,436,658
HIBOR+3.75, -HIBOR+ 2.95,
LIBOR+24 - LIBOR + 2.4 -
LIBOR+3.75 LIBOR + 2.95
BERGEE —F-NE- BERTFE —Z—1F -
fil+22  “EF0E FBe22  ZF-0E
- R — BRI ¥
#HE+375, B+ 295,
fg AT % ¢ GRS
fih+ 24 Fl+24
- BT — g E
fik+375 E+295
12,442,679 8,255,476
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31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. AHESRAT RICMAE & (51)
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
Group Company
AL Ao 7]
2014 2013 2014 2013
SERoWE | SFSE | CFNE | SRS
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
T#C Tt T Tt
Analysed into: IRHT
Bank loans repayable: JRE 72 2 SRAT K
Within one year —4ER 11,839,967 11,048,385 2,782,454 3,818,818
In the second year T AE A 5,573,410 6,351,766 820,696 2,582,059
From third to fifth years R AFEN 10,771,851 4,462,480 8,839,529 1,854,599
Over five years ARk 996,247 1,353,258 - -
29,181,475 23,215,889 12,442,679 8,255,476
Other borrowings repayable: JEAE R 2 HoAh B
Within one year —4ER 217,343 1,073,484 - -
217,343 1,073,484 - —
29,398,818 24,289,373 12,442,679 8,255,476

(2)

HK$3,764,158,000) were secured by:

(i)

Bank loans amounting to HK$4,359,851,000 (2013:

certain of the Group’s land and buildings in Mainland China

with a net book value of approximately HK$1,104,045,000
(2013: HK$879,033,000) (note 14);

(i)

certain of the Group’s completed properties held for sale with

a net book value of approximately HK$16,419,000 (2013:

Nil) (note 17);

(iii)

certain of the Group’s properties under development with a

net book value of approximately HK$1,962,590,000 (2013:
HKS$1,826,242,000) (note 18);

(iv)

certain of the Group’s investment properties with a net

book value of approximately HK$5,758,608,000 (2013:
HK$4,157,621,000) (note 19); and

(a)

4 %A 54,359,851,000%% 70 (& —

— 4 : 3,764,158,000% J6) Z $RAT

N

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Fh DA S A AR

ZN S I m % EH 4
1,104,045,000% 76 (=& — =
4 1 879,033,000 ) 24T
577 B oK e 2 1t % A
(Fft5E14) S

7 4 B B 1H] 7 (416,419,000
WL (L E — =4 ) 2
LTI EARE 2B %Y ¥
(Ff5EL7) S

A% H R OEOFHE L
1,962,590,000% 76 (& — =

4F 1 1,826,242,000% 06) 2 &
Ttz (MHik18) s

PN S =TT | -
5,758,608,000%5 JG (& — =

4 1 4,157,621,000% J0) Z &
THEWE (KMsk19) 5 &
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

32.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(continued)

(v) certain of the Group’s bank deposits with a net book value of
HK$31,228,000 (2013: HK$30,871,000) (note 30).

In addition, Shum Yip Group, the ultimate holding company, has
guaranteed certain of the Group’s bank loans of HK$3,747,300,000
as at 31 December 2014 (2013: 3,179,750,000) (note 44(b)(i)).

Except for the bank loans equivalent to approximately
HK$4,923,628,800 (2013: HK$5,337,023,000) and
HK$5,637,400,000 (2013: HK$2,776,000,000), which are
denominated respectively in United States dollars and Hong Kong

dollars, all borrowings of the Group are in RMB.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
borrowings approximate to their fair values, which have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at the

prevailing interest rates.

TRADE PAYABLES
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

31.

32.

fa:_lM

(a)

(b)

(c)

31 December 2014
=L =

BERAT R AR (A1)

(#)

(v) A4 [ BR T 7 {E 31,228,000
gt (% — =4 : 30,871,000
Wot) 2 THRITER (M
30) °

WeAb o B ALPERT N R TR S A —
F—WEF+H=+—H0 > BHA
45 ] 4 %#63,747,300,0007 JG (&
— = 4F 1 3,179,750,000% J0) 2 R
TTRRAE AR (MERE44(b) (1)) ©

Ik M R #4,923,628,800%5 7T (-
T — = 4F : 5,337,023,0007 0) K
5,637,400,000% 7T (=& — = 4F ¢
2,776,000,000% JG) 2 $R 1T 83K 5
Al A& TE Rk TeRHES - I AL
B2 fE & LR BERHE -

AL 8 ] AN ) 2 A8 2 B T (B
HN SEARR > T9HE AT R 2R BT
AR R B 4 i A AT G BT AR
oo

TR AR H R B 5
Rk BRI AT AN T

Group

A4 [H
2014 2013
ZE Y ZE =
HK$’000 HK$’000
T¥o0 FHIT
Within one year —4ER 3,786,075 948,763
One to two years —EEWEN 481,171 39,465
Two to three years WEE =FK 8,183 1,337
Over three years =& E 38,969 39,410
4,314,398 1,028,975
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32.

33.

31 December 2014
ZE—NETFZA=Z+—H

TRADE PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 32. MEATHRSK (A1)
Included in the Group’s trade payables as at 31 December 2014 is an LEEAN FE—EF+_H=1+—H2ZE
amount of RMB2,445.1 million (equivalent to HK$3,054.2 million) A5 B k0 5 1 A A [ it o7 A o B M
which represented the land premium in respect of a parcel of land A [ AT 575 % 2 —Wa b (145 A3 )
located at Hongli Road, Futian District, Shenzhen, the PRC (the JE A 2 bt 4 N IR #2,445,100,000
“Mingren Land”) payable by the Nongke Group (note 39). The land gt (R & Jit3,054,200,000% Jo) (Fff G
premium payable in respect of the Mingren Land bears interest at the 39)) o 4 N bz FEAY bt e e o
three-year benchmark lending rate of the PBOC and is payable on 1 BN R ER1T = A S g e R R 5 B &
June 2015. R F—HENA— AEE -
The remaining amounts of the trade payables are non-interest-bearing. AT BE XA A A A wT B EKIE o
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 33, FLAth Ak M i 2
Group Company
AL Ao ]
2014 2013 2014 2013
TR g | RS | DR PE | R S
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R T T#T T
Receipts in advance TE S 3K IH 3,764,883 6,116,166 - -
Other payables HoAth JRE A5} FE 5,157,708 2,710,419 - =
Loans from associates R /NN 8 296,058 278,649 29,667 30,208
Accruals JE T2 757,294 1,029,289 23,016 22,173
9,975,943 10,134,523 52,683 52,381

The loans from fellow subsidiaries included in the Group’s other
payables are unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment. Amounts
due to fellow subsidiaries of HK$266,218,000 (2013: HK$283,276,000)
bear interest from the one-year to three-year benchmark lending rates
of the PBOC, while the remaining balance of HK$113,599,000 (2013:
HK$93,806,000) is interest-free.

The loans from non-controlling shareholders of certain subsidiaries of
the Group included in the Group’s other payables are unsecured and
have no fixed terms of repayment. Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of HK$110,246,000 (2013: HK$122,686,000) bear
interest at the one-year benchmark lending rate of the PBOC, while
the remaining amount of HK$34,428,000 (2013: HK$28,580,000) is
interest-free.

The loans from associates included in the Group’s other payables
and accruals totalling HK$296,058,000 (2013: HK$278,649,000) are
unsecured, interest-free and are payable on demand.

TS S ] 2 HAth A R 2 (] AR A
N F) R R R R Sl A [ AR KA
PR o JE AT [F] 2R B RS 2 W] 3K T 266,218,000
WOt (& — = 4F © 283,276,000 JC)
P BN R ERAT 2 — 4 & = 4 L
BRI 5T > 1 %8 113,599,000 TG
(F—=4F 1 93,806,000%00) %S o

7 A 8] 2 Al R A S T LG AR AR 4
9] 3 4 A e 2 ) B R R 2 K >
17y S JE A S Sl e [ R K o R I
FE B B R K JE110,246,000% J6 (L F
— = 4F 1 122,686,000% JC) % 4B A
RAERTT 2 — 47 SL e A R 51 B
T i ##34,428,0005 G (& — = 4F ¢
28,580,000 70) A4 B -

7 45 ] 2 HC Al B A5) 3 T e M 1 B4
B 45 8 \) B 3K A 3£296,058,000% 7 (—
T — = 4F : 278,649,000 J0) > #% 55 K
TE 2 SR ~ S R4 BOR R K -
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34. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are

as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities:

31 December 2014
. e

34. WEAEFLIH
A AT IR S B TE B B 2 B B A
T

HESE B IH £ 45

Group ALEE
2014
ZR I
Fair value
adjustment  Accelerated Timing
arising from tax  difference
Revaluation acquisition of ~ depreciation  on revenue
Withholding ~ Revaluation of available-  subsidiaries on  recognition
taxon of investment ~ Revaluation of for-sale and  investment  for lease of
dividend ~ properties assets  investments  associates  properties  properties Total
(e
ol #g il
BEAT  mEe BRhE
R % Ak Btz MERE Bl
mR wEER KEEH  REEH AREEE i HRER L]
HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000
T T#x T#L  TE#x T TEr T Tdx
At 1 January 2014 REF—F—H—H 288,473 1,888,162 12,789 5,769 2,761,519 150,377 - 5,107,089
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the  ZW4F 8 45 1
statement of profitor loss during ~ #1l / (GHARR&%)
the year ZIERERE 34592 40726 - 31 (U846 16941 (3704 315925
Deferred tax debited to equity during  Z4F BTS2
the year BB - - 60,634 4252 - - S G486
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39) ek — P A (f3E39) - 65305 - 1690 1712119 - ML 2391835
Exchange realignment % (6,020) (54,251) (922) (123) (54,005) 17,991 (23) (97,353)
Gross deferred RZF—E
tax liabilities TZAZT-HZ
at 31 December 2014 BIEREA RAR 317,045 2,889,692 72,501 15419 4,301,172 185,309 1,244 7,782,382
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34. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 34. ERERLIH (%)
Deferred tax liabilities: (continued) IEIEBEIE £ 4 (AF)
Group £

2013
Rk
Fair value

adjustment  Accelerated

Revaluation  arising from tax

Withholding ~ Revaluation of available- acquisition of  depreciation

taxon  of investment Revaluation of for-sale  subsidiaries on investment
dividend properties assets  investments  and associates properties Total

(e

il 7l BE

Bl LUE 4

55} 443 A fi & EYZ  EBRA

BB WEEE O REEM REEH  ALEER i &t
HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
T T T T T T T

At 1 January 2013 R-Z—=%—H—H 204,596 1,063,879 12,375 7,244 190,423 148,501 1,627,018
Deferred tax charged/ ATANERE LY /

(credited) to (BB LR

continuing operations k) ZERERA 77,813 131,828 - - (2,182) 9,164 216,623
Deferred tax charged to a IR R T

discontinued operation T2 ELRE - - - - - 629 629

Deferred tax charged/(credited) to A RBHFERFA /
the statement of profit or loss (R 2

during the year BEHE 77,813 131,828 - - (2,182) 9,793 27,052
Deferred tax credited to equity KRR ARER L

during the year AR - - - (1,609) - - (1,609)
Acquisition of a subsidiary it i) A = 688,982 - - 25m - 3262060
Included in liabilities held for sale 2} AfEfER & f& - (10,878) = = = (11,650) (22,528)
Exchange realignment I 5.3 6,064 14351 414 134 - 3,733 24,69
Gross deferred WoE—-=

tax liabilities TZHZE1—HZ

at 31 December 2013 EREREA FE 288,473 1,888,162 12,789 5,769 2,761,519 150,377 5,107,089
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34. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets:

34, WACBIIAE (5)
W SR IE B

31 December 2014

. Ve

Group ALEE
2014
e 12
Losses
available for
offsetting
against future
taxable Tax effectof  Unrealised
profits LAT profits Others Total
CELE
AR +i
JE L WERLZ
WA ZEH  BEYE  REBRH Jofts At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
T#T T#T T T#T T
At 1 January 2014 = F—4FE—H—H 228,143 564,768 71,485 28,329 892,725
Deferred tax credited/ ANAEJE

(charged) to the REBHFEFFA S

statement of profit or loss (A4 & HTER)

during the year Z R IERIA (81,112) 161,841 (16,758) 790 64,761
Acquisition of a subsidiary Uit/ — i FiH 8§ A )

(note 39) (FitiE39) - 267,985 - 3,179 271,164
Exchange realignment T 3¢, 4 % (2,869) (13,504) (448) 2,013 (14,808)
Gross deferred g S E:S

tax assets TZHA=1T—HZ

at 31 December 2014 JTEAETL IR 6 E MR 144,162 981,090 54,279 34,311 1,213,842
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34. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)
Deferred tax assets: (continued)

31 December 2014

. Ve

34, WACBIIAE (5)
WERIEE & ¢ (5])

Group ARG
2013
TR
Losses
available for
offsetting
against future
taxable  Tax effect of  Unrealised
profits LAT profits Others Total
AR
TSR +ib
JEFRBE RERIZ
hRZER  BEBEE O REBEA HAt it
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
THT T#T THT T T
At 1 January 2013 n_F—=%—H—H 82,796 342,170 74,703 28,589 528,258
Deferred tax credited/ AR XY
(charged) to continuing (AR A 2E T
operations k) 2 EERL A 19,202 211,550 (3,935) 220 227,037
Deferred tax credited/ FE AR FHER R
(charged) to a discontinued (A JERFAEACE EF
operation k) Z IR ERLIA 632 = = (134) 498
Deferred tax credited/ R
(charged) to the FEAREE
statement of profit or loss (4845 & P40
during the year ZIEERIA 19,834 211,550 (3,935) 86 227,535
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — [ i & 2 A 125,379 - = - 125,379
Included in assets FHAFRE
held for sale frEAR (1,890) - - (1,126) (3,016)
Exchange realignment e 5, 7 2,024 11,048 717 780 14,569
Gross deferred tax assetsat A -F—=44F+_H=+—H
31 December 2013 ZRSER R G AR 228,143 564,768 71,485 28,329 892,725
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34. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 34.

31 December 2014
= S

EEBUE (4)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$322,367,000
(2013: HK$322,367,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$1,293,639,000 (2013: HK$698,889,000). Accumulated losses
amounting to HK$39,464,000, HK$77,241,000, HK$286,577,000,
HK$258,410,000 and HK$631,947,000 as at 31 December 2014 will
expire in 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019, respectively, for offsetting
against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for years and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be

utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied
if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008. As at 31 December 2014, the
Group recognised a deferred tax liability of HK$348,510,000 (2013:
HK$288,473,000) in respect of the withholding tax on future dividend
distribution by these PRC subsidiaries.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of

dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

4 8 A 7 s 2 BT e 18 £9322,367,000
WIT (ZF— =4 : 322,367,000% 70) >
AT M PR G A R 2 A 2 R
2 JE TR Vi ] o A A [E] A v B K R 2
T 5 5 18 41,293,639,000% 75 (& —
= F : 698,889,000 JT) o A = F —
P 4E -+ = H =+ — H 4 %8 /539,464,000
W 0 > 77,241,000% JC - 286,577,00035
JC ~ 258,410,000%5 TC }2631,947,000% 7T
Z Bt o Al —F —RAE - &
—NFE S ZFE L ZF— UERT
T—JUAEEIH > A AL HE 6 R A HE A8 i
F ol A LSRG JI 2K H 1R 2 4F 2 [
J& o3 ) o TR s TR R A W] A ) D) AIE
S IR B 3 ) > ST R S M 4R AR
RIEBIIH & o

AR AR r 2 A S A A5 5 > A v ] [ A
DAIVPANEER & - Sioe ATPINC RS~ ER=R 31
BZEF10% IR AL o I E h =%
FNAFE—H — H AR > M R =%
FLETZA =T HENEF o i

e B K [ B A B 45 S 1Y) VAR [ A
T AH BA RS loh ik > R AT 2 R A 0 TE 4
B2 o 3 PR A 4R [ 2 B By5% o
W > AR B A TAT S H B K B ST Y
WM B AR IR —FENFE—H — A
JEE LE 1 R BT 43 IR 19 R B ARAS TR
AE—EFZH =+ —H » AEM
2 55 B B A W 2 R AR E IR
TE N 52 2 A o JE A £i§348,510,000%%
JG (=& —=4F 1 288,473,000 70) ©
AR ) AN T IR R 2 B AR A AT
A TSR R o
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35. DEFERRED INCOME 35. BEIERA

As at 31 December 2014, deferred income of HK$28,183,000 W oF—WME+ _H=+—H>

represented government grants received from the relevant government 28,183,000 7T 2 4 ZE W A H AT B L

bodies to support the research and development activities of the ARSI 2 BUR A B > DA S 3 R4

Nongke Group. Such deferred income will be credited to the ] 2 AR S5 B o A B 408 AE G A A 2 AR

consolidated statement of profit or loss upon fulfilment of certain BN MR B 2 & T IRERT ASE A 1H

conditions specified by the government bodies. tR% o

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. A
Shares i &l
2014 2013
e I 42 —F =5
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#T THIT
Authorised: (note (i)) RE ¢ (fEG))
Nil %
(2013: 10,000,000,000 ordinary (ZF—=4:
shares of HK$0.05 each) 10,000,000,000/% >
(note ii) A5 JBETH{EL0.05 5 7T
Z ) (MEEGE)) - 500,000
Issued and fully paid: EEAT AR -
6,656,055,289 6,656,055,289/1%
(2013: 5,381,055,305) (mB— =4
ordinary shares 5,381,055,3051% ) &% i 14,564,800 269,053

Notes: B EE -

(i)  Under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), which commenced (1) MIE-F-PEZH = HAER G
operation on 3 March 2014, the concept of authorised share capital no longer 2 mG ) (s 05 ] B8 622%) - BR T
exists. 208 A Z SR TAFAE ©

(i)  In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. () AR B A m RG] (B i 15 6 5622
622), the Company’s shares no longer have a par or nominal value with effect ) BB135fk > H_F—UE=H =H
from 3 March 2014. There is no impact on the number of shares in issue or the REAN A A AT BB T B © 32
relative entitlement of any of the members of the Company as a result of this AR ) B BT A BH ST A LR

transition. A S 8 1 A e B 2 o
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36. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

During the year, the movements in share capital were as follows:

36.

31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

JBEA (#)
ER o RARBWT

Number of Share Capital
shares in  Issued share premium  redemption
issue capital account reserve Total
8% 77
OB JeAr s H /i) JBeA
BefrH  CEATBRAR i R S e fk B
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T SR T T
At 1 January 2014 NoF—4E—H—H 5,381,055,305 269,053 10,964,217 2,036 11,235,306
Transition to no-par value N-F—NFE=H=H
regime on 3 March 2014 (a) @I 2 (¥ (a) - 10,966,253  (10,964,217) (2,036) -
Share options exercised (b)  FTfliEMAHE (b) 1,810,400 5,524 = - 5,524
Issue of shares relating to R
acquisition of — I E 2~ 7
a subsidiary (c) AT 2 Bl (c) 1,061,538,935 2,802,463 = = 2,802,463
Final 2013 dividend in the LB RMBIER 2
form of new shares (d) TR -ZHERBRE () 211,650,649 521,507 = = 521,507
At 31 December 2014 N-F—HE+—H=+—H 6,656,055,289 14,564,800 - - 14,564,800
Notes: [ 5
(a) In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in section 37 of Schedule (a) ARIE BB A RO (5L 0 %Ee22

(b)

()

(d)

11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), on 3 March 2014, any
amount standing to the credit of the share premium account has become part
of the Company’s share capital.

The subscription rights attaching to 1,810,400 share options were exercised
at the weighted average subscription price of HK$2.39 per share, resulting in
the issue of 1,810,400 shares for a total cash consideration, before expenses,
of HK$4,327,000. An amount of HK$1,197,000 was transferred from the share
option reserve to share capital upon the exercise of the share options.

On 22 August 2014, 1,061,538,935 new shares were issued as part of the
consideration for the acquisition of the 100% equity interests in Shenzhen Bio-
Agriculture as detailed in note 39.

On 31 March 2014, the board of directors resolved to declare the 2013 final
dividend of HK12.00 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2013.
The Board further resolved that this final dividend will be satisfied wholly in
the form of an allotment of new fully paid share(s) in the share capital of the
Company (“scrip shares”) but shareholders will be given the option of receiving
this final dividend wholly in cash in lieu of this allotment, or partly in cash and
partly in the form of scrip shares. The final dividend in the form of scrip shares
resulted in the issue of 211,650,649 shares at an issue price of HK$2.464 per
share for a total consideration, before expenses, of HK$521,507,000.

(b)

(d)

) R 11EE 3716 3R 51 1 08 U A E
RoE—PE=H=H » AR E AR
MR b A AT Ao 2 5 Bk I A 2 R B AR
H—& 5 o

1,810,400 i H HE T Bf 47 2 58 B
2 JINRE - 49 5 BB ) B 2. 3998 o AT A
EEEE1T1,810,400 X BEAY - HHI & AVE
(31 % B S RiT) £54,327,000% 7C © 4 %A
1,197,000%5 JC T3 717 (5 B IR ARE A% 1y i Pt
(ot AR 0 2 B AR o

WoF—-mWHeENH =+ = [
1,061,538,935/% = 7 ik 4 85 17 > {F /4
W5z B R BT A ) SR 21009 B ARE 2 35 434
B > R O B E39 o

HEGHFE—E=H =+ — Hakik
HRERE_ZF—=F+_H=1+—HI
MR Z T — SRR MR E A 1200
WAl o B — SRR U DL AR
i B A v BT AOR B (TR By )) 2
J5 AR EOIRAT AR, - Ml AR ] 358
T 230 LB 4 AR I e 5 B 4 DA B
G T 43 AR B e 453 5 2K i Btk oK
BB o R REE T DU BB Ty 52
5% > %5 4 30 5 47 8 4 2. 4647 TT 5
17211,650,649 /% B » 48 ARAE (F Bk BH
SCHT) £4521,507,000% TG ©
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36.

37.

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options
issued under the scheme are included in note 37 to the financial

statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operated a share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”),
which had become effective on 5 June 2002 and expired on 5 June
2012. Upon expiry of the Old Scheme, no further options may be
granted but in all other aspects the provisions of the Old Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect. Therefore, the expiry of the Old Scheme
will not in any event affect the terms of the exercise of any outstanding
options that have already been granted under the Old Scheme and such
outstanding options granted under the Old Scheme shall continue to be

subject to the provisions of the Old Scheme.

A new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was approved and
adopted on 22 June 2012 for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations. The eligible participants of the New Scheme
include any employee or director (including executive, non-executive
and independent non-executive directors) of any member of the
Group, or any employee, partner or director of any business consultant,
joint venture partner, financial adviser and legal adviser of and to
any member of the Group, as absolutely determined by the board of
directors. The New Scheme became effective on 22 June 2012 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from that date, after which period no further
options will be issued but in all other respects the provisions of the

New Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

36.

37.

31 December 2014
= S

JBA (%)

S Je

A T B ISR R ) B AR R %t B OB AT
W PR T B B R R B 537

S BB it 1

Aoy F A — TE U R HE S B (18 R
#)) o HER-FZHFANALHAENK
AR —F—ZAEAN A T H JE o R
BT o S AT R - (BLTE
i A oAb 7 T - 5 E B R E R
B e BB FEAEATE DU 8 5l 2 fE
A S B AR R 0 O 4% L v R AT
58 2 A AT 8 B 2 AT o R s T R
A R AR A 5 s 452t 2 o oA A o A
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 37.

31 December 2014
= S

S e et (A0)

The maximum number of ordinary shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the New Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the New Scheme unless the Company obtains a fresh
approval from its shareholders. Options lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the New Scheme will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating such 10% limit. Notwithstanding the above, the maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the New Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30 percent

of the shares in issue from time to time.

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the New Scheme
is that the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the total number of shares in issue.

The period under which an option may be exercised will be determined
by the board of directors at their absolute discretion and notified by the
directors to each grantee as being the period during which an option
may be exercised, and shall expire no later than the 10th anniversary of
the date upon which the option is granted and accepted in accordance
with the New Scheme. Unless otherwise determined by the board of
directors and specified in the offer letter at the time of the offer, there
is no minimum period for which an option must be held before the

option can be exercised.

An option is open for acceptance for a period of 28 days from the date
of offer. The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1. The
full amount of exercise price for the subscription for shares has to be

paid upon exercise of an option.

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the board of directors
and notified to a participant and shall be at least the higher of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer of grant,
which must be a business day; and (ii) a price being the average of
the closing prices of the shares as stated on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of grant.

[k JE A > B B R S AT At o > 5 IR 2%
ST AR R T B B AR 2 ) AT o] At
JREHE S 3 152 2 W PR HE 1T v BB g AT 2
A HE b R AS A5 A A A o
HH TR B2 10% o RIEHEE
W I 80 T R AN & R L 5 E A%
10%PR&A o v W fa] > [N 7% BT (AR 4%
ST e ) B AR A ) A Al B AR R 2
HH T ASEAT {68 2 8 AT 68 s P AR T ] i 2
T2 e B H E BRSO ey B 35T
[ M2 30% o

T4 2 SR ARRORT = B T AT 0 B b
BR - BOERAT SR AE AT 1218 H B 3% T 4%
S Bl 2 WEIRE (4% AT 68 & i R
AT 2 B B M) T AT B R AT 2 ety
R AT OB AT B A 1% -

S Jse HE 2wl AT {0 B oh S MR
T o A I S AR > TR BRAT
o 3003 IR ZELAR 48 5007 w0 S g B M52 1 T 2
FE A E H B FHR 1078 A5 F AT o BR
I T R AR R A R TR 4 T
BRAE HR 8 B > 7 SR A7 ok i PSR S 3
WOFRFAT T PO B ARSI PR o

B R AR T e 5 R H R — A AR N
320 B o B A RO RE BRp 2 SO ORI
TC o RG22 AT (R 2R AT o A
R R A -

708 oy 2 S g R E MO N 2 L AT
EEHAZED /LT ZBEE - ()RR
WH (WHEMBEEN) EEFBHGES
Jiv A PR 2 ) A H R AR 2R i 2 B A Wi i
5 R (i) 8 B B3 4 Y i A 3
TEF W & 28 o T A IR Rl 4 H B R
o A 2 BBy Wi i -3 8
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The following share options were outstanding under the Old Scheme

31 December 2014

U B

37. WEBCRERHE ()
AT 2 8 45 PR AR R s T 0 T

and the New Scheme during the year: AT 2 e R e
2014 2013
e Ui —F =4
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise ~ Number of exercise ~ Number of
price options price options
b piiki 4
AT RERE | PEATAE EACRERE
HKS$ HK$
per share per share
&SN R TT
At 1 January m—H—H 25145 68,347,109 2.4086 91,578,000
Granted during the year TRAE IR 2.8500 123,134,000 3.1600 11,052,000
Exercised during the year TR R A7 2.3900 (1,810,400) 2.3900 (10,570,230)
Forfeited during the year AR ik 2.8500  (2,068,000) 2.5021  (9,116,400)
Lapsed during the year TAAE A 3 2.3900  (3,675,200) 2.5021  (6,077,600)
Cancelled during the year JAAAF TR L 8 23900  (1,999,909) 23900  (8,518,661)
At 31 December mt=A=+—H 2.7429 181,927,600 25145 68,347,109

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share

options exercised during the year was HK$2.6167 per share (2013:

HK$3.1819).

A AT fof 22 6 P B A A7 (55 ) 22 o
- B AE B B2.6167H T (M F — =
4 133.18197T) ©
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2014
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31 December 2014
AL =

37. JEMCHERTE (A1)

TR 45 SR 0 AR AT o8 2 g R 2 A e A

BATHEMAM T

e

—

Number of options

Exercise price*

Exercise period

S e i S A7 B A7 191 ]

HKS$ per share

(38l v
121,066,000 2.8500 28-1-2016 to 27-1-2019
“R-AFE-AZHNHEZZR S —-AZTEH
11,052,000 3.1600 19-7-2014 to 18-7-2015
“E-mEEA A ESFR-HEEAHAH
49,809,600 2.3900 19-7-2012 to 18-7-2015
“E-_HEATHEZ-HEEAHAH

181,927,600

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

TSR 5 S AR 10 AR AT fo 2 B P 2 A (o A

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BAT R
2013 —F =
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
i M B AT A8 A7 5
HKS per share
BT
11,052,000 3.1600 19-7-2014 to 18-7-2015
ZEF—ELCA T UHE SFE—AF LA TAH
57,295,109 2.3900 19-7-2012 to 18-7-2015
R LA EFE-LFEEA A
68,347,109
& The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of % B HEA T o (L ZE AR R IR AL IR 3 A 7

rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

A4 AR 2 ARSI 1 th % o
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

37. JEMCHERTE (A1)

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
HK$61,430,000 (HK$0.50 each). The Group recognised a share option
expense of HK$24,903,000 (2013: HK$6,088,000) during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year
was estimated as at the date of grant using a binomial model, taking

into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were

AR R R B R N R E R
61,430,000 G (4 f%0.50% J0) » & &
TR PEF A=+ —HIREE - AR
45 9] i 58 2 T 4 B S £4524,903,0007
JC (FE—=4F 1 6,088,000%70) °

A R DU AR SAT 2 IR 2 28 72
EE R H I — A KRk &
i BB Rt 22 Wk B R ARG B - 3RS

granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used: R e 2w AEL -
2014
ZE A
Dividend yield (%) % 5 45 2R (%) 6.32
Volatility (%) M (%) 46.461
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4 Jal b 2R (%) 1.356
Expected life of options (year) IR AR (4F) 1.6-4.6

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the

measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 181,927,600
share options outstanding under the Old Scheme and the New Scheme.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
181,927,600 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of HK$597,788,903 (before issue expenses).

As at the date of this report, options carrying rights to subscribe for
181,927,600 shares remain outstanding and yet to be exercised, which
represented approximately 2.73% of the Company’s shares in issue as at
that date.

O SRR w8 A S A A A 08 452 I S
B o

ARG HIR - ARPEE SR St E > A
N T 4181,927,600 14 il B A ) A A7 (i
2 HRBLIRE 2 A0 w) e A e - 7% AT
1 1 A A 8 2 % JB R 197 B0 £ % 47 A8 4
181,927,600 A 23 7] 2 3 48 I - 4% hn ik
597,788,903 7 (ARINFREEATHSC) o

AR 5 H ) > ] 58 H§181,927,600
RS (G AN R iR 3% H B 347 I3 44
2.73%) 2 B IEREA AR IEATE
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38. RESERVES 38. fitifs
(a) Group (a) ARHEEH

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 83 to 84 of the financial

statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries and associates in Mainland China has been
transferred to the statutory reserve which is restricted as to use.

Other reserve represents the difference between the consideration
paid and the book value of the share of net assets acquired in
respect of the acquisition of non-controlling interests, and the
difference between the consideration received and the book value
of the share of net assets disposed of in respect of a change in the

ownership interest in a subsidiary without a loss of control.

ASE F AR OB TR AR T 2 i
BRI LS E) TG B R 83 E 84
Hipa Mg sRNEs -

AR A0 57 A 3 2 AR BRIV 1 B 3
1 > ASER A Hh B e 22 i Jeg 2 )
FeWghoEs o ) 2 v o0 i A1) g =2 A
BRSE 1o 2 15 0 (ot A

LAt b - A0S 2 P e 2 L £5F
AR B 23t i A 1% L 99 R T
EZERR » RAEARIRE LI HE R 1% DL
OB — [H] B B 2 1 ) T A R i
53 ) OO B A B HH B S 1
1L F) B T LY 22 8
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31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

38. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 38. fikfh ()
(b) Company (b) A
Share Capital
premium redemption Share option Retained
account reserve reserve profits Total
A
BeprimfEi ARG ERREGR  PRERA ke
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T Tt Tt T Tk
At 1 January 2013 e s
—H—H 5,714,001 2,036 50,756 364,125 6,130,918

Total comprehensive income  ZX4F J& 2 i it it

for the year ] = = = 802,133 802,133
Share options exercised A7 g A i 36 31,736 = (7,001) = 24,735
Transfer of share option S B

reserve upon the lapse R B IR

and cancellation of share T e i e

options it = = (9,807) 9,807 =
Equity-settled share option DA 7 £ 22

expense Ji 5 HE B 5 - - 6,088 - 6,088
Final 2012 dividend in the  DABI 4 K6

form of cash and new WXz —F— "4

shares KIS 36 412,860 = = (155,542) 257,318
Acquisition of a subsidiary i — It JE /A ) 36 4,568,780 = = - 4,568,780
Interim 2013 dividend “EF-ZHEPHRE 36 236,840 - - (371,160)  (134,320)
Proposed final 2013 Rk —F— =4

dividend ER ()95 13 = = = (645,727)  (645,727)
At 31 December 2013 hoF—Z4F

and TZHA=1T—HE

1 January 2014 —Z—lE—H—H 10,964,217 2,036 40,036 3,636 11,009,925
Total comprehensive income ZAS4E i 2 1f]

for the year i A - - - 1,095922 1,095,922
Share options exercised o i g 36 - - (1,197) - (1,197)
Transfer of share option i FRE A

reserve upon the lapse R B IR

and cancellation of share LS T A

options fit - - (3,859) 3,775 (84)
Equity-settled share option  PAReA it 2

expense Hi R HE B 2 - - 24,903 (1,543) 23,360
Final 2013 dividend TR -ZERHIRE - - - (176) (176)
Transition to no-par value A I 2 #Ef (&

regime il 36 | (10,964,217) (2,036) - - (10,966,253)
Interim 2014 dividend “ER-WERHBE 36 - - - (199,682)  (199,682)
Proposed final 2014 Bk —F— U4

dividend P s 13 - - - (865287)  (865,287)

A4

At 31 December 2014 +ZA=+—H - - 59,883 36,645 96,528
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38. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

31 December 2014
= S

38. fikfh ()

(b) Company (continued)
The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the
financial statements. The amount will either be transferred to the
share premium account when the related options are exercised, or

be transferred to retained profits when the related options lapsed.

39. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 27 January 2014, the Group entered into an acquisition agreement
(the “Acquisition Agreement”) with Shum Yip Holdings, Shum Yip
Group and Nongke to acquire the 100% equity interest in Shenzhen
Bio-Agriculture Company Limited (“Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture”).
Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture is an investment holding company, which
is the holding company of Nongke. The Nongke Group are engaged in
property development, property investment, property management,
manufacture and sale of agricultural products and garden design and
construction in Shenzhen, the PRC. Further details of the transaction
are set out in the circular of the Company dated 12 May 2014. The
acquisition was made as part of the Group’s strategy to increase the
Group’s land bank in Shenzhen.

Pursuant to a supplemental acquisition agreement entered into by
Shum Yip Holdings, Shum Yip Group, Nongke and the Company on 8
May 2014 (the “Supplemental Acquisition Agreement”), the purchase
consideration for the acquisition shall be satisfied by: (a) the allotment
and issue of 1,061,538,935 new shares of the Company to Shum Yip
Holdings; (b) a cash consideration of HK$2,871,286,794.34; and (c) a
contingent consideration of HK$606,314,759.70.

(b) AAnH (%)

U S R £k P 6L 456 2 42 1 1L v R AT G
ZWEBHEA SR (E > E— PRI ROR
B T 2 M 2.4 DA e 13 4 A S
M2 B FHBUR o s2 B0 A B %
PR E AT {8 25 e ik 3 e
JHATET TR 8 R 2 280 I sl 46 22 R A i
) o

39. EXAHF

MEF—E—AZ+EH > AL
W (M) ~ RSEEM SRR S —
WSt (1 WSStk 1) > DAMSOIZR DN AL
PIREARAF ([FRINEDILZED B
100% B HE o BRI IR — M BUE %
Ben Tl > BRBZ BT o RBHEM
FER BRI YR GE R - WA -
W) SEAE HR - R Sl I B 6 LA R [ AR
BT BT o #2385 2 HE— 2 RE TR
RARAMA -F—NFERLAT_HZ
TEK o HEAT B2 MU ) A S [ K AE R I
2 - il i A 1 — A

RAFEZE (M) - EEEE - BRI A
NTA ZF D4R R H N H BTS2 A 7
W ([l Ui fr ik ) - Wiz g
BEAARMEABE B LT A« (a) IR SE
(4 F) WO % K 3847 A8 A F1,061,538,935
JBCH By 5 (b) B4 £ 15 2,871,286,794.34
T 5 R(c)sk SR R #606,314,759.701
FE o
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED)

The contingent consideration is required to be settled under the

following manner:

@

(ii)

As to HK$311,679,961.40, representing the equivalent amount
of the relocation fee in respect of Longxi Garden amounting to
RMB250,457,000 as detailed in note 19, to be settled in cash by the
Company upon receipt of the entire amount of RMB250,457,000
by Nongke within three years after the completion of the

acquisition.

In the event that the entire relocation fee of RMB250,457,000
remains outstanding three years after the completion of the
acquisition, the purchase consideration will be adjusted downward
by HK$311,679,961.40. The Nongke Group shall refund the
advance payment of RMB30,000,000 and any other amount
received from the Counterparty to Shum Yip Holdings.

As to HK$211,729,872.30, representing the equivalent amount
of the valuation amount of the properties located at Xiangzhu
Garden (FIR{EE), to be settled in cash by the Company upon
fulfilment of the following conditions within three years after the

completion of the acquisition:

(a) Nongke has completed the legal procedures to release all of
the properties located at Xiangzhu Garden currently under

judicial seizure;

(b) Nongke has obtained the property ownership certificates of
all of the properties located at Xiangzhu Garden;

(c) all of the properties located at Xiangzhu Garden shall not be
subject to any third party rights and legal proceedings; and

(d) the PRC legal advisers engaged by Shum Yip Holdings and
the Company have issued a legal opinion confirming the
fulfilment of the conditions mentioned in (a), (b) and (c)

above.

31 December 2014
= S

39. ¥EBGOH ()
ARG ZE 3 DA 5 SAEAT -

@

(ii)

311,679,961.40% G > B % % 19
SR B E WRE VR A B AR B AN R
250,457,0007C (7F 5 B 5E19) » 78
H AR A R TE RRABRIA 58 OB R =45
A i 38 2 e B R M 250,457,000
JUE DLBR 4 S AT o

fiig 2= 3B 9 78 2 A R ¥250,457,000
TG A W I 58 B AR = AR IR AT R B
o R E CE M T R
311,679,961.40%5 JG  Ji2 B} 4 M 78
) VR 2E (B2 3B o] T AT BN R
30,000,0007C A B TR E (FR ) 2~
AT A] EoAth FRIH o

211,729,872.30%k 7t > B[l 45 % 19 {7
ARG [ Y ER AR (% > A
F AR 28 A AR A 58 B s 5
AR N R DA B A AT

(a) JRB T 58 U B AL A 2R
AL R R A ke (K DR 7]
SEMFERFIA A T A

(b) AT HUAS BT A LR A R A
] 119 40 SE 1) 7 RERS 5

(c) PA A 7 BRAL [ ) 1 36 38
RS2 AT AT 55 = T HE AL R 2
AEWERTL 5 K

(d) TR¥E (M) KANF T
B o I i A LR
B AR L 3C(a) ~ (b) K ()T
ARG T o
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED)

(ii)

(iii)

(continued)

In the event that the conditions as abovementioned are not
satisfied within three years after the completion of the acquisition,
the purchase consideration will be adjusted downward by
HK$211,729,872.30. Any interest in the properties located at
Xiangzhu Garden shall be deemed to be owned by Shum Yip
Holdings.

As to HK$82,904,926.00, representing the equivalent amount of
the valuation amount of the properties located at Li Lin Terrace,
Li Cui Court, Longxi Garden and Xiangli Garden (notes 17 and
19), to be settled in cash by the Company upon fulfilment of the
following conditions within three years after the completion of
the acquisition:

(a) Nongke has obtained the property ownership certificates of

all of the properties as abovementioned;

(b) all of the properties as abovementioned shall not be subject

to any third party rights and legal proceedings; and

(c) the PRC legal advisers engaged by Shum Yip Holdings and
the Company have issued a legal opinion confirming the

fulfilment of the conditions mentioned in (a) and (b) above.

In the event that the conditions as abovementioned are not
satisfied within three years after the completion of the acquisition,
the purchase consideration will be adjusted downward by
HK$82,904,926.00, any interest in the properties located at Li Lin
Terrace, Li Cui Court, Longxi Garden and Xiangli Garden (notes
17 and 19) shall be deemed to be owned by Shum Yip Holdings.

31 December 2014
= S

39. ¥EBGOH ()

(ii)

(iii)

(%)

i b A A A SR T WA 5 B AR = AR
A2 i > Bl RIS 1] T A
211,729,872.30% JC o N A 7 2k A€
B (14 40 SE 1 AT AT RE 45 ZE AL A by TR 2
(LM A -

82,904,926.00%% G » R4 %8 19 o7 i
IHAMB > TR FEREE XA
e P 2 (Bt k17 %19) B4k (8
SR > AR AN FIAE LN R 5T
BN B A = 4F TR B LR DL &
£

(a) REACHUE Lk T AmEN
EEERE 5

(b) ERPTA YA ZAEMEE

= HER R PR B A ik A
s K

() W (M) RANFFTZE
RN R e i T R e
o LR b 3 (a) B (b) it A
B, -

i b 2 A A A T WA 5 B AR = 4R
T2 i > B A 1) T AR
82,904,926.005 7T ° i JA 7 M4t -
AR~ BEIRAE B BAE A AE B
SEMAT AT HE 25 (B k17 19) ZHAR
TEHRTRZE (L) HEF -
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED) 39.

31 December 2014
= S

EB AU ()

In addition, pursuant to the land grant contracts in respect of the
Mingren Land entered into between the Nongke Group and the relevant
PRC authorities on 15 April 2014, the land premium of the Mingren
Land (note 32) held by the Nongke Group may be adjusted as a result
of any change in the local policy regarding land premium. Pursuant
to the Supplemental Acquisition Agreement, Shum Yip Holdings and
the Company have agreed that if the amount of the adjustment on the
land premium of the Mingren Land to be made by the relevant PRC
authorities is less than RMB10,000,000, the purchase consideration
will be adjusted upwards or downwards by the same amount of
the adjustment on the land premium. Shum Yip Holdings and the
Company have also agreed that, if the amount of the adjustment on the
land premium of the Mingren Land to be made by the relevant PRC
authorities is over RMB10,000,000, the adjustment on the purchase
consideration will be further determined based on the results of the
valuation to be done. In that case, the amount of the adjustment on the
purchase consideration should not exceed RMB100,000,000.

Pursuant to an agreement entered into by the Nongke Group and
certain third parties in relation to the properties located at Xiangzhu
Garden on 23 December 2014, certain of these properties shall be
entitled to the third parties. The third parties also agreed to withdraw
all the claims against the Nongke Group. Accordingly, the condition (ii)
as abovementioned will not be satisfied. The relevant properties located
at Xiangzhu Garden and the corresponding contingent consideration
of HK$211,729,872.30 were not accounted for by the Group as at 31
December 2014.

The acquisition was completed on 22 August 2014. The Group
recognised a gain on a bargain purchase of approximately
HK$1,069,722,000 in relation to this business combination. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the gain on bargain
purchase was mainly due to the fluctuation of the market price of the
Company’s ordinary shares between the agreement date and the date of

completion of the acquisition.

WeAh AR R L AR M B B R
ZER UM A R H B A HET
S kR W R RHAE M T R 4
N b (B 5E32) 2 b i 58 4 m [
b A T M R A Y SR A A 8 i T
DLW RE o AR PR 7T S W I - TR 2E (M
) BLAS N )RR o A IR v S
(PPN R ek N o ks
AR A R 10,000,000 - ff5 B A0 1E
16 i S 4 W R ) R [ 4 1) B
TH N Wi o PR3E (SR BRI HE B IR
HRAE 0 WA BABUR S MR AR 2 4 AR
b T A 2 AR S AR A N R
10,000,0007G - fi#f B 115 5 g o — 20
HRAFAEHEAT 2 A (45 Rl 2 o AEUIE UL
R o R R R R R
100,000,0007T °

R BB AE [ B 155 = 5 ik — & — Y
Lo Ry = Bty el = 7 (V) (7 A 0L )
Tk & TS EANESE
5= o 5 =5 ANIR] B ARUE] R AE
B TA R o I Eal G ORG)AF
ARG - RoF—ET A =+—
H > A% 58 A € 3507 1A A Bk A6 I 1 A B
W) 2 B R 1 AR 1B 211,729,872.30 1%
JEHIEE o

e R —F—WEN] Z+ 2 H 5
T o A B I AR LG SE 5 A7 Tl e 1 i
FI A5 #11,069,722,000%5 TG © A< /A ] # 45
FRAy - RRAE IR B RS Bk A AR Fl
78 i 2 T B ek B A s 5T AR H A
Z BBy o
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED) 39. EBAE (HH)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Shenzhen U 3 > BRI A S R R A
Bio-Agriculture and its subsidiaries (the “Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture " (TP EE ) Z ] &85 E & Ak
Group”) as at the date of acquisition were as follows: ZNFAEINE ¢
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
7 W IR
ZARME
Notes HK$°000
iF: THTT
Property, plant and equipment Y ~ ReE Mkt 14 407,231
Investment properties BEYE 19 2,917,954
Breeding biological assets A EEEAE Y 26 7,064
Available-for-sale investments A B R E 19,389
Deferred tax assets % JE B T 34 271,164
Inventories sy 7,206
Completed properties held for sale FHEFE Z B 693,294
Properties under development PR R 18 8,382,214
Trade receivables JRE B 3K 85,597
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TR FRIE ~ 3T 4 S H At R ISR IH 135,742
Trading biological assets THFEMEA: W 26 11,394
Cash and cash equivalents W4 £ EY 1,697,121
Restricted cash % PR il B4 3,624
Trade payables JEA HR K (3,281,294)
Other payables and accruals HoAth A FRIH K R w2 (613,394)
Due to the ultimate holding company JREAST 3 4 425 e ) 3k B (76,509)
Tax payable JREAST o T (1,188,346)
Deferred tax liabilities 0 S T A 34 (2,391,835)
Deferred income RIEWA (20,832)
Non-controlling interests I PE I A (104)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value F2 N FeAB 5 IR 2 ] bk ) VT (AR AE 7,066,680
Gain on a bargain purchase recognised in other &R A £ 3R 2 HAth
income and gains in the consolidated statement Ut A K FIf5 R 2
of profit or loss e 18 W LR A 1,069,722
Satisfied by: PAF 5175 A3
Fair value of shares issued EEATIR Gy 2 A Al 2,802,463
Cash consideration HEE 2,871,287
Fair value of the contingent consideration BRAEZ A RE 323,208

5,996,958
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S B A M

39. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED) 39.

31 December 2014
= S

EB AU ()

The initial amount of the contingent consideration was recognised at
HK$323,208,000, which was determined using the discounted cash
flow model and is under Level 3 fair value measurement. Significant
unobservable valuation inputs for the fair value measurement of
contingent consideration include the estimated possible outcome of the
conditions (i) to (iii) as abovementioned and a discount rate of 6.88%

per annum.

Management estimates that the conditions (i) and (iii) as
abovementioned will be fulfilled within three years after the completion
of the acquisition and the adjustment to the land premium of the
Mingren Land is assumed to be within RMB10,000,000. A significant
increase/decrease in the discount rate would result in a significant
decrease/increase in the fair value of the contingent consideration
liability.

The contingent consideration payable is subsequently measured
at fair value. As at 31 December 2014, an increase in fair value of
contingent consideration payable to Shum Yip Holdings amounting
to HK$7,246,000 is charged in “Other expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. At the date of approval of these financial
statements, no further significant changes to the consideration are

expected.

AR Z ) A0 4 B E R £9323,208,000
T T Ml ARG B B A Y i E - I
BB =N AERE - SUAREA 2
(BT 2 1 T ROAS AT 3B A0 i A A L4
b A A (1) (i) 2 il R AT RE 4 2R A R
£ 4F-6.88% I B B o

BT Al b AR (1) B () A% A Wi
TERE AR N AL > IR A Lt
Hb i 5% 4 2 70 e A R ¥ 10,000,0007C
PATR o R BERAME _EaR 7 B 2 5
RREABIN A RMERIE TR 15 -

JEA S AR B AR 4% A Al R - R
F—E+ A=+ —H BEAEE
(5L E) Z SRR AERS 7,246,000
WILE A AR R 2 THAB | 0
B o A% 5 AR A E B > SR
i — BB AR R o
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S B A M SE WA S

39. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED) 39. EBHHF ()
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of the ARSI A B EE R E
Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture Group is as follows: SIHTINT -
HK$°000
Tt

Cash paid BT 54 (2,871,287)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired P Scif  B 4 B B  AE E) 1,700,745
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included 34 J% 81 4 &5 (& ¥ Jii H 15 (EL

in cash flows from investing activities (FHASR B H & E B 2 Bl i) (1,170,542)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included in Y% 22 5) Bl A4S

cash flows from operating activities (FEAZR B 88 B) 2 Bla T E) (7,086)

(1,177,628)

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, fisi & GF R 4E B0 B AT AR A
the revenue and profit of the Group for the year would have been £ [ 2l g T A ORE I RE 4 Rl A

HK$15,610,664,000 and HK$3,502,222,000, respectively. 15,610,664,000%5 75 12 3,502,222,000%5 7C °
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31 December 2014
ZE—NETFZA=Z+—H

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. 8 HfJE 2
Disposal of the 80% equity interest in Shum Yip Shumkang (i) HMEEREFEEZ0% MM
On 31 December 2013, the Group entered into an agreement MW_EFE—="F+_H=+—H>
with Shum Yip Holdings, the immediate holding company, 7S A5 [E) B B R N R R E (4B
to dispose of its 80% equity interest in Shum Yip Shumkang H) 577tk - S RE AR
(Group) Co., Ltd. (“Shum Yip Shumkang”) to Shum Yip Holdings 340,208,0007C (#H 45 J£435,058,000
at a cash consideration of RMB340,208,000 (equivalent to o) MEE EE) BETHEERE
HK$435,058,000). The transaction was completed on 7 March (M) BRAF ((EHEGEE]
2014. The consideration was settled on the disposal date. The net 80% 2 tEDE o o B B —U4E
assets disposed of as at the date of disposal were as follows: =Z=HEREMR - RET R L E B
G5 o WA HE BT B 2 S E AR
wE
7 March 2014
e a1 kS
=H-tH
Note HKS$°000
iEE: THIT
Net assets disposed of: JiT B R
Property, plant and equipment E N ] 232,656
Investment properties d-¢/ES 178,674
Prepaid land lease payments TE A5 = Hh FH B R IE 4,044
Intangible assets Y & 116,081
Investments in associates W% N m B 57,004
Available-for-sale investments CIECick=£i'd - 7,463
Other long term assets HoAth R0 35,759
Deferred tax assets R ST TH 3,016
Trade receivables JEWC R 5 Bk 5,067
Prepayments, deposits and TASTRIE ~ 518 K&
other receivables HoAth SR IH 50,167
Inventories VA< 2,647
Cash and cash equivalents Bl BB a5 8 63,425
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHESRAT R H AR £ (85,387)
Trade payables JEAS B 5 Bk (954)
Other payables and accruals HoAth A FROH K w2 (291,772)
Tax payable JEAS B (1,392)
Deferred tax liabilities R A T 5 (22,528)
Non-controlling interests T2 JRHE At (124,519)
229,451
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: A — TR B ) 2 W 2 Wi
Cash consideration HeRE 435,058
Net assets disposed of STt 6 T (229,451)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the it t £ IRf oy HoAth 4= 17 Ui £5
net assets of the subsidiary reclassified from other 5314348 £ {8 %5 2 47 B
comprehensive income to profit or loss upon W 2 m) G R TFE 2
disposal BATIE 2 91,817

5) 297,424
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40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(1)

(ii)

31 December 2014
AL =

40. HMEMEBAR (4)

Disposal of the 80% equity interest in Shum Yip Shumkang (i) HEERERBZ80%BHE (4)
(continued)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in H B VR SEVE U5 809 L 2 B 42 Sy B
respect of the disposal of the 80% equity interest in Shum Yip EEBEYRAFESHWT ¢
Shumkang is as follows:
7 March 2014
ZE-ME=ZALEH
HKS$°000
FHE
Cash consideration HEE 435,058
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of T s B RO 4 SRR (63,425)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect 8 iff i /A 7 2 34 B4
of the disposal of a subsidiary ZEYRAFE 371,633

Disposal of the 70% equity interest in Chengdu Xinyi

On 10 December 2014, the Group entered into an agreement with
two independent third parties to dispose of the 70% equity interest
in Chengdu Xinyi to the two independent third parties at a cash
consideration of RMB77,460,000 (equivalent to HK$97,491,000).
Chengdu Xinyi was previously held by Shum Yip Terra, a
subsidiary owned as to 75.05% by the Company. The transaction
was completed on 31 December 2014. The consideration was fully
received by the Group on the disposal date. The net liabilities
disposed of as at the date of disposal were as follows:

(ii) B SR 0 MR Z 70% i A

MEF—WETZA+TH > AEH
ST 4 ST A = O wT S R > DABR
& 8 N R #77,460,000C (F] %
97,491,000 J6.) 1 W 4 18 57 5
=5 H B RO R 2 70% BEHE o A
HLR ST A R HEA 75.05% 2
HE £ WO BB S A TR ZE TR R R » &8
ZER_F—MEFZH=+—H
SEIR o ASHE BB 4 F AR ik
BAE - REE BB E 2 &8
HWTF :

31 December 2014

TR u4E
+ZH=+—H
Notes HK$’000
iEE: Tt
Net liabilities disposed of: JT th 6 AR
Cash and bank balances & M ARAT 4R 49,964
Properties under development BRPYE 18 151,886
Accruals and other payables JRRE 53R T e L A JE A R I (203,062)
Non-controlling interests T 12 IROHE i 423
(789)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: H P — [T B 2 7] 2 Wi
Cash consideration HEE 97,491
Net liabilities disposed of ST i 6 AR AR 789

5 98,280
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40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(i) Disposal of the 70% equity interest in Chengdu Xinyi

(continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of the 70% equity interest in Chengdu
Xinyi is as follows:

31 December 2014
AL =

40. HEMEAR (8)
(ii) HERHBOIEZ70%BHE (%)

B AR LB 709% B 1 2 B 4 K Bl 4 5
EYRAFESHAE

31 December 2014

TR

+ZHA=1+—H

HK$°000

THTT

Cash consideration WG RE 97,491
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of ST H B B R B AR ) (49,964)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect i Jff & /A 7] 2 3 4 M I 4 %18 W)

of the disposal of a subsidiary TAE(E 47,527

41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(i) As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 19) and property,
plant and equipment under operating lease arrangements, with
leases negotiated for terms ranging from two to eighteen years.
The terms of the leases generally also require the tenants to
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments

according to the then prevailing market conditions.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its

tenants falling due as follows:

41, REMALH
() ek
TRIFACEFAAT LR > A [HIFEL i
THREYE (k19 KW -~ F
& KeasAl > FRIAEEE B AR 2 T\
ARG o TR — BRI F
SEBAT R 5 4 BB R A R T
SR 1T 0 B e R A 4 o

ATE—PEFZA=+—H &
A5 B LA FH A T 98 < A AT B 8
B A TE AR 3R 2 B K Wi 6 R

N
Group
AL
2014 2013
—% s EPSEL
HK$’000 HK$’000
T-¥o0 T
Within one year —4E A 650,421 363,171
In the second to fifth years, 0 AR AL
inclusive (s EmAE) 1,075,043 601,876
After five years R A8 AR 426,061 299,982
2,151,525 1,265,029
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41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(ii) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its properties under operating lease

arrangements. Leases for the properties are negotiated for terms

ranging from one to three years.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group and the Company had total

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases falling due as follows:

31 December 2014

. Ve

41. BEMALHE (8)

(ii) fERAF
AR B T LA S T
W > YERBRRE B — R =4
A% -

AZF—MEFZH=+—H, &
A5 B B A R DA H 1 i 2 A
AT U KA A TE R A 2 B (R IE AT

LG BT
Group Company
AL Ao ]
2014 2013 2014 2013
SWE | FSA | RN |
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#IT THIT T#IT T T
Within one year — 4N 4,743 6,469 2,739 2,739
In the second to fifth years, R A
inclusive (FL 35 M 4E) 1,632 3,652 913 3,652
6,375 10,121 3,652 6,391
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42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 41(ii)

above, the Group and the Company had the following commitments at

the end of the reporting period:

31 December 2014
AL =

42. BAESE
PR b SCRT RE41 (i) af 2l 2 888 FH 4 K 4
Gh s R IR > AEERARNFZE
AARIEAT

Group Company
L A AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
R g | DF D | DR Ng | D=4
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TH#T T#E T T#T T
Commitments in respect of
acquisition of land and
buildings, and development
costs attributable A A it K
to properties under i S e
development: W) 2EBE e A 2 R IfE
Contracted, but not EAEOL (5
provided for v A A 7,347,594 6,566,422 - =
Authorised, but not R
contracted for M ARET 4 28,545 39,534 - =
7,376,139 6,605,956 - -

In addition, the Group’s share of a joint venture’s own capital

commitments, which are not included in the above, is as follows:

BEAh > 3 R FEA E A 2 AR Al — ]
BENFARG ZEARGEWT

Group

A4
2014 2013
— s e
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#T T#IC

Commitments in respect of the provision
of development service: PR BB AR 5 2 AR AfE

Contracted, but not provided for CL AT 40 v R A - 674,591
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43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided

31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

43. BARAE
AR PR > S BB i SR A 2

for in the financial statements were as follows: HARA G
Group Company
AREEHE YN
2014 2013 2014 2013
SR | SE S| SR | SE S
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt T Tt T
(i) Guarantees given to banks (i) £ a2 75
for credit facilities A5 & 18] 4RAT
granted to subsidiaries VE W 2 A5 = 1,920,741 1,895,004

(ii)

The guarantees given to banks for credit facilities granted to

certain subsidiaries by the Company will expire on 16 April 2016.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has given guarantees to a
maximum extent of approximately HK$2,359,519,000 (2013:
HK$3,193,044,000) to banks for housing loans extended by the

banks to the purchasers of the Group’s properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default of the
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible
for repaying the outstanding mortgage loans together with any
accrued interest and penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to
banks. The Group is then entitled to take over the legal title of the
related properties. The Group’s guarantee period commences from
the date of grant of the relevant mortgage loan and ends after the
buyer of the Group’s properties obtained the individual property

ownership certificate.

The directors consider that in case of default in payments, the net
realisable value of the related properties can cover the repayment
of the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued
interest and penalty and therefore no provision has been made in

connection with the guarantees.

(ii)

A F B T W B 28 R AR A T
] SRAT A th 2 MEARF IR —F— R4
LAPER AN T

AZE—JIEFZH=+—H > A&
EMABTA TAEMYEER
Z 5 B R SR AT 4R R 2 R 4
2,359,519,000% JG (=& — = 4F ¢
3,193,044,000%5 70) MIIELR

MREEIE PRG35 B 53 4%
BRI > A LA FEE AT AT
246 52 A T 4 R K0 2 B R AT
SRAT A A BB B o A SR
M BB A% AT O B SE I Bk A
1 o AR T Q48 ORIV £ 452t A B 4
BEFCE H AR EA LYK
ZR IS 490 8 BT A R T

EHR A M SGHIE > RS
f¥9 T 5 B 7 (L2 AR o R AR Y
2 485 B8 T R A Ao A ML %
Ao BRI SF S ORAT 4364 -
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E\j‘%iﬁ% I;'H‘EEE o ﬁﬁ II D:ec)e]nlbelrﬁ)lazl

43, HARAE (8)
(i) A2 F] 35 B 75.05% i J g 2 ] 18 2

43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
(iii) On 12 September 2014, Shum Yip Terra, a 75.05% owned

subsidiary of the Company, and its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Wuhan Shum Yip Terra Property Development Company Limited
(“Wuhan Terra”), received a notification for the appointment
of defender/application for legal aid during the prosecution
review phase from The People’s Procuratorate of Jianli County
of Hubei Province (the “People’s Procuratorate”), informing
Shum Yip Terra and Wuhan Terra that materials in respect of the
suspected corporate offence of bribery on both of them have been
transferred to the Public Prosecution Bureau of the Procuratorate

for prosecution review.

The People’s Procuratorate considers that there were violations
of the relevant regulations in the procedures in respect of a
land transaction involved by Wuhan Terra which has caused a
loss of stated-owned land income, and the loss in the amount
of approximately RMB316 million should be borne by Shum
Yip Terra. The People’s Procuratorate has seized certain bank
accounts of Wuhan Terra and Shum Yip Terra. Further details
of the matter are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 18 September 2014. As at 31 December 2014, the balance
of the seized bank accounts of Wuhan Terra and Shum Yip Terra
amounted RMB196,028,000 and RMB79,532,000, respectively
(note 30). At the date of approval of these financial statements,
Shum Yip Terra and Wuhan Terra have not yet received any
notification from the People’s Court regarding the prosecution

filed by the People’s Procuratorate.

RAR DG M B~ 7 BB
SEFR IR M E B EE A PR A ([
BERR] RoF—EA =
ERVEREIR N RPN 9
(TN B A %8 B ) e 2 5 A P8 Bk
ZiChEE N A AR B
) R IR R AR AR
0N E R EAAT I IR AR RS A R e
PNRRHELT A LR o

N EE B s A IRE R R Kz +
38 5 A8 7 35 A BRRRLE - 2 U
Kl B M R R
B AR L 29 A\ K H5316,000,000
JG o MER T A B AR R R SR
RETERITIRF o s%HIEMME—
FERB R AS A R B R B 4
JUA /N H AN o 7 —ZF—
A= —H > RERR AR
SET IR B 7 SRATHR F &5 8200
%) 55 N R %196,028,00070 K A B HE
79,532,0007C (Bt 5E30) o 5% 55 i
BRI ) e IR Mk
e/ & S N5 & AR PNGES
Wt ol AR G2 38 H 1Y 5 S o
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31 December 2014
AL =

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 44. BT 2 5
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (a) FBRazE B R R M 0 C Rt 2

financial statements, the Group had the following material

oo o ARR S AR BT 5 B

transactions with related parties during the year: FHHEFTUL T EREZS ¢
Group
AL E
2014 2013
e Sl 2 ZE A
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
B 5 FHoT T
(1) Shum Yip Group, the ultimate (1) HEHER N FGR2E
holding company: L
— Interest expenses — BB
(note 44(d)(i)) (P EE44(d)(1)) 316,378 263,535
- Management fee income — EHEILA (i) 1,097 =
(2) Shum Yip Holdings, the immediate  (2) E RN FAIEE
holding company: (5£HE) -
- Rental expenses — H4 B (ii) 6,004 4,742
(3) Associates: (3) BT
- Sales of products — SHEEE b (iii) 228,377 50,884
(4) Fellow subsidiaries: (4) [RZEMBAR :
— Sales of properties — SHEWE - 341,484
— Interest expenses — FLEBA
(note 33) ([t 5E33) 16,976 30,083
- Estate agency fee income — M EAHEBIRA (V) 9,220 70,220
- Management fee income — BEMEIA (v) 1,312 =
(5) Joint ventures: (5) —MI&EBATH :
— Interest income — FE A
(note 28) (B 5E28) 399,795 363,676
(6) Non-controlling shareholders: (6) FEHERLIEAR :
- Interest expenses — S B 7 (vi) 7,910 9,469
— Interest income — A E A - 2,044
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(a) (continued)

Notes:

®

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Pursuant to the relevant agreements entered into between Nongke
and Shum Yip Group on 27 January 2014, Shum Yip Group appointed
Nongke to provide management services on its behalf in respect of (a)
certain agricultural lands and related assets, and (b) the implementation
plan of a property development project. Further details are set out in the
circular of the Company dated 12 May 2014. Management fee income in
respect of the management services as abovementioned of HK$677,000
and HK$420,000, respectively, was charged to Shum Yip Group for the
period from 22 August 2014 (the date of the acquisition of Shenzhen
Bio-Agriculture) to 31 December 2014.

The rentals were recognised at prices based on mutual agreement

between the parties.

The sales to the associates were made according to the published prices

and conditions offered to the major customers of the Group.

The estate agency fee income from a fellow subsidiary was charged at

prices based on mutual agreement between the parties.

The management fee income from a fellow subsidiary was charged at

prices based on mutual agreement between the parties.

In the opinion of the directors, the above related party transactions were
conducted on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business. The directors of the Company confirmed that the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with the Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(b) Other transactions with related parties

(i)

(i)

(iii)

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s bank loans amounting to
HK$3,747,300,000 (31 December 2013: HK$3,179,750,000)
were guaranteed by Shum Yip Group (note 31(a)).

On 7 March 2014, the Group disposed of its 80% equity
interest in Shum Yip Shumkang to Shum Yip Holdings at
a cash consideration of RMB340,208,000 (equivalent to
HK$435,058,000). Further details of the transaction are
included in note 40(i) to the financial statements.

On 22 August 2014, the Group acquired the 100% equity
interest in Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture from Shum Yip
Holdings. Further details of the transaction are included in
note 39 to the financial statements.

31 December 2014
= S

44. B%IT R 5 (%)
(a) (%)
FHRE

() IRIEERLEE LN T —
A=+t BT L2 B ok > EESE
[ 24T 2 Bk () 7 T J22 b 2 AH B
HE &(b)%%ﬁIEIEHZﬁTﬁ@J
PO IR o M — 2B TR R A A
Hinm —F—MNER A+ EIZLLI
RoE—PENA =+ H (FEIIEY
JREZ I H ) B E YA
H=1—H WM > B bk 38 iRk
W 2 & BT A 53 Al £5677,000% 76 K&
420,000%57C > ELJEVEELE BB o

() &Y T A 2 Z (B RS R -

(i) IR R 2 8 I ARIR SR T AR I
EEEF 2 O TSR RARIED

(iv) & A R] 2R B 2wl 2 st (RBE R UL A TS
TR HT #9770 B h 7€ Z AEAS AR I o

(v)  HRARRME S A 28 BB T
H07 AEL T 52 2 ARAR AR -

(vi) EEHEERR o LB T2 5 T e AR SR 1
F WSS v 45— e i SO AT 2 38
Gy o AN A FERMER AL 7 CERE L
FESE 14A B LR HLE o

(b) BLRRBE T 2 HASE 5
(i) MZF—WEFZH=1—
H > 7 4 [3,747,300,0007
fn(:2?~£$+:ﬁ£+
— H : 3,179,750,000%% JC)
AT RS Jﬁﬁa(’*‘ﬁé%@ﬁ%ﬁé
(Fff5E31(a))

(i) M-F—WFE=HLtH: ZIK
LM EE (EE) BB
TR EEVE S 2 80% AL HE fﬁéﬁt
18 5 N R 1340,208,0007C (4]
4518 435,058,000% 7T) © X 5
ZHE— 2 R O S5 A B
M FE40G) A

(iii) A ZF—MFENHZ +¥
H > AEMHFEE (£H)
E%‘T%ﬂ”i%%%ZlOO%Eﬁ
WE o 38 5 2 i — 45 A R
bR PSRRI 39 o
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Commitments with related parties:

The Group entered into certain operating lease arrangements with
Shum Yip Holdings. The amount of lease expenses for the year
is included in note 41(a) to the financial statements. The Group
expects total lease expenses in 2015 and 2016 to be approximately
HK$6,413,085 and HK$912,960, respectively.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i) Included in the aggregate amount due to the ultimate
holding company under current liabilities are amounts of
HK$1,415,751,000 as at 31 December 2014 (31 December
2013: HK$1,967,123,000), which are unsecured, bear interest
from 105% of the six-month benchmark lending rate of the
PBOC to the one-year benchmark lending rate of the PBOC
(2013: one-year benchmark lending rate of the PBOC),
and are repayable on demand. In addition, included in the
aggregate amount due to the ultimate holding company
under current liabilities are amounts of HK$960,595,000 as at
31 December 2014 (31 December 2013: HK$1,717,065,000),
which are unsecured, bear interest rate from 105% of the
one-year benchmark lending rate of the PBOC to 9.9% (2013:
9.9%) per annum, and are repayable from 7 January 2015
to 10 September 2015 (2013: from 30 October 2014 to 8
December 2014). The remaining amount due to the ultimate
holding company under current liabilities is unsecured,
interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

The amount due to the ultimate holding company under
non-current liabilities of HK$1,412,597,000 as at 31
December 2014 (31 December 2013: HK$1,221,024,000),
which bears interest at 110% of the three-year benchmark
lending rate of the PBOC (2013: 9.9% per annum), is
unsecured and payable from 26 June 2016 to 4 September
2016 (2013: 5 September 2015).

31 December 2014
= S

44. BAWRDT 2 5 (81)

(c)

(d)

o)y -

ARG EESE (EH) 5T A T4
EmHEZYE - FRNHEEN &M
A HA S R Y 5E41(a) TR B R o AR
EEEY > R F—HER F
— 7N AF 2 B B SRR ER O R A B
6,413,085%5 70 52 912,960 %5 T °

BB 7 2 REGR R ¢
(i) MF—WE+H=1—
H o Jilh & EE T A R&
PERLA A B E A B S
%1,415,751,000% JC (— F
— =+ _H=+—H:
1,967,123,000% JC) > #% 3K JH
SEHRH > PN RER1T 2
758 H B E B KA % 2 105%
B AN RBIT 2 —FHE
HEF R R (R — =4
W N RERAT 2 — 4F M S e
B R) TS K i R AE
o M R B — UL+
“A=Zt—H > n#AKE
T A5t B e BN T R TE AR
#4145 960,595,0009 76 (-
E—=®t+=-H=+—8H:
1,717,065,000% 7C) > #% 3K JH
EHCH > fE N RER1T 2
— A HH B R ORI 2R 2 105%
£99H (ZFE— =4 1 9.9H)
ZAER R E R E
E—HELtHE_F—HENR
AHTH#HE (CF— =4
—EZ—ME+A=THEHE=
F—P04E+ = H AN H B
R o Pl & I T AR
5% o 4% 42 I A ) ik AR A K
i~ B HLE [ O R

WoE-HE T A =T
—H> FEBHAEMBETZ
JE A doe 4% 122 i s ] 2 3KIA
£41,412,597,000% JC (— &
—=#+_H=+—H:
1,221,024,000%5 JC) > % 3K H
Fie ) N R R AT 2 = A7 5
HE A A R E 0% (T F
— = 9.9JH X 4E I R)
B A R & —
FARAZTANABE-ZF—
FEILH M A (& —
g DB —HAFEIJHAAH)
B -

N>t =)
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

As disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial
position, the Group had an amount of HK$51,171,000 (2013:
HK$31,446,000) due to the immediate holding company
under current liabilities. The amount is unsecured, interest-

free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

As disclosed in the company and consolidated statements of
financial position, the amount of HK$323,208,000 due to the
immediate holding company under non-current liabilities
represented the contingent consideration payable for the
acquisition of Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture (note 39).

Details of the Group’s amounts due from its joint ventures
are disclosed in notes 22 and 28 to the financial statements.

Details of the Group’s amounts due from/to its associates as
at the end of the reporting period are included in notes 22,

28 and 33 to the financial statements.

Details of the Group’s amounts due from/to its fellow
subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period are

included in notes 28 and 33 to the financial statements.

Details of the Group’s amounts due from/to non-controlling
shareholders of certain subsidiaries of the Group as at the
end of the reporting period are included in notes 28 and 33

to the financial statements.

31 December 2014
= S

44. BAWT 2 5 (8)
(d) BEBAB T < REDRRES ¢ (5D

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

AN &5 A BA S IR B3 P Bk
# o AEHRE A MIETE
A B e B2 N R 2 3R B
51,171,000% 7T (= & — =
F 1 31,446,000%5 JC) © % K
TEEACHR - Ao B H A [ e 2
AHIBR o

WA B R AR A B R B
=T EE - E LB A A
N RE AT B R A R BROA
323,208,000 7T $5 Ui i % Y|
A R A 2 SR RUE
(Fi$5E39) ©

AR S B A R R
W SRS S R M RE22 &
28 °

TR IR AR [ R
JRE A5 W 4 2 ) KB 2 R
AP R B 5E22 ~ 28 %33 ©

TR IR AR [ e
JEAST [F) 2% B JBS 2 m] Bk E 2w
7 A BA B i [ 28 8233 o

T R AR AR SR T U
JRE AT A 42 [ 5 F B I 8 m) 2
I 428 B BB R A T 2 B 1 R
BT R M k28 1233 o
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 44, BB RS (5)
(e) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: (e) ALEEEEMAB IS ¢
2014 2013
S e
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
Short term employee benefits e HA AR B AR A 11,982 14,491
Post-employment benefits B ARAE A 1,950 3,232
Equity-settled PUBCA A 2
share option expense s FBE AR B =2 7,312 3,220
Total compensation paid to key EfTFEEHAR
management personnel T 4 4 %A 21,244 20,943
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments M MR m AT B S 2 E—4
are included in note 8 to the financial statements. EAE N e
The related party transactions in respect of items (a)(1), (a)(2), H B Eata)(1) ~ (a)(2) -~ (a)(4) X (b)IH
(a)(4) and (b) above also constitute connected transactions or 2 BRI T 52 B O A b T R RIS 14 A TE
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of It 528 2 B 22 g el s A B 8 2R ) -

the Listing Rules.
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31 December 2014

L RSV ESE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45, FRFEFEN Z 4 TR
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments AR R > AR 2 &/ T A
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: ZHEEI T -
2014 T PUAE
Group
A
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or loss for-sale
- held for Loans and financial
Financial assets i Al trading  receivables assets Total
iR i
AR
BHZ At
B — 56 9)'d w4t B
FER G FEWGRIE AR A At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt TF#oT Tt T
Loans to joint ventures m— M E&E ARtz
(note 28) B (FE28) - 2,741,501 - 2,741,501
Other long term assets (note 24) HARHIEE (ffiE24) - 12,491 - 12,491
Available-for-sale investments  AJ {8 & - - 140,471 140,471
Trade receivables JRE IRk - 714,764 - 714,764
Deposits and other receivables ] 4 & HoAth fE i 5 IE
(note 28) (Ff$5E28) - 700,887 - 700,887
Equity investments at fair value % {845 4%\ R EFH
through profit or loss ZIRRERLE 3,116 - - 3,116
Pledged deposits CHHIAE R - 31,228 - 31,228
Restricted cash 3 FR 1  4 - 1,250,679 - 1,250,679
Cash and cash equivalents & KBl &5 EY - 8,375,476 - 8,375,476
3,116 13,827,026 140,471 13,970,613
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities LR EE at amortised cost Total
FRUR Y A
Z AR Bt
HK$°000 HK$000
T AR
Trade payables JEAT BR R 4,314,398 4,314,398
Other payables (note 33) HABREATFRIH (F3E33) 5,157,708 5,157,708
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings #| 5 $R17 S HoAh &5 29,398,818 29,398,818
Due to the immediate holding company  MEA} #2244 2 7] A 374,379 374,379
Due to the ultimate holding company JREAST B 4822 B ) 5 0E 4,467,437 4,467,437
Loans from associates (note 33) W s w B (B 5E33) 296,058 296,058
44,008,798 44,008,798
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(CONTINUED)

31 December 2014

U B

45. ERERGHON 2 R TR (4)

2013 T4
Group
A4k E
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or loss for-sale
- held for Loans and financial
Financial assets i Al E trading  receivables assets Total
7R A
N o fd
w2 ARl
B — B A
FHERL 5 FEWCEIE 2 &Rl RET
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
T T T T T T TH#IT
Loans to a joint venture fe] — ] 5 8 28 F 4R A3
(note 28) AR ([t sE28) = 3,248,844 = 3,248,844
Other long term assets (note 24) HARHIEE (Fffrt24) = 12,719 = 12,719
Available-for-sale investments  AJ ft i} 85 2 & = = 39,790 39,790
Trade receivables JE AL B = 416,122 = 416,122
Deposits and other receivables  #] 4 & HAth & it 2 IE
(note 28) (B 5E28) = 731,484 = 731,484
Equity investments at fair value BB AEFTE
through profit or loss Z IR 11,011 - - 11,011
Pledged deposits E AR 2K - 30,871 = 30,871
Restricted cash % PR 1 B 4 = 913,383 = 913,383
Cash and cash equivalents B4 R Bl 448 Y) = 6,534,049 = 6,534,049
11,011 11,887,472 39,790 11,938,273
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities Gl B g at amortised cost Total
F e 68 A T
2 xRl A i
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T IC
Trade payables JREAST R 1,028,975 1,028,975
Other payables (note 33) oA E AT R IE (B 5E33) 2,710,419 2,710,419
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 7l 5 8217 K HoAth £ 45 24,289,373 24,289,373
Due to the immediate holding company  FEA] B 4 2 7] A 31,446 31,446
Due to the ultimate holding company JREAST 5 8428 B W) R JE 5,119,292 5,119,292
Loans from associates (note 33) Wi 8wl Bk (B E33) 278,649 278,649
33,458,154 33,458,154
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45, WRERGI <&@ TR ()
(CONTINUED)
Company
LY
2014 2013
Rl e
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
fair value fair value
through Available- through Available-
profit or loss for-sale profit or loss for-sale
-heldfor ~ Loans and financial -heldfor  Loans and financial
trading  receivables assets Total trading  receivables assets Total
EiasE EdRa
YN YNNI
[iR&t AL
B - Sk WitEz K- f3k mithEz
Financial assets SREE MRS Bl ERERE S BRSO BIGE  SHERE At

HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 | HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
T T Tén  TEx | T @ Tkr  fEx Tix

Available-for-sale investments it e - - - - - - 1,720 1,720
Equity investments at fai value BRRGEANM

through profit or loss HEZ RS E 3116 - - 3116 1,011 - - 11,011
Deposits and other receivables HES LI E

(note 28) (}f7E28) - 2345 - 2345 - 2,176 - 2,176
Due from subsidiaries e 2 7l 5 - 8889750 - 8889750 - 7088199 - 768199
Cash and cash equivalents Ra ks EN - 1560202 - 1560212 - 9T - 9L

3116 10,452,307 - 10455423 11,011 8,181,632 1720 8,194,363
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(CONTINUED)

31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

45. ERERGHON 2 R TR (4)

Company
ATl
2014 2013
L e
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
Financial liabilities B cost Total cost Total
BAFHZ AR 2
=L Bt | emAR HEt
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
TH#IT TH#IT THIT THIT
Loans from associates (note 33) W4/ &) &3k (K 5E33) 29,667 29,667 30,208 30,208
Interest-bearing bank and other 7l 5 #47 & HiAth
borrowings gy 12,442,679 12,442,679 | 8,255476 8,255,476
Due to the ultimate holding JREAST foe #e A7 e 5 )
company HIE 23,503 23,503 159,905 159,905
Due to the immediate holding M/ B 4244 /A
company A 323,208 323,208 = =
Due to subsidiaries JREAST BB 2 =] 3 IH 303,989 303,989 234,199 234,199
13,123,046 13,123,046 8,679,788 8,679,788
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46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 46. Al THZ A SRAE KA SAEE R
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Y
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the Company’s PN Y1 )N 7 NN Pt = Rl TR 4
financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that N S AE (B TAT B BN Fp (B Rk L AR 3 35 15
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: Ah) I
Group A
Carrying amounts Fair values
MR T A RME
2014 2013 2014 2013
SR | SE S| SR | SE S
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T THIT T-#IC T T
Financial assets 4 il
Pledged deposits — non-current B & 777K
portion — JE B HAHR A - 17,277 - 17,277
Other long term assets Hoth = & 12,491 12,719 12,491 12,719
Available-for-sale investments  AJ fit 2 & 140,471 39,790 140,471 39,790
Equity investments at fair value #5315 4 #% /8 7O (H
through profit or loss T AR R 3,116 11,011 3,116 11,011
156,078 80,797 156,078 80,797
Financial liabilities S A fE
Interest-bearing bank and FhEERAT
other borrowings oA 1 &
- non-current portion — JE B HAES o 17,341,508 | 12,167,504 | 17,341,508 | 12,167,504
Due to the immediate holding M/} B2 4 i
company NI L €|
- non-current portion — JE RIS 4 323,208 = 323,208 =
Due to the ultimate holding JRE AT Fo A4 e
company NGIE/eL|
- non-current portion — JEEPHAER A 1,412,597 | 1,221,024 | 1,412,597 1,221,024
19,077,313 13,388,528 19,077,313 13,388,528
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46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

31 December 2014
TR PEFZH =

46. E T HZ A RMERA RIEEHR

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 2R ()
Company AT
Carrying amounts Fair values
iR T A RAE
2014 2013 2014 2013
R g | DF D | DR Ng | D=4
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#IT THTT T#IT TH#TT
Financial assets 4 A A
Equity investments at fair value #ZE##18 #5 %/ o (H
through profit or loss w2 IR 3,116 11,011 3,116 11,011
Available-for-sale investments 7] {it Hi & 4% & - 1,720 - 1,720
3,116 12,731 3,116 12,731
Financial liabilities A=K
Interest-bearing bank and FHEERAT &
other borrowings HoA 15 £
- non-current portion — JE B4 9,660,225 4,436,658 9,660,225 4,436,658
Due to the immediate holding M+ B 3 2 1
company NGIE QL
- non-current portion — JE B HAHR A 323,208 = 323,208 =
9,983,433 4,436,658 9,983,433 4,436,658

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, short term pledged deposits, trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, amounts due from/to
subsidiaries, trade payables, other payables, an amount due to the
immediate holding company and an amount due to the ultimate
holding company approximated to their respective carrying amounts

largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

EHLREC R - BlE KBS EY - 2
B ] B 4 ~ A AT AR R IR
AR B H A e R - R
A5F B > ) RKOE ~ REAT MR~ oAt AR A
ARIA ~ AT B B P R B A e
BB A R 2 A A B 20
T ELAR A > 22 PR i 5 T HL A 30T A 3
1 o
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46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance department
reports directly to the chief financial officer and the audit committee.
At each reporting date, the finance department analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
chief financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed

with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual financial

reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or

liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to

estimate the fair values:

The fair values of non-current portion of pledged deposits, other long
term assets, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and non-
current portion of an amount due to the ultimate holding company
have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk

for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2014

was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market

prices.

46.

31 December 2014
= S

Sl TR Z A Sl B A SfE S5
2R (8D

% 45 ) LA 5 A 2 O B A 5
1 5 < b TR Ao B 2 O R AR
F o BTS2 B 0 A T R B I B A
AEHE o ARG B MBS
A 4l L 22 A0 {58 ) A A 0 o
JH B S A < 518 ol B A A
Jo At o ff (BRI 5 B % B
GAFAE R o AF P R AR B RS e
-

e A 5 (R 25 4 1A 2
I (A0 SR 0 R A 2 I 0 B
52 5% S A SRR T B S HANE B
SRR 5197 5 % (6 6 A A A 1
it

TR 2 BT AY ~ AR E
FE R RERAT B A B R A B A 4
FBe 2 Rk 2 JF RS 20 2 28 Se{E 4R
B2 4F THARUG K ~ £ BB L0 %
B 1 ik [H] 2 BLAT M) A S5 R R A B 2 O
BETIBE AN o R T —0E A+
“AZt—H - AEMA SR BRI R
A £ 8 2 AN A B B A ST A
% o

i AR B 2 AR T AR T A A
i E
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46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 46. S TRZARMERARMAFH
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) Bt ()
Fair value hierarchy AV S
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TR AL &M T EZ A ARERE
the Group’s financial instruments: SRR
Assets measured at fair value: VAR 22 B :
Group A A1
As at 31 December 2014 W oEF—UE+—"H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

R DT MR 2 A et 2

Quoted

prices  Significant  Significant

in active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

T R R8I HRAH

W2 KEWAE BEWAE
(58—Jd) (5B =Jd) (SE=)4) At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T#T

Available-for-sale investments ] fit {85 % & 140,471 - - 140,471
Equity investments at fair value #5315 47 #% 28 70 (H
through profit or loss S R 3,116 - - 3,116

143,587 - - 143,587
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46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 46. 4fh TR Z A S A S AR5 AR
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 2 (48)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) VAR A2 & : (4)
Group A A4
As at 31 December 2013 NEE—=4£1+=H=1+—H

Fair value measurement using

R T BUE 2 A RERE

Quoted

prices  Significant  Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

A T CipN) HRAH

WG WE  BEmAE BEEAE
(E—JE) (R—J&) (R=J&) st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
Tt Tt T#TT Tt

Available-for-sale investments ] fit {85 % & 27,037 = 12,753 39,790
Equity investments at fair value #7545 4 ¥ /8 O (HF 5
through profit or loss 2 EHERE 11,011 - - 11,011

38,048 - 12,753 50,801
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46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Liabilities measured at fair value:
Company and Group
As at 31 December 2014

31 December 2014
AL =

46. &M THZ A RE A REFH
2R (A7)
URRAd R Z A -
AT B AL
REF—NE+ZA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

R DT MR 2 A et 2

Quoted
prices

in active
markets
(Level 1)
TG R T
Z i
(58 —J)
HK$°000
T

Significant  Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
R B HRAH]
WAL B AE
(58 ) (=) At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T#T

Due to the immediate holding  JE{-| B 2%

company UNSIE e
- non-current portion — FERNEAER 75

323,208 - 323,208

The Company and Group did not have any financial liabilities

measured at fair value as at 31 December 2013.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements

between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for

both financial assets and financial liabilities (2013: Nil).

RoF—ZE A=+ —0 AR
FES N P ILE YN e

(e

AN o T < SR — B
TS 2 TSl AT o S e R R >
HEAT 58 = S fE w2 e Sl A\
(T =4 fE) o
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46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

Group
As at 31 December 2014

31 December 2014

. Ve

46. &R T HZ A R R e ld % %
kg (4)
CHEAREZ EE :

AL

RoF e A=A

Fair value measurement using

R DT MR 2 A et 2

Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AR EORATBER HRAH]
Y 2 B fH WA BUEEEAE
(SE—J) (EJE) (BE=T8) At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
T TH#oT R T
Other long term assets HAth = ) & = - 11,696 - 11,696
As at 31 December 2013 RE-F—=Z2F+_H=1+—H
Fair value measurement using
R T BUE 2 A RER &
Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RIERT ERABE O ERAW
% 2 B WA BUEEEAE
(Sh—J&) (K JE) (B=J8) et
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#E T T#IC T T T#E T
Pledged deposits — non-current EL K417 2K
portion — JEBPHAER A = 17,277 = 17,277
Other long term assets HAth =10 5 e - 11,999 - 11,999
= 29,276 = 29,276
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46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

Group
As at 31 December 2014

31 December 2014

. Ve

46. E T HZ A RMERA RIEEHR

ZHE (8
CHREAREZ AL -
A4

HoF—-lE+ZA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

PR DT MR A it 2

Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
PGS EARWBE EAAW
Z WA B A
(%—)E) (5B =J&) ((B=J8) At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#C T¥#T T#C T#C
Interest-bearing bank and FhEERAT K
other borrowings HAth g B
- non-current portion — B ER ) - 17,341,508 - 17,341,508
Due to the ultimate holding JRE S} 3 8475 ik
company NGIE @
- non-current portion — JERPHAF A - 1,412,597 - 1,412,597
- 18,754,105 - 18,754,105
As at 31 December 2013 R-ZF—-=#+"_HA=t—H
Fair value measurement using
R TR 2 A RER &
Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
GRS ERMBE O ERAE
ZHRAE WAE  BEEAM
(F—J&) (55 /&) ((H=J8) R
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#E T T#sIC T T T T
Interest-bearing bank and R R ERAT &
other borrowings HoAh 15 &5
- non-current portion — JE R EAER 43 = 12,167,504 = 12,167,504
Due to the ultimate holding JRE A B 4 P2 M
company NGIE QL
- non-current portion — JF B HAER 43 = 1,221,024 = 1,221,024
= 13,388,528 = 13,388,528
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S B A M

46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: (continued)
Company
As at 31 December 2014

31 December 2014

. Ve

46. E T HZ A RMERA RIEEHR
Zuk (4)
CHEAREZ AR (4)

AT

HoF—-lE+ZA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

R DT MR 2 A et 2

Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active ~ observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ST AR TONEIE E2S HAAH
Z W WAE B A
(58—J&) (SE=Jd) ((E=)4) At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T#T
Interest-bearing bank and wHEERAT %
other borrowings HAtbfs &
- non-current portion — JE B HAHR A - 12,442,679 - 12,442,679
As at 31 December 2013 RF—=%1+"_H=1+—H
Fair value measurement using
AT EdR 2~ Al &
Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active ~ observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
GRS BRI HRAT]
Z A fE WAE  BiEEAE
(% —&) (B (ZB=Jg) F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
THT THT T T
Interest-bearing bank and FhEERAT K
other borrowings oA 15 £
- non-current portion — JF BPHAER 43 - 4,436,658 - 4,436,658
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

31 December 2014
= S

47. VA KRS Bz H A SR

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and equity
investments. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade

payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for

managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The interest rate risk of the Group is mainly due to the interest rate
fluctuations of its bank borrowings. Interest on these bank borrowings

is computed based on market rates.

The Group will constantly assess the interest rate risk it encounters to
decide whether it is required to hedge against the possible interest rate

risk that may arise.

On 31 December 2014, if the interest rate of bank borrowings had
increased/decreased by 0.5% and all other factors remained unchanged,
the profit after tax for the year of the Group and the Company
would have decreased/increased by approximately HK$66,617,925
(2013: HK$61,004,000) and HK$54,412,335 (2013: HK$36,721,000),

respectively.

Foreign currency risk

Most of the operating income of the Group’s business is in RMB and
the Group’s assets held and all of the committed borrowings of the
Group are mainly denominated in RMB, except for certain USS$-
denominated bank loans held by the Company.

A AR B 2 A T TR R RAT &
FOA 8 £ - B4 T B i 5 (1) LA I e e
B o WFEM TR EZETIAA
ERHEHEEEE - AEEMAZEE
< Pl 7 R - N EL B 3
B 2 MEWSUIR AR B B A R K

A A 2 4 i TR AR 2 R B
AR JE B > SME B - 5 BB E
e L e e e J e o A I B
R A R 2 A THBOR - BER AT -

ES:N

AR [ ) A1) 3 i 2 PR O GRAT 8 £ 2
) 22 g T 1 2 A o B2 SESRAT RS RS
TIRRAETT S H| 35

S T R A A T8 ) 1 M) R g L
PR T 2 i AT B AR Y T REF
JEU o

AR -EFTZH =1 —H > i1
MR Tt F F0.5% o 1 BT A
HoA PR R PR FFAR AR - RIA SR [ S AR 8 W)
AR B R B AR U A g A Bl kD
BN #966,617,925% 76 (— F — =4 ¢
61,004,000 J0) }454,412,335%% oG (—
F— =4 1 36,721,000470) °

A1 M

A A T S 1 O A 3 AR i A A N R
o BARLE T EERAELIMIA D
AR R £ NRWESIE - T
AN TR 2 LA SR TORTHE B9 SR AT BERBR
5o
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

31 December 2014
= S

47. WK P2 H B R BOR ()

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

On 31 December 2014, if HK$ had appreciated/depreciated by 1%
against RMB and all other factors remained unchanged, the profit after
tax for the year of the Group and the Company could have increased/
decreased by HK$6,930,000 (2013: HK$1,833,000). The change is
mainly due to the net value changes of the deposits denominated in
HKS$ held by the PRC subsidiaries.

On 31 December 2014, if HK$ had appreciated/depreciated by 1%
against US$ and all other factors remained unchanged, the profit after
tax for the year of the Group and the Company could have increased/
decreased by HK$45,133,000 (2013: HK$40,158,000). The change is
mainly due to the net value changes of the exchange gains in US$-
denominated bank loans held by the Company.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which comprise cash
and cash equivalents, available-for-sale financial assets, trade and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments. The
Company is also exposed to credit risk through the granting of
financial guarantees, further details of which are disclosed in note 43(i)

to the financial statements.

To manage the risk, deposits are mainly placed with licensing banks
which are all high credit quality financial institutions. The Group
trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties for the
sales of goods. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to buyers with appropriate financial strength and appropriate
percentage of down payments. The Group would not release the
property ownership certificates to the buyers before the buyers fully
settle the payment. It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivable to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties and

customers.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 27 to the

financial statements.

A I IR B (48
AZE—EFZH=+—H > fiHs
TGS N R THE B2 (E1% - 1T A
by B 3R PR A 28 o Rl AR AR [ 2 AR A F]
A R B AR T AR B ek b
6,930,000%5 76 (— & — = 4F : 1,833,000
W TT) o A ) 3 B R R B Y A F
F56 2 DA T RTHE 1Y T 4 2 WHE 2 B BT
£

WoE—ET+ZA=ZT—H > i
oG ¥ X u FHE B2 EH1% 0 i Br A H
il PR 2R DR e S A . HI A AR B K AR A
Tl 2 AR AR BE BR B AR R R 6 8
W 045,133,000% JC (= F — = 4
40,158,000%5 70) ° & B - B2l R A A
Al REA 2 DASE TORTE B SRAT B3R 2 B 5,
Wi ik 2 (BB T T B o

o B B
AEMZ EMEE (AERE KRB &%
By - it EZ EMEE - BRE S
A RE R IR) 2 A5 BB AR A
22 5 T4 KA K - T AT REHE R 2 e
RS A M TR 2R (H - A2 IR
DRI 5 3k Jop 5 468 OR 1 i 38 £ B B > A
B HE — 2 S T A R MY 43 (1) 4

=

& o

2 BB o A G BRI A
MEERAT - B R RERER 2 SR
W o ARSI R BB 25 =07
HEAT T A 2 By o AS 4R B AT BUK Tl
PR 1 EL A A T ) B SRR
HEMMRZ BARELEHE - EHRRE
BOE AT BT - AR R & ) B 5
FERE o AR M IR E A A B AR
DA £ DR I PR A6 F It Wi o] 2 39 (55 o
B 7GR T R S B A 4 RN 22 B A B
Sy BT W (] = BE o DURE CRATEAS AT i (]
SRR R A S (EL R 1 o AR SR 1S
A Ao E R 4 rP A B o T B T 3 1
B HEI Z 45T RES -

A7 I B WS B2 % MR K B E A 2 A A T M
gt 22 JFC At ORI P S Sk 2 A 27 1A 4

==

e o
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises when the Group is unable to meet its current
liabilities that fall due. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
short and long term bank loans. Through maintaining a reasonable
proportion in its asset and liability structure, the Group is able to meet

its ongoing financial needs.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of

31 December 2014

U B

47. W KA P2 H B B BOR ()

AR T OR R R HC B0 ) B
JJE A R RSB AR 4R B T B R
A R ARIARAT B MERr B S
A B G 3 Vo P o R R
AR AE & L 1] - A SE 18 v 3 2

HAF MBS -

AR 2 5 P R R R 2 21

the reporting period is as follows: WA :
Group AL
2014
e 3
Within One to Two to Over
On demand one year two years three years  three years Total
KEk —HER —E4 WEZE  REEE o
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
i T Tix i T i
Interest-bearing bank and Figsti G
other borrowings HihfE & 8,467 11,993,650 5,459,022 1902,826 11393719 30,757,684
Trade payables JEfHHEZ 140,464 4,265,541 - - - 4,406,005
Other payables (note 33) HARER 08 (f5E33) - 5,157,708 - - - 5,157,708
Due to the immediate holding company FERT EH:FE R/ 7l HUR 51,171 - - 394,585 - 445,756
Due to the ultimate holding company  REFT A R:/A R HUR 2,094,200 996,526 1,484,278 - - 4,575,004
Loans from associates (note 33) Boa A Al B (E33) 296,058 - - - - 296,058
Total Mt 2,590,360 22,413,425 6,943,300 2,297,411 11,393,719 45,638,215
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

31 December 2014
. e

S5 R B4 Bz H Y SR (4)

Liquidity risk (continued) Bk B ()
Group AL
2013
“E-CF
Within One to Two to Over
On demand one year two years three years  three years Total
Rk —4ERN — R WEZF = a5t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T i i i i i
Interest-bearing bank and HEMTR
other borrowings /Eﬁﬂ{ £ 8,467 13,356,947 6,630,978 3,030,319 3,430,899 26,457,610
Trade payables T 2 > 1,028,975 = > = 1,028,975
Other payables (note 33) /ﬁwﬁﬁ SR (Mf:33) - 2710419 = = - 2710419
Due to the immediate holding company FEFT EHerERe/A FlHUR 31,446 = = > = 31,446
Due to the ultimate holding company  RERTRAFER/A R HUR 282,668 4,002,204 1,311,685 = = 5,596,557
Loans from associates (note 33) Bs A & (Jfeks3) 278,649 = = = = 278,649
Total Mt 601,230 21,098,545 7,942,663 3,030,319 3,430,899 36,103,656

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at the end

of the reporting period is as follows:

A A 2 4 A AR i SR 2 B 15
PR

Company AN ]
2014
o112
Within One to Two to Over
On demand one year two years three years  three years Total
KTk —4ER —E4 WE=E W= gt
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000
T T T Tl T T
Interest-bearing bank and it ST R
other borrowings Hibfess - 837366 302,759 - 9TIE 1717978
Due to the immediate holding company FEFT EHEFER:/A 7 HUR - - - 394,585 - 394,585
Loans from associates s\l & 29,667 - - - - 29,667
Due to the ultimate holding company (] i &M A FFUH 23,503 - - - - 23,503
Due to subsidiaries T B A A R 303,989 - - - - 303,989
Total a3t 357,159 2,837,366 302,759 394,585 9,577,853 13,469,722
Guarantees given to banks for credit  Z M /A AV IER 5 &
facilities granted to subsidiaries TSRS Z4ER
(note 43(i)) (B sE43(1)) - 1,436,465 484,276 - - 1,920,741
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (continued)

31 December 2014
ZE—NETFZA=Z+—H

47. WK P2 H B R BOR ()

BB (5]

Company AATH]
2013
—“EF-=F
Within One to Two to Over
On demand one year two years three years  three years Total
HER —ER —EWE WE=F A=A &t
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T T T Tt T T
Interest-bearing bank and At BIRITR
other borrowings Hibfes - 3139 2691473 346592 1635779 8,655,238
Loans from associates B\ Al B 30,208 - - - - 30,208
Due to the ultimate holding company JE A F A A 7] R 159,905 - - - - 159,905
Due to subsidiaries TERT I A 7 308 234,199 - - - - 234,199
Total o 424312 3,981,394 2,691,473 346,592 1,635,779 9,079,550
Guarantees given to banks for credit  FMf /A AR (5 &
facilities granted to subsidiaries R IE Z
(note 43() (H430) - - - 1,895,004 S 1,895,004
Equity price risk B A

The equity price risk of the Group mainly arises from the changes
in market prices for held-for-trading equity investments. The book
values of this type of financial assets held by the Group are recognised
according to market quotes as at the end of the reporting period.

On 31 December 2014, if the price of listed equity securities held by the
Group had increased/decreased by 10%, and all other factors remained
unchanged and excluding tax items, the book values of the listed
equity securities of the Group and the Company would have increased/
decreased by HK$311,632 (2013: HK$1,101,000) and HK$311,362
(2013: HK$1,101,000), respectively.

Capital management

The objectives of the Group’s capital management policy are to ensure
the financing capabilities of the Company in running its operation on a
going concern basis, to maintain an optimal capital structure, to reduce
capital cost and to maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages and adjusts its capital structure appropriately
according to the specific features of the risks of its assets and the
changes in various economic conditions. Through adjustments
in dividend distribution, injections and repayments of capital by
shareholders or issuance of new shares, the Group is able to maintain
an optimal capital structure of the Company.

A AR T 2 AR e S Ak | A 3 B Pl 4%
B W {EEE - R AEESA 2 ERE
TEE: 22 R A L 7 AR 58 T S S0 AR 2 i 35 i £ i

RoFE—UESH=+—H > WAL
2 LT ReATE 2 B BT k0%
i i A At R 3R Y R 8 CR B BLIE) >
R £ [ Ko AR s m) 2 bl AR 28 2 2 AR T (B
1oy Bl 311,632 00 (L E— =
AF 1 1,101,000% J6) K&311,3625 o6 (— & —
=4F 11,101,000 0) ©

BACE B

AEEEAEHESE 2 HEREA X R Z
il T B 7 L R A0 i 4 A0 A A R R A 2E T
St B 500 A5 R AL 19 AN SN - D A A
Fef R (R AL -

AAE B ARG B B B 2 R R A
REIRYL T B 2 5 ) 30 - i 36 JFL T A ZE
AT E B o BRI B IR - BOR
T8 R ARR B SEATR I > AN SR R4 i
AT 2 EA R BEAL AT
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47.

48.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by equity attributable to owners of the parent. The Group’s
policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. Net debt
is interest-bearing bank and other borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits and restricted cash. The gearing ratios as

at the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

31 December 2014
AL =

47. WK P2 H B R BOR ()

BAGT B (H])

AL E G EA A R (R AR
BARIGEA NREAG A B A o
RS 2 BUR TSI EA AR RMER L&
HKF- o AR S RAT R A B
WL KB EFEY - SRR
FRAIBLE o R IR 2 EA A E 0

T
Group
N
2014 2013
e U142 ZE AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHIL FisoT
Interest-bearing bank and other AT EERAT & HoAth
borrowings (note 31) &8 (Ff5E31) 29,398,818 24,289,373
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W BlE R & EY
(note 30) ([f$5E30) (8,375,476) (6,534,049)
Pledged deposits - non-current portion E AR — JE RIS 4
(note 30) (M 5E30) - (17,277)
Pledged deposits — current portion CHEHAE R — REHATR 7
(note 30) ([t 5E30) (31,228) (13,594)
Restricted cash (note 30) Z BRI 4 (B EE30) (1,250,679) (913,383)
Net loans TR 19,741,435 16,811,070
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 7/ F] AT A MEAGHE £ 30,495,860 25,337,811
Gearing ratio BER 65% 66%

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 26 March 2015.

48. it R

MBHRRC R —F - HE=A "+ H

T e AR T2 o
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Schedule of Major Properties
FERY L

Group I - Property interest held by the Company under development and for future development

BB — AN FFARE T RA T AR R Y

Project/Property Address Type Interest Land Area  Planned GFA Expected
to the (sq.m.) (sqm.)  Completion

Company Year
AT AR BB R it L

HH AR Husik TR s CFIk) (CFJik) L3 g

Property interest held for future development

Gk =& E S b

Shumyip Zhongcheng Shenzhen, Guangdong ~ Complex 100% 39,157 363,532 2018

BRI SR G e

Gaobangshan Garden Phase 1 Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 38,994 135,893 2017

TRERBE LR IE R 1 TR B M EE

Gaobangshan Garden Phase 2 Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 114,247 339,557 2020

TR L 1R 1E B2 TR E M T (]

Shumyip City Phase 3.2 Shunde, Guangdong Res. 100% 38,898 105,478 2017

IEFEYRSE 3. 2001 B SR N EE

Ruicheng Phase 2.2 Changsha, Hunan Res. 80% 26,506 73,575 2017

A 2.2 R E R EE

Ruicheng Phase 3 Changsha, Hunan Res. 80% 57,140 141,105 2019

HREE R E R e

Shumyip Xihui Changsha, Hunan Res. 80% 27,732 97,417 2018

e iEaReR =2l EE

Garden Hill (1) Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 86,162 166,000 No Plans/

SHIEY L4 b R E M £ KA
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Schedule of Major Properties

FERY L

Group I - Property interest held by the Company under development and for future development

BB — AN FFARE T RA T AR R Y

Project/Property Address Type Interest Land Area  Planned GFA Expected
to the (sq.m.) (sqm.)  Completion

Company Year
AT AR BB R it L

HH AR Hoht FHEE s CFIk) (CFJik) o

Garden Hill Phase 3.2 Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 52,146 207,656 2019

Fili3.24 BORE BT e

Shumyip Garden Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 72,922 297,505 2018

3 B SR M (]

Shumyip Garden South Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 27,416 74,898 2017

RETCE (Rl &SRB B M EE

Taifu Square Phase 2-4 Shenzhen, Guangdong Ind. & Com. 95.77% 35,076 264,300 2016-2022

RE 5 2-4 R TRYITH ERIAR

Qingshuihe Auto Park Phase 3 Shenzhen, Guangdong Ind. & Com. 100% 6,553 33,930 2017

KT YB3 JRA RN BE/ G5

Qingshuihe Auto Park Phase 4 Shenzhen, Guangdong ~ Ind. & Com. 100% 8,727 33,800 2018

KT A0 E S 4 R TR B¥/ e

Wuhan Bio Valley Project Wuhan, Hubei Ind. & Com. 75.05% 347,000 816,653 2016-2018

FRRELMBIRA WL R L= Ve 1)

Yihu Rose Bay Phase 2-4 Chengdu, Sichuan Res. 75.05% 76,000 383,000 2016

fa b BB g4 V)11 & R T FE
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Schedule of Major Properties

FERY L

Group I - Property interest held by the Company under development and for future development

BB — AN FFARE T RA T AR R Y

Project/Property Address Type Interest Land Area  Planned GFA Expected
to the (sq.m.) (sqm.)  Completion

Company Year
AT AR BB R it L

HH AR Hoht FHEE s CFIk) (CFJik) o

Property interest held under development

ESEEE LS B

Maanshan Shumyip Phase 1.2 Ma’anshan, Anhui Res. 100% 78,177 223,959 2015

LSLAIEE = o i | LRE B Hlh EE

Maanshan Shumyip Phase 3.1 Maanshan, Anhui Res. 100% 49,823 126,654 2015

GEAINE S i il LRAE B Bl e

Changzhou Shumyip Phase 2 Changzhou, Jiangsu Res. 100% 32,640 125,939 2017

MR T2 TLRRA WM FE

Shumyip City Phase 3.1A Shunde, Guangdong Res. 100% 71,273 165,671 2015

NEFE VRSN, 1A BRI e

Shumyip City Phase 3.1B Shunde, Guangdong Res. 100% 71,273 115,383 2016

IE ¥R 3€ %31 41B B SR M FE

Saina Bay Belle Riviere Phase 1 Heyuan, Guangdong Res. 100% 22,300 100,927 2015

EMER R 1 TR T I e

Jinshazhou Project Phase 2 Guangzhou, Guangdong ~ Res. 100% 41,348 164,712 2015

EUWIEH 2 TR M T FE

Ruicheng Phase 2.1 Changsha, Hunan Res. 80% 57,497 123,778 2016

A 2.1 R E R tEE

Wanlin Lake Phase 8.3 & 8.4 Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 58,949 187,179 2015

H 8.3 K841 FORE BT e

Garden Hill Phase 3.11a Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 18,972 75,549 2015

Fil3. 1 —12A B BT EE

Garden Hill Phase 3.1Ib Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 12,784 50,907 2016

3.1~ 1B R E M T (]
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Schedule of Major Properties

FERY L

Group I - Property interest held by the Company under development and for future development

B — AN FAFARET LA R RER YR

Project/Property Address Type Interest Land Area  Planned GFA Expected
to the (sq.m.) (sqm.)  Completion
Company Year
AT AR SRR it L
HH AR Husik TR s CFIk) (CFJik) L3 g
Garden Hill Phase 3.111I Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 33,020 131,493 2016
RRIIERE (it BORE M T fEE
Splendid City Phase 2.2 Jiangyan, Jiangsu Res. 100% 39,787 100,807 2016
Sl 2.2 R 3E ST £
Central Park Life Phase 1.1 Taizhou, Jiangsu Res. 100% 39,814 153,802 2016
(= TV ARY i ILERERM T £
Shenyang Wuai Bus Station Project Shenyang, Liaoning Complex 80.35% 16,040 59,889 2015
b L% R OEE BB R e
Wuhan Nanhu Rose Bay Phase 21T (8-9#) Wuhan, Hubei Res. 75.05% 10,560 29,945 2014
B A O 2 I (8-9%) LA R e
Guanlan Rose Garden Shenzhen, Guangdong ~ Res. 38.28% 26,695 154,830 2015
RER VBN SR TR R £
Taifu Square Phase 1 Shenzhen, Guangdong ~ Complex 95.77% 18,600 167,199 2017
RE R BRA I e
Chegongmiao Redevelopment Project Phase 1 Shenzhen, Guangdong ~ Complex 75.05% 7,944 120,000 2017
BN RTEHIR 1 JR SR TR e
Chaohu Royal Spring North Phase 1.1 Shenzhen, Guangdong ~ Res. 100% 13,527 9,397 2015
RWALRS BRI TSR A YN EE
Upper Hills South Shenzhen, Guangdong Complex 100% 96,266 649,760 2017
TR B (Rl R A I A
Tanglang City Shenzhen, Guangdong ~ Complex 50% 43,585 261,510 2015
b Bk BRA I e
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Schedule of Major Properties

FERY L

Group II - Property interest held by the Company for sales

55— AN FFA RS Z Y

Interest to TGFA  Completion

Property Address Use the Company (sq.m.) Date
AT T

3k o hk ik AT Bt i AR CEIk)  HRAH
Purple Kylin Hill Shenzhen, Guangdong Res. 100% 4,154.51 2011
FRRER R A I £
Shum Yip City Phase 1 & 2 Shunde, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 54,739.52 2012
ML B TR e FEREE
Noble Times Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 35,274.62 2012
B R A R FEREE
Royal Garden Shenzhen, Guangdong Res. 100% 1,759.41 2012
e BRI ia
Zhongxin Science & Technology Building ~ Shenzhen, Guangdong Off. 100% 11,050.91 2001
PEPBKE R A I WnE
Rui Cheng Phase 1 Changsha City, Hunan Res. 80% 12,515.77 2012
A1 W B R e
Wanlin Lake Huizhou, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 38,239.84 2008-2011
H TR A M FEREE
Garden Hill Huizhou, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 22,952.30 2012
Fili#5E FR A B T FRREE
Yundonghai (2) Sanshui, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 108,039.00 2012
TR JERE =K FEREE
Saina Bay Phase 1 Heyuan, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 30,674.61 2012
EE1H T SR I R FEREE
Euro-view Garden Phase 1 Dongguan, Guangdong Res. 100% 19,844.67 2012
i 5% R A1) R HSE €
Splendid City Phase 1 & 2.1 Taizhou, Jiangsu Res. 100% 46,019.31 2011-2014
SRR R 1 LEERM T iRz
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Schedule of Major Properties

FERY L

Group II - Property interest held by the Company for sales

5 — AR R R A ARG 2 A SRR

Interest to TGFA  Completion

Property Address Use the Company (sq.m.) Date
A T

/ES it ik R CFTik)  HRH B
Maanshan Shumyip Huafu Ma’anshan, Anhui Res. 99.58% 69,625.01 2013
LAIE 30 LRAE B E L EE
Changzhou Shumyip Huafu Changzhou, Jiangsu Res. 100% 24,802.97 2014
GPARCE = 3 TLRRE H M e
Shenyang Wuai Shengang Bus Station and ~ Shenyang, Liaoning Com. & Res. 80.35% 41,596.71 2011
Meibo Trading Centre
IR R R ) EEA L FRREE
KR 5L
Terra Building Shenzhen, Guangdong Ind. 75.05% 3,566.35 2012
RAKRE BRI T3
Nanhu Rose Bay Phase 1-3 Wauhan, Hubei Com. & Res. 75.05% 39,279.51 2012
R B 13 Wit R FEREE
Yihu Rose Garden Phase I-I Chengdu, Sichuan Com. & Res. 52.54% 44,290.71 2013
RAWIBCHAE 1 - 1 VU118 p A i FEREE
Tianan Long Garden Shenzhen Res. 37.53% 112.08 2008
REHEE GRYI T A EE
Tianan Panyu Phase 5-7 Panyu, Guangdong Ind. & Res. 33.77% 52,641.32  2009-2013
K% B5-7H) BREEE THREEE
Tianan Nanhai New Cyber-City Phase 5 Nanhai, Guangdong Ind. 33.77% 858.12 2013
R S 5 4 R A R T%
Tianan Changzhou Shangu Changzhou, Jiangsu Ind. & Res. 37.53% 141,578.57  2010-2012
EMRLH R TLHRE M T TEREE
Tian'an Jiangyin Cyber-City Phase 1 Jiangyin, Jiangsu Ind. 37.53% 19,312.65  2012-2013
PSINGS (A TR ETLRE T T3
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Schedule of Major Properties
FERY L

Group II - Property interest held by the Company for sales
SE — AR IR ARG 2 SR AR

Interest to TGFA  Completion

Property Address Use the Company (sq.m.) Date
A T

LUE S it ks AT Friti e aR CEIK)  ERH
Tianan Dongguan New Cyber-City Phase 2-4 Dongguan, Guangdong Ind. 29.27% 104,048.68 2013
REA R IR 2-4 1 R REE T3
Tian'an Chonggqing Cyber-City Phase 1 Chongqing Ind. 37.53% 185,828.30 2012
KA T U k1 B T3
Tian'an Longgang New Cyber-City Phase 3~ Shenzhen, Guangdong Ind. 37.53% 6,084.72 2012
R HE e B 3 00 R A R T
Tian'an Tianjin Cyber-City Phase 1 Xiqing, Tianjin Ind. 37.53% 98,488.18 2013
RER BRI R HEH R T¥%
Boxing Building Luohu, Shenzhen Off. 95.77% 19,941.03 2013
L2 NS RN h 2 91 MAZ
Jinzhou Building Suzhou, Jiangsu Off. 100% 1,865.00 1990’s
EWRE TLRRE M T WAZ
Coastal International Centre - Shop & Apt. Suzhou, Jiangsu Com. & Res. 100% 18,044.78 2009

IR L - FERAE TR BB T FEREE
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Schedule of Major Properties

FERY L

Group III - Property interest held by the Company for investment

= — AN AR AR UE 2 W AR

Interest to TGFA  Completion
Property Address Use the Company (sq.m.) Date
AT T
/ES Hohk ik AT Firiti e aR CETik)  HRHS
Shun Hing Square Intersection of Shennan Zhong Road,  Com., Off,, Res. 100% 18,367.11 1996
Jiefang Road and Baoan Road, Luohu,  and Carpark
Shenzhen
fRRES RN T 209 R o R OB S LERE V%
HEHLR EERFRS
Shum Yip Centre Shennan Zhong Road, Luohu, Shenzhen ~ Com. and Off. 100% 10,355.30 1997
HEH L RN 8300 I 1 o [EEE VN
Hua Min Building Renmin Nan Road, Luohu, Shenzhen ~ Com./Res., Com. 50% 5,853.09 1993
and Carpark
FERAE R T 2 I A B Bt /M BWER
G2k
Hua Min Building Renmin Nan Road, Luohu, Shenzhen ~ Com./Res. 100% 1,376.98 1993
ERKE YRIN 20389 N B i ./ fE
Shum Yip Building Wenjin Zhong Road, Luohu, Shenzhen ~ Off. 100% 3,931.39 1991
RERE RN 2191 SCS8 v WAZ
Noble Times Longgang, Shenzhen Com. 100% 16,427.63 2012
FR A PRI HE o 5 [LES
Chegongmiao Ind. Zone Futian, Shenzhen Com., Off,, 75.05% 133,877.98 1994-2012
Com./Res., Ind.,
Res. and Carpark
HARTEE RN 48 H [ CERE VN
/s T
EERERSG
No.10 Fuxing Nan Road Futian, Shenzhen Res. 75.05% 64.44 1990
TR ERIBE 1095 G 4R HH [ EE
Shenhua Science & Technology Park Meilin Road, Futian, Shenzhen Ind. 75.05% 15,341.58 1994
FERHR YN TH74R T A e T3
Shop in No.117 Fuxing Road Futian, Shenzhen Com. 100% 50.49 1993
TR 1179E R A PRI ] GRS
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Schedule of Major Properties

FERY L

Group III - Property interest held by the Company for investment

= — AN AR AR UE 2 W AR

Interest to TGFA  Completion
Property Address Use the Company (sq.m.) Date
A i
LUES it & A7 P il ik CEHXR)  HHRHM
Fuxing Building No.9 Fuxing Road, Futian, Shenzhen Com., Off.and 100% 1,593.20 1993
Carpark
fBEKE VR T A I A B 0% T > MAER
[FH L
Tianan Chegongmiao Ind. Zone Futian, Shenzhen Off,, Ind., Res. 37.53% 51,587.38  2000-2005
and Carpark
REHF N TR G A8 1 WA L%
£ R H
Tian'an Nanhai New Cyber-City Nanhai, Guangdong Ind. and Carpark 33.77% 35,282.24 2011
Phase 2
K& w i RS s ) ERE TR e
Tian'an Panyu New Cyber-City Panyu, Guangdong Ind., Res. and 33.77% 27,651.18 2011
Carpark
R4 B BT R BREE B % EER
(E2:2
Tian'an Longgang New Cyber-City Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. and Ind. 37.53% 27,437.78 2010-2011
R HE I S I JE A I GEJEES
Tianan Dongguan New Cyber-City Dongguan, Guangdong Ind. 29.27% 5,541.84 2012-2013
KA REE BT IR JRRERE T T
Tianan Jiangyin Cyber-City Jiangyin, Jiangsu Ind. 37.53% 4,296.60 2012
PRINES (T iR - pINT] I%
Tianan Changzhou Cyber-City Changzhou, Jiangsu Ind. 37.53% 2,107.16 2012
KA BT R TLRRE H M I%
Shumyip Garden Futian, Shenzhen Com. 100% 2,646.43 2002
AT R4 H [ [LES
Sungang Warehouse Zone Baoan North Road, Luohu, Shenzhen  Ind. and Com. 95.77% 88,858.21 1990-2002
ol [ VRIIH 58:80 I 8 L TR
Compostie Building on Taoyuan Road Baoan North Road, Luohu, Shenzhen ~ Com./Res. 95.77% 4,812.73 1991
PhURSE AR A HE PRI 5890 I B L [
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Schedule of Major Properties

FERY L

Group III - Property interest held by the Company for investment

= — AN AR AR UE 2 W AR

Interest to TGFA  Completion
Property Address Use the Company (sq.m.) Date
A T
VS ik itk A At AR (FIik) % B H
Dormitory Building on Taoyuan Road Baoan North Road, Luohu, Shenzhen ~ Com./Res. 95.77% 4,835.28 1988
MV % 18 5 1 VI 20 I L itk
Zijing Yuan Futian, Shenzhen Carpark 100% 7,257.00 1997
S ORI 4 [ FEG
Boxing Building Qingshuihe, Luohu, Shenzhen Com. 95.77% 12,332.20 2014
HEKE ORI A [ 35 7K T [EES
S.Z. Intl. Trust and Investment Corp. Intersection of Zhenxin Road and Off. 75.05% 1,316.54 1990
Building Shangbu Zhong Road, Futian, Shenzhen
DRI PR 15 FER G A A Al K DRI i A P D B WnE
AR
Shenyang Wuai Bus Station Shenyang, Liaoning Complex 80.35% 27,853.00 1994-1996
T I 1L % R EDT A
Shenyang Wuai Shengang Bus Station and ~ Shenyang, Liaoning Com. and 80.35% 47,442.46 2011
Meibo Trading Centre Carpark
BB LB REE S R EEAE T EE L v
EHE S0
Coastal International Centre Suzhou, Jiangsu Com. and Off. 100% 38,561.95 2009
T R TLERE BN T EEE 7N
Chengdu Jinxiu Workshop Chengdu, Sichuan Com. and 86.19% 30,084.89 2008
Carpark
JHb SR L5 79 )1 AR AR T3 X HL
UpperHills South Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Hotel & 100% 153,882.00 2015
Off.
R F IR R JE A BRI 3 5 &
WNE
Pengji Properties Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Res., Ind. 100% 268,551.16  1983-2005
and Carpark
| E=%7ES JE A BRI H¥ o fEE

TR Y
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Schedule of Major Properties

FERY L

Group IV - Property interest held by the Company for self-occupation

SO — AN TR AR B R 2 R

Interest to TGFA  Completion

Property Address Use the Company (sq.m.) Date
AT T

LIRS Hohk ik AT Fiit e aR CEJik)  HRHS
Song Ping Shan Estate Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 77.27 1996
I E RN 45 H [ EE
Tian Yuan New Village Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 103.23 1997
M5 R4 H [ EE
Chaohu Shumyip Hot Spring Chaohu, Anhui Hotel 100% 40,663.91 2012
GG R LRB W I
Jinhui Hujing Garden Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 325.66 2008
EEHREH TR E M E
Agile Garden Heyuan, Guangdong Res. 100% 383.56 2009
Tem S TE TR A TR i
Shumyip Coast Baoan, Shenzhen Com. 100% 3,728.75  2005-2008
TR A% WAL [LES
Shenfa Garden Luohu, Shenzhen Res. 100% 86.37 1994
AT RN h 2 01 EE
Cai Tian Ming Yuan Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 324.44 2001
KRA PRI 45 H [ EE
Block 611, Ba Gua Ling Futian, Shenzhen Ind. 100% 9,418.02 1985
3611 PRI T ) T
Factory in Xuexiang Village Longgang, Shenzhen Ind. 100% 2,168.10 2005
e U0 PRI HE o [ T%
Factory in Xia Shijia Village Baoan, Shenzhen Ind. 100% 5,088.10 1990’s
L G RN % T3
Block 8 Peng Sheng Village Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 47.06 1992
TG 2 A 81 PRI 45 H [ EE
Block 51, Ba Gua Ling Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 35.31 1995
NS PRI ] e
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Schedule of Major Properties

FERY L

Group IV - Property interest held by the Company for self-occupation
SEVUB — AR AR AR A 2 PR

Interest to TGFA  Completion

Property Address Use the Company (sq.m.) Date
A T

VIS ik itk UGy (FIik) % B H
Block 58 Peng Xing Garden Luohu, Shenzhen Res. 100% 72.69 1990’
B L1 Bl 58 DRI 2 A [ FE
Block 8 Peng Sheng Village Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 31.48 1992
T B A 8 ORI 4 [ KE
Coastal International Centre Suzhou, Jiangsu Hotel 100% 38,690.71 2009
TV TLERE BN T iy
Shenyang Wuai Logistic Building Shenyang, Liaoning Ind. 80.35% 5,680.00 1994-1996
T LB B R YT T%
Shenyang Wuai Shengang Bus Station and ~ Shenyang, Liaoning Carpark 80.35% 40,106.74 2011
Meibo Trading Centre
B P LB R & A R HEGET FEY
EHE S0
Jinsong Building Futian, Shenzhen Ind. 75.05% 3,600.00 2001
YK E TR i 4 H [ T%
Jinghai Garden Futian, Shenzhen Res. 75.05% 200.24 1998
R BRI AR [ RE
Bihai Hong Shu Yuan Futian, Shenzhen Com. 75.05% 7,431.11 2004
HIGALEE eI 4 H [ES
Mingzhu Times Square Maanshan, Anhui Res. 99.58% 462.40 2005
B E S gy Al HE
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